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Chairman’s Statement
FERE

On behalf of the board (the “Board") of directors (the "Directors”) of OCI
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to present to our
shareholders the annual results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the "Group”) for the year ended 3| December 2018 (“FY 2018"

or the “Year Under Review").

REVIEW OF OPERATION

The Company is an investment holding company and its subsidiaries are
principally engaged in securities trading and investments, provision of asset
management services including portfolio management and investment advice to
qualified corporate and individual professional investors, provision of financial
advisory services in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC") and trading of wines
in Hong Kong and the PRC.

During the Year Under Review, the Group is actively building up its fixed income
portfolio through acquiring notes and bonds which generate fixed interest
income. The Group also tried to raise the return of investment in these fixed
income notes and bonds through some financial arrangements like total return
swap agreements (“TRS"), bond-linked notes or repurchase arrangements
("REPO") with financial institutions to increase the leverage. As at 31 December
2018, total portfolio for these fixed income investments increased to HK$554.30
million as compare to HK$234.00 million as at 31 December 2017. During the
first half of 2018, China’s de-leveraging monetary policy had worsened the credit
liquidity of the private business sector with massive credit and liquidity issues
occurred amongst private enterprises. One of the investment notes held by the
Group, issued by Sanpower (Hong Kong) Company Limited, became default
in the second half of 2018. The Group had tried all necessary recovery action
to collect the related default amount and is in the process of negotiation for
repayment solution with the notes issuer and guarantors while impairments for
change in fair value of this investment notes are incorporated in the results of

the Group for the Year Under Review.
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With the granting of type 4 (advising on securities) and type 9 (asset
management) license by the Securities and Future Commission of Hong Kong
(the “SFC") on 9 May 2018, the Group commenced its asset management
business through providing a series of asset management services and investment
advisory services to qualified corporate and individual professional investors. The
Group launched a fund of HK$5,000 million in June 2018 and the Group is acting
as the fund manager of the fund. Asset management fee of HK$51.91 million was
recorded for the Year Under Review. Asset management income would increase

through the launching of more funds in 2019.

The Group has commenced business in the provision of business consultation
and advisory services in the PRC since the second half of 2017. No contractual
agreement was signed with any client and no revenue was recorded in this

business segment for the Year Under Review.

During the Year Under Review, the Group maintains the listed securities
investment portfolio brought forward from previous year to capture investment
appreciation opportunities in the stock market. In view of the downturn of the
market sentiment due to world trade tension and interest rate hike, the Group
had disposed part of the listed securities investment portfolio to realise gain
and cut losses on stocks with adverse performance. The Group earned HK$1.49
million dividend income from the portfolio and recorded realised loss of HK$5.24
million from the disposal of certain investment in listed securities. The market

value of the portfolio was HK$22.52 million as at 31 December 2018.

As the change of wine trading strategy proved to be successful in 2017, the
Group focus on premium wine trading in Hong Kong for the Year Under Review.
However, with the downturn of the market sentiment, the turnover for this
segment was decreased to HK$27.15 million and incurred an operation loss of

HK$0.49 million for the segment for the Year Under Review.
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Chairman’s Statement
FERE

FUTURE OUTLOOKS

Affected by certain factors in 2018, performances of local and international
capital market are generally weak. 2019 is expected to be more uncertain as
the market struggles to reassess the new investment reality, given a range of
apparently intractable global economic and political risks, most obviously the

USA/China trade relations and the economic growth of the PRC and USA.

First of all, monetary and fiscal measures like the interest rate hike/quantitative
ease/deleveraging/trimming balance sheet of central banks of leading developed
countries had slow down the economic growth in those countries in 2018.
Amount of default loans and bad debts increased substantially in 2018. These
monetary and fiscal measures is expected continue to prevail in 2019 and will

increase liquidity risk and further slow down economic growth.

Secondly, the escalating trade tensions between China and USA adversely
affected global trade on the second half of 2018 and it is most likely to continue
in 2019 in certain degree since it is hard for China and USA to reach a “win-win”
agreement on the trade war. The trade tariff will likely cut the GDP growth of

the countries concerned.

Thirdly, the oil prices turbulence is expected to accelerate as there are
disagreements over OPEC countries and non-OPEC countries and the political
stress amongst the Middle East countries is escalating, which will create
uncertainties over oil supply. A slowing economy will also decrease the demand

for oil.

Fourthly, deteriorating economic data throughout the Eurozone has forced the
market to become more pessimistic. A possible hard landing for Brexit may affect
the economic growth of other EU countries, other European countries and the

European region at large.

We expect a lot of uncertainties for global economic growth in 2019 and it will

be a challenging year for business management.
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The Group will enhance risk management and be cautious in making investment
decisions in view of the uncertainty of business environment. However, the
Group is confident to achieve desirable performance as the Group will focus
on investing in the Great China area which has continuous economic growth
potential. Though China's economy is facing a lot of challenges in 2019, China
possesses merits like stable economic base, huge market base, industrial benefits
driven by government policies, high potential for business growth for emerging
businesses in consumables and innovative technology field, strong governmental
capability of economic and financial risk control, broad asset with low valuation,

positive monetary and fiscal measures, etc.

The Group will continue its investment strategy by increasing investments
in fixed income products, listed securities and equity investment portfolios.
Investing in fixed income financial products or equity issued by large state-owned
enterprises with government support and companies operating in the real estate,
educational, renewable energy, consumables and innovative technology sectors to
enhance the Group's revenue base and operational contribution. Meanwhile, the
Group will pool more resources on development of asset management business
and structuring rewarding investment funds for itself and potential professional
investors, to enlarge the base of the asset management business and enhance its

profitability and to provide medium to long term returns to the Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
B JE 5 o BE AT

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group recorded consolidated net loss of HK$60.83 million for the year ended
31 December 2018 (the “Year”") (2017: loss of HK$7.74 million from continuing
operations). Total revenue generated from continuing operations of HK$124.61
million for the Year (2017: HK$87.90 million). The increase in turnover was
mainly due to the increase in revenue from investment operations and asset
management income. The consolidated losses from operations were mainly due
to the impairment losses in relation to the fixed income investment in the secured
guaranteed notes issued by Sanpower (Hong Kong) Company Limited amounting

to HK$53.40 million (2017: Nil) and the increase in operation costs for the Year.

Securities Trading and Investments

The Group continued to build up its securities and fixed income investment
portfolio. Dividend income, interest income, arrangement and handling fee, loss/
gain from disposal and termination of financial assets, and the change in fair value
of the financial assets recognised under this segment amounted to HK$45.56
million (2017 HK$34.45 million). Losses attributed to this business segment
amounted to HK$27.28 million (2017: profit of HK$23.39 million) mainly due to
the impairment losses on fixed income investment notes amounted to HK$54.28
million (2017: Nil).

Fixed Income Products

The Group actively invested in the fixed income products during the Year. The
Group usually considers a number of factors when assessing the investment in
fixed income products. The key factors included, but are not limited to, (i) the
credit rating of the issuers; (ii) the financial position and financial performance of
the underlying assets; (iii) the returns offered by and the relevant costs incurred/
in connection with the fixed income products; (iv) the maturities of the fixed
income products; (v) any guarantor or collaterals offered by the fixed income
products; (vi) leverage which can be applied in the fixed income products;
(vii) the economic environment; and (viii) government policies. The Company

developed a fixed income portfolio in order to manage the interest rate risk.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

One of the investment strategies of the Group is to obtain leverage on the
fixed income products through entering into financial arrangements with financial
institutions such as total return swap (“TRS") agreements and US dollar bond-
linked notes. Through these financial arrangements, the Company can obtain the
economic benefits including the interest and capital gain of an underlying asset
by paying only part of the market value of that underlying asset and thus increase
the investment returns of the Group's capital. The financial institutions will pay
the Company the return of the underlying asset net of the funding cost pre-

agreed between the Company and the financial institutions.

The Group may also enter into repurchase agreement (“Repo”) with financial
institutions to obtain leverage. A Repo is an agreement whereby the Company
sells its debt securities to the financial institution and agrees to repurchase it at a
pre-agreed price in the future. The economic benefits including the interest and
capital gain of its debt securities are retained by the seller, i.e. the Company. It
is in substance a form of borrowing with its debt securities as collaterals, and the
funding cost is embedded in the pre-agreed price to repurchase the security in

the future.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
B JE 5 o BE AT

As at 31 December 2018, the Group held interests in the following five debt

securities which are recognised as debt investments at amortised cost in the

consolidated balance sheet of the Group as at that date.

US$I5 million 10% senior secured guaranteed notes (“RD Note") issued
by Rundong Fortune Investment Limited (“RD Note Issuer”) maturing on
I5 April 2019. As at 3| December 2018, the carrying amount of the RD
Note was HK$I117.50 million (2017: HK$117.00 million), representing
14.6% of the consolidated total assets of the Group (2017: 18.5%).

After the Group disposed of US$2 million (face value) 8% senior secured
guaranteed notes ('SP Note") issued by Sanpower (Hong Kong) Company
Limited (“SP Note Issuer”) maturing on 30 July 2019 with a right to extend
the maturity date by further 12 months exercisable by the Company,
to an independent third party at the consideration of US$2 million. The
remaining US$13 million SP Note was kept as at 31 December 2018.

The Group issued in October 2018 an Event of Default Notice of
Repayment (“EOD Notice”) to the SP Note Issuer and demands for
payment from the Sanpower Group Co., Ltd, (the “"Corporate Guarantor”)
and Mr. Yuan Yafei (the “Personal Guarantor") as guarantors, in respect
of all outstanding sums owing by the SP Note Issuer under the SP
Note, when they failed to provide additional collateral requested by
the Company pursuant to the terms of the SP Note. The SP Note is
secured also by charges over a total of 131,000,000 shares of C.banner
International Holdings Limited (“C.banner Shares”), a Hong Kong listed
company (including 70,000,000 C.banner Shares that were charged as
additional collateral during the Year). The Company has noted from an
announcement of a PRC listed subsidiary of the Corporate Guarantor that
certain shares held by the Corporate Guarantor and shares in two PRC
listed companies held by that PRC listed subsidiary were subject to freezing
orders due to disputes involving amongst others the Corporate Guarantor
and the Personal Guarantor. As far as the Company is aware, the C.banner

Shares charged to the Company are not subject to any freezing order.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

On | November 2018, the Group appointed Allbright Law Offices (i
AIRERMEHFT) as our PRC legal adviser. The Group brought legal
proceedings against the Corporate Guarantor and the Personal Guarantor
at the Intermediate People's Court of Jiangsu Province (the “Court”) by
the end of November 2018 for all outstanding sums owing by the SP Note
Issuer under the SP Note. On 20 December 2018, the Court issued a &
E£HEEE (the "Mediation Order”, order numbered (2018) Su 0l Min
Chu No.3422) in relation to the payments obligations of the Corporate
Guarantor and the Personal Guarantor, both as guarantors of the SP Note,
in respect of the amounts owed under the SP Note recorded in the #
BRI (the "Settlement Agreement”) entered into between OCI Capital
Limited ("OCI Capital"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, the
Corporate Guarantor and the Personal Guarantor on the same day as a
result of the mediation conducted by the Court. Although the Corporate
Guarantor and the Personal Guarantor are required under the Mediation
Order and the Settlement Agreement to repay amounts owed under the
SP Note to OCI Capital by making an initial US$2,000,000 payment by 28
December 2018 and twelve further monthly payments during 2019, no
payment was received by OC| Capital based on the Mediation Order and
Settlement Agreement. Given such failure to pay in accordance with the
agreed schedule, all amounts payable under the Mediation Order and the
Settlement Agreement became immediately due and payable. Accordingly,
on 9 January 2019, the Group submitted an application to the Court for
the enforcement of amounts due under the Mediation Order and the

Settlement Agreement.

As at 31 December 2018, the carrying amount of the SP Note was
HK$48.43 million (2017: HK$117.00 million), representing 6.0% of the total
asset of the Group (2017: 18.5%). Accordingly, in relation to the SP Note,
the Group made a provision for impairment loss as at 31 December 2018
of HK$53.40 million and professional expenses of approximately HK$7.78
million (incurred during the year ended 31 December 2018) in relation to

its debt recovery efforts.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
B JE 5 o BE AT

(i)

US$10 million 6.5% guaranteed bonds issued by Zunyi New District
Investment Co., Ltd. maturing on |2 February 2019 (“ZY Note") which are
subject to a Repo arrangement ("Zunyi Repo”) between the Company and
GF Global Capital Limited. Pursuant to the Zunyi Repo, the Group sold
the ZY Note to GF Global Capital Limited for a consideration of US$5.08
million and agreed to repurchase the ZY Note on repurchase date as set
out in the Zunyi Repo at the pre-agreed price. The ZY Note was fully
settled on |3 February 2019.

As at 3| December 2018, the carrying amount of the ZY Note was
HK$77.91 million (2017: Nil), representing 9.7% of the total asset of the
Group (2017: Nil).

US$2.20 million (face value) of 6.95% guaranteed notes, issued by
Zhongrong International Bond 2016 Limited (“Zhongrong”) maturing
on 21 June 2019 ("ZR Note"), were distributed to the Group upon
termination of a TRS transaction (concluded in January 2018) with Haitong
International Global Strategic Investment Limited (“HIGSI”) in October
2018. The Group recognised total loss of US$0.70 million in respect of
the TRS transaction and its termination, being the difference between (a)
the total interest income of US$0.63 million received by the Group and
the consideration of US$6.49 million received by the Group following
termination and (b) the total costs and expenses (including break costs
and unwind costs) of US$7.82 million paid by the Group to HIGSI, based

on the pricing mechanism set out in the agreement for that TRS.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

As at 31 December 2018, the carrying amount of the ZR Note was
HK$15.82 million (2017: Nil), representing 2.0% of the total asset of the
Group (2017: Nil).

US$10 million (face value) of 5.75% bonds issued by Guangxi Financial
Investment Group Co, Ltd. (BERERIRESEABRAF]) maturing on
23 January 2021 (“GX Note"), which are subject to a Repo arrangement
("Guangxi Repo”) between the Group and CEBI Financial Products Limited
("CEBI"). Pursuant to the Guangxi Repo, the Group sold the GX Note to
CEBI at a consideration of US$5.00 million and agreed to repurchase the
GX Note on repurchase date as set out in the Guangxi Repo at the pre-

agreed price.

As at 31 December 2018, the carrying amount of the GX Note was
HK$72.05 million (2017: Nil), representing approximately 8.9% of the total
asset of the Group (2017: Nil).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEEWE D

AEER-_F-N\Ft_A=t—BHNEEA
EfEHRETEFHBEENEMR LN

Brief information on the TRS and US dollar bond-linked notes held by the Group

as at 31 December 2018 are as follows:

T

Date of announcement 3 April 2018 AFEE —E-N\FNA=H
Brief nature of the A guaranteed note (“HX Note") issued by the ZAKEMKRE ATXARREETA
financial instrument issuer named below, the amount payable upon i BITMEEREE(HXE
in which the redemption of which is linked to the US Dollar ~ ZHE#HE B)) ERNEREENSE
Group invested reference bond described below. ETE TR EESFE o
Amount invested US$7.5 million REEHE TSBEXRT
Fair value as at US$7.85 million, equivalent to HK$61.48 million, RZ-ZT—/\&F 785BEETT(HHER 6148
31 December 2018 representing 7.6% of the total assets of the Group ~ T2=A BEAET) HERZ-ZE
as at 31 December 2018 (2017: Nil). =t+—H —N\E+-A=1+—-HB%&
~FE BEELETN(ZE—L
FE)-
Note lssuer CSl Financial Products Limited (“CSI") FBRETA CS| Financial Products Limited
(Tcsi))
Guarantor CITIC Securities International Company Limited ERA FEEHFERARAR
Coupon Zero Z8 7
Reference bond US$15 million in principal amount of the 6.80% 2Zf&#H EEEX(BEB)ERRAA

guaranteed notes issued by Huaxin Pharmaceutical
(Hong Kong) Co., Limited due on |5 March
2021. As at 3 April 2018, the market value of the

reference bond was US$15.00 million.

The principal activities of Huaxin Pharmaceutical
(Hong Kong) Co.,

subsidiary of Taizhou Huaxin Pharmaceutical

Limited is a wholly-owned
Investment Co., Ltd. The principal activities of
Taizhou Huaxin Pharmaceutical Investment Co., Ltd.

is leasing of service platforms and real properties,

FBETER_E=—F=A
THAIBZAEEISBE
ET680% B ERER - 1
“E-\FWMA=R" 2%
EHFMTEARISOEEE

ﬁ:o

ENER(BE)BERAF
MEIBREBRARMERER
REBRARNZEMBL
Al EMEEEEREEAR
RANEBXBATMER
BARERSE T REER

primary land development and entrusted g ti—-BRERERR
construction in Taizhou Medical Zone. R
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EIEE R B AT

Date of announcement 3 April 2018 AR —“E-\¥WMA=H
Amount payable by On redemption upon maturity being 12 April 2019 EEEITA RIBRAAI-_Z-NEN
the note issuer or earlier due to an early termination event (which RER A+ZH)EEELERRE
on redemption includes drop in market value, and default of the EReH RREEH(BETET®
reference bond) the amount payable by CSI is to RBEEFEEENIRT
be calculated by a pre-agreed formula that can be BO - CSIENEBNIRE
summarised as follows: smENFRAGE - fid
mr
a) The aggregate of market value of the a)  CSIRE|mBEESRM
reference bond plus interest and principal ERMNMEREE (B
(net of tax) received by CSI minus the Tiik) 2858 759
aggregate of US$7.59 million (as hypothetical BEXT(RREER
loan notional amount) plus hypothetical LEEH) SINEER
interest thereon at the rate of 4.64% per E464%5t BB R &
annum; less NEZ B R
b) In case of early redemption, cost and b) HREBERMES - CSI
expenses incurred by CSI and/or affiliates in /5B ALTHE
connection with the redemption of the HX [ HX 3 1% 2 A /) K
Note. ARFx -
In the worst case scenario, for example, when EERRAT fln2EE
market value of the reference bond drops to zero FMMERETR,/HCS
and/or CSl is in default in payment of interest and BRAARRAX MM E R
principal amount to the Company, the redemption Aee® MED2ER
amount can be zero, in which case the Company T MARAG el EH
will not recover its investment. RE -
Benefits Taking into account the terms of the HX Note, #l& ZRIHNXEBNER B

including the potential return upon redemption
based on returns from the reference bond (in
the absence of default or a significant reduction
of market value of the reference bond) and the
amount of investment made in the HX Note, which
is less than the face value of the reference bond,
and the credit rating of the reference bond issuer
and the creditability of CSI and the guarantor
(whose A shares are listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange and H shares are listed on the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange), the Company believes that
the investment in the HX Note may generate
investment income (based on the Group's income
recognition policy in accordance with HKFRS) and
a reasonable return to the Group through the
amount receivable on redemption of the HX Note.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
B JE 5 o BE AT

Date of announcement 26 June 2018 AR “E-N\FERAZT+AE
Brief nature of the TRS transaction with CEBI Financial Products ZA&EERE EXRERERMERERA
financial instrument Limited (“CEBI") whereby: $RIA Al ([EREIER ) B B B i
in which the ZHEHR X% Bt
Group invested

a)  the Company paid CEBI I/3 of the agreed a) ARARZTE-N\EF
market value of the reference bond NAZTERENRE
(described below) on 27 June 2018 (the "GL RPN N F BB
Notional Amount”) being the initial exchange H)mYRER A
date of the TRS and agreed to pay the |\3HELEESFME
balance of the GL Notional Amount on the (TRt ) (TGL A %
final exchange (see below), and HE]  TRAEREK

BB GLEE
HEGBRTX)
&

b)  during the term of the TRS transaction, b) RERBREHRZHH
the Company will receive from CEBI the - AREEE KRR
equivalent coupon amounts (payable semi- BIFRURER 100% 2 E &
annually under the reference bond) from FZEEERSBE(E
100% of the reference bond and is required B2ERFBYFX
to pay CEBI an annual interest at an interest —=IR) » WARRKR
rate of 4.9% on US$6.67 million, being 2/3 of RN RBeTA
the GL Notional Amount. EXn(BIGLEEE

B 23) BA E49%
AEMNER -
Amount invested Initial exchange amount of US$3.33 million (i.e. 113 RELH NFERBEERINBEEE
of the GL Notional Amount) TL(ENGLEREER 1/3)
Fair value US$3.57 million, equivalent to HK$27.96 million, AF{E 357 BEETL(HER2796
representing 3.5% of the total assets of the Group BEBL) HERZ-Z

as at 31 December 2018 (2017: Nil).
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EIEE R B AT

Date of announcement 26 June 2018 AR “E-N\FERAZT+AE
Reference bond US$10 million (face value) in the principal amount 2Z &% B BERAR AR (337,

of the 7.875% senior unsecured bond issued by
Greenland Hong Kong Holdings Limited (337.HK)
due on 25 June 2019. As at 26 June 2018, the
market value of the reference bond was US$10.01

million.

In the worst case scenario, for example, if market
value of the reference bond drops to zero and/or
CEBI is default in payment of coupon to the Group
and/or the reference bond issuer fails to redeem
the reference bond, the Group will not recover its
investment (totalling US$3.33 million) plus interest
but will nevertheless be required to pay for the
remainder of the GL Notional Amount (i.e. it will
have to pay for the market value of the reference
bond at the initial exchange date) plus break/

unwind costs.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BB

Date of announcement

pak il

26 June 2018

N B

“E-NFRAZTAXAH

Benefits

Considering the terms of the TRS agreement,
the potential return on the redemption of the
reference bond that is to be delivered to the
Company on final exchange and coupon payments
from the reference bond (in the absence of default
or a significant reduction of market value of the
reference bond) and the amount of investment
made by the Group under the TRS agreement
to date which is less than the face value of the
reference bonds, the creditability of CEBI, whose
holding company is listed on both the Shanghai
Stock Exchange and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
and the creditability of the reference bond issuer
Greenland Hong Kong Limited, which is listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and its
ultimate holding company, Greenland Holdings
Corporation Limited (600606.5H), is a state-
owned enterprise under the management of the
State-owned Asset Supervision and Administration
Commission of Shanghai Municipal Government
and listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange. The
Company believes that the investment in the
TRS transaction may generate investment income
(based on the Group's income recognition policy in
accordance with HKFRS) and a reasonable return
to the Group through the amount receivable
during the term of the TRS transaction and on final

exchange.
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Date of announcement

Management Discussion and Analysis

3 July 2018

N B

EEENWED N

—2-N\f¥+tA=H

Brief nature of the
financial instrument
in which the

Group invested
Amount invested

Fair value

Note Issuer
Guarantor
Coupon

Reference bond

Amount payable by
the note issuer

on redemption

A guaranteed note ("LP Note") issued by the
issuer named below, the amount payable upon
redemption of which is linked to the reference

bond described below.
US$7.5 million

US$7.91 million, equivalent to HK$61.97 million,
representing 7.7% of the total assets of the Group
as at 31 December 2018 (2017: Nil).

Csl
CITIC Securities International Company Limited
Zero

US$I15 million in the principal amount of the
6.875% guaranteed senior notes issued by Logan
Property Holdings Company Limited (3380.HK) due
on 24 April 2021. As at 3 July 2018, the market

value of the reference bond was US$14.59 million.

The principal activities of Logan Property Holdings
Company Limited (together with is its subsidiaries)
are property development, property investment

and construction in the PRC.

On redemption upon maturity being 5 July 2019
or earlier due to an early termination event (which
includes drop in market value, acceleration or
default, adverse rating changes of the reference
bond) the amount payable by the issuer is to be
calculated by a pre-agreed formula that can be

summarised as follows:
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Management Discussion and Analysis
B JE 5 o BE AT

Date of announcement 3 July 2018 AR —“E-N\¥tA=H
a) The aggregate of market value of the a)  CSIREIMBEEST
reference bond plus interest and principal EEENIEIRCY &N AL S
(net of tax) received by CSI minus the Biik) 2858 739
aggregate of US$7.39 million (as hypothetical BEXT(RREER
loan notional amount) plus hypothetical LECH) SNEER
interest thereon at the rate of 4.86% per E486%5 B8 R &%
annum; less NEZ 85 R
b) In case of early redemption, cost and b) HREFEEEME - CSI
expenses incurred by CSI and/or affiliates in &/ HEATHIE
connection with the redemption of the LP ELPRIEE £ R A
Note. RER -
In the worst case scenario, for example, if market EREBRT  flmaEE
value of the reference bond drops to zero and/or AHMERETR,/HCS
CSl is in default in payment of interest and principal R RARR RS RA
amount to the Company, the redemption amount 2% UBENeEAT
can be zero in which case the Company will not AR a7 g B H &
recover its investment. e
Benefits Taking into account the terms of the LP Note, #l& ZRIIPEEMER - B

including the potential return upon redemption
based on returns from the reference bond (in
the absence of default or a significant reduction
of market value of the reference bond) and the
amount of investment made in the LP Note,
which is less than the face value of the reference
bond, and the credit rating of the reference bond
issuer and the creditability of the note issuer
and guarantor (whose A shares are listed on
the Shanghai Stock Exchange and H shares are
listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange), the
Company believes that the investment in the note
may generate investment income (based on the
Group's income recognition policy in accordance
with HKFRS) and a reasonable return to the Group
through the amount receivable on redemption of
the LP Note.
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EEENWED N

—E-\FtAT=H"
12 October 2018 and ¥R=F-NF+AtNR
Date of announcement amended on |8 October 2018 UNRE ah
Brief nature of the A guaranteed note ("KWG Note") issued by the ZAKBEIKE BT AZRITHEER
financial instrument issuer named below, the amount payable upon ERITA FRIWCGER]) - K%
in which the redemption of which is linked to the reference JHERE FENEEETR2EZRS
Group invested bond described below. B o
Amount invested US$5.03 million RE:H S03BEET
Fair value US$5.14 million, equivalent to HK$40.23 million, AF{E 5148 B ET(HHER4023
representing 5.0% of the total assets of the Group BERATL) HERALE
as at 31 December 2018 (2017: Nil). —NE+A=+—
HEEREMNS%Z
—tFE)-
Note Issuer Haitong International Products & Solutions Limited ~SEHEEITA Haitong International
("HIPSL") Products & Solutions Limited
(THIPSLL)
Guarantor Haitong International Securities Group Limited ERA BREREFEEERAT
Coupon Zero ZE g
Reference bond US$10 million in the principal amount of the Z2ZE% AR

7.875% senior notes issued by KWG Group
Holdings Limited (1813.HK) due on 9 August 2021.
As at 12 October 2018, the market value of the

reference bond was US$10.05 million.

The principal activities of KWG Group Holdings
Limited is investment holding and its subsidiaries
are principally engaged in property development,

property investment and construction in the PRC.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
B JE 5 o BE AT

Date of announcement

12 October 2018 and
amended on 18 October 2018

N B

—E-\FtAT=H"
YR-B-\F+ATNH
tEHHEET

Amount payable by
the note issuer on

redemption

On redemption upon maturity being 6 August
2021 or earlier due to an early termination event
(which includes drop in market value, acceleration
or default, adverse rating changes of the reference
bond) the amount payable by the issuer is to be
calculated by a pre-agreed formula that can be

summarised as follows:

a) The aggregate of market value of the
reference bond plus interest and principal
(net of tax) received by HIPSL minus the
aggregate of US$5.03 million (as hypothetical
loan notional amount) plus hypothetical
interest thereon at the rate of USD 3-month
LIBOR-BBA (floored at zero) plus 2.7% per

annum; less

b) In case of early redemption, cost and
expenses incurred by HIPSL and/or affiliates
in connection with the redemption of the
KWG Note.

In the worst case scenario, for example, if market
value of the reference bond drops to zero and/
or HIPSL is in default in payment of interest and
principal amount to the Company, the redemption
amount can be zero in which case the Company

will not recover its investment.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

12 October 2018 and

EEENWED N

—E-\FtAT=H"
YR-B-\F+ATNH

Date of announcement amended on 18 October 2018 NGGRER: {EE1BET
Benefits Taking into account the terms of the KWG Note, Flz& ERIKWCERM R

including the potential return upon redemption
based on returns from the reference bond (in
the absence of default or a significant reduction
of market value of the reference bond) and the
amount of investment made in the KWG Note,
which is less than the face value of the reference
bond (whose shares is listed on the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange) and the ultimate holding company
of the note guarantor (whose shares are listed on
the Shanghai Stock Exchange (600837.SH) and H
shares are listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
(6837.HK)), the Company believes that the
investment in the note may generate investment
income (based on the Group's income recognition
policy in accordance with HKFRS) and a reasonable
return to the Group through the amount receivable

on redemption of the KWG Note.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEEWE D

Equity Securities

During the Year, the Group maintained the listed securities investment portfolio
brought forward from the previous year to capture investment appreciation
opportunities in the stock market. In view of the downturn of the market
sentiment due to world trade tension and interest rate hike, the Group had
disposed part of the listed securities investment portfolio to realise gain and cut
losses on stocks with adverse performance. Realised losses from trading of listed
equity for the Year amounted to HK$5.24 million (2017: profit HK$10.03 million)
while loss on changes in fair value for these listed equity investment amounted
to HK$1.54 million as at 31 December 2018 (2017: profit of HK$1.06 million).
Dividend income from listed equity investments amounted to HK$1.49 million
for the Year (2017: HK$5.34 million). As at 31 December 2018, the portfolio
comprised of three companies with large capitalisation including Sinopharm
Group Co., Ltd. (stock code: 1099), China Resources Pharmaceutical Group
Limited (stock code: 3320) and Huatai Securities Co., Ltd. (stock code: 6886).
The market value of the portfolio amounted as at that date to HK$22.52 million
(2017: HK$82.94 million).

Wine Trading

Sales performance of wine trading was affected by the downturn of market
growth during the Year with a turnover of HK$27.15 million (2017: HK$50.03
million). Loss attributable to this business segment amounted to HK$0.49 million

for the Year (2017: profit HK$1.88 million) with the profit margin maintained.

Financial Advisory Services
The Group has commenced the provision of business consultation and advisory
services in the PRC since the second half of 2017. However, due to the changes
in the PRC's monetary measures during the Year, no contract was signed with
any client and no revenue was recorded in this business segment for the Year
(2017: HK$3.42 million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Asset Management Services

With the registration of the Group's asset management subsidiary for type 4
(advising on securities) and type 9 (asset management) regulated activities by
the Securities and Future Commission of Hong Kong (the “SFC") on 9 May
2018, the Group commenced its asset management business through providing a
range of asset management services and investment advisory services to qualified
corporate, individual and financial institutional professional investors. Two funds
managed by the Group were launched during the Year from which the Group

generated management fee income amounting to HK$51.91 million for the Year.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL ANALYSIS AND CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 3| December 2018, the Group had two fixed-rate, unsecured revolving
facilities of US$100 million each. One from Cheer Hope Holdings Limited, one
of our substantial shareholders of the Company, and the other one from Orient
Finance Holdings (Hong Kong) Limited, a subsidiary of one of the substantial
shareholders of the Company. The outstanding principal amount of the loans
as at 31 December 2018 amounted to US$I5 million and US$20 million
respectively. In addition, the Group was granted an unsecured revolving facility
of HK$500 million from a local bank, in respect of which HK$78.50 million in

principal amount was outstanding as at 31 December 2018.

The gearing ratio of the Group as at 31 December 2018 is 132.0% (2017:
60.4%), calculated based on total borrowings of HK$431.58 million (2017:
HK$234.00 million) and shareholders’ funds of HK$326.86 million (2017:
HK$387.69 million) as at that date.

The Group's bank balances and cash as at 31 December 2018 amounted to
HK$185.06 million (2017: HK$254.50 million). Its total assets as at the same date
were HK$805.41 million (2017: HK$633.50 million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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The Group recorded net current assets of HK$178.39 million (2017: HK$147.65
million), inventories increased from HK$12.79 million as at 31 December 2017
to HK$17.27 million as at 31 December 2018 as the Group stocked up inventory
for its premium wine trading operation. The current ratio of 1.4 times (2017:
[.6 times) calculated based on the current assets of HK$656.94 million (2017:
HK$393.45 million) over the current liabilities of HK$478.55 million (2017:
HK$245.81 million).

As at 3| December 2018 and 2017, the issued capital of the Company was
HK$10.60 million.

DETAILS OF MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES
The Group did not carry out any material acquisition nor disposal of any

subsidiary during the Year.

PROSPECTS FOR THE YEAR 2019 AND DEVELOPMENT PLAN

2019 will be a challenging year for us all as prolonged market volatility in the
closing weeks of 2018 suggested that 2019 will be more uncertain as the market
struggles to reassess the new investment reality, given a range of apparently
intractable geopolitical risks, most obviously the tensions in the US/China
trade relations. A slow down of global economic growth is expected by most

international financial institutions.

However, the Group is confident that it can achieve desirable performance in
2019 as the Group will focus on investing in the Greater China area which the
Group expects the economic in this area will continue to grow, as China will
continue actively to support the economy actively through both monetary and

fiscal relief measures.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Group will continue its strategy of investing in fixed income financial
products issued by large state-owned enterprises with municipal background
or companies operating in the real estate, education, renewable energy and
consumables sectors or associated arrangements such as Repo or bond-linked
notes to generate sufficient income stream to cover the Group's operation costs.
The Group will also invest further in equity securities when suitable opportunities
for value investment arise. The Group will be allocating more resources towards
the development of its asset management business, including structuring and
offering new investment funds for potential professional investors, in which the
Group may also make seed or house investments so as to provide the Group

with medium to long term returns.

For the Group's wine trading segment, the Group will continue its business
model, concentrating on the trading of premium wine. In view of the uncertain
economic environment globally and its impact on China, the Group is determined

not to pursue mass market wine trading in the PRC.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISKS

The Group's operations are conducted (and its offshore borrowings are
denominated) in Hong Kong dollars and US dollars while wine trading billings
are mainly settled in Euro, Sterling Pound, Singapore dollars and Hong Kong
dollars. However, the operations of our PRC subsidiaries are conducted in RMB.
Therefore, the Group is exposed to fluctuations in foreign exchange rate to a
certain extent. Currently, the Group has no formal hedging policies in place.
The Group has not entered into any foreign currency exchange contracts or
derivatives to hedge against the Group's currency risks. However, the Group will
continue to closely monitor and manage its exposure to foreign exchange and

will consider engaging hedging instruments as and when appropriate.

DIVIDEND
No dividends were paid, declared or proposed during the Year (2017: Nil). The
Board did not recommend any dividend payment for the Year (2017: Nil).
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 3| December 2018, no secured borrowings were reported.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

On 21 December 2017, the Group entered into the subscription agreement with
the TYEE-OCI General Partner Limited, pursuant to which the Group agreed to
subscribe for and purchase limited partnership interests in an offshore fund at a

total capital contribution of HK$100 million.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 3| December 2018, the Directors are not aware of any material contingent

liabilities.

EMPLOYEE POLICY

As at 31 December 2018, the Group employed 6 employees in the PRC and
21 employees in Hong Kong. The Group has maintained good relationship
with its staff and has not experienced any major disruptions of its operations
due to labour disputes. The Group contributed to the Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme of Hong Kong and provided medical benefits programme for
its employees in Hong Kong. It also contributed to the retirement insurance,
medicare, unemployment insurance and housing funds according to the applicable

laws and regulations of the PRC for its employees in the PRC.

The Group remunerates its employees in accordance with their work
performance and experience. The Board has designated the duties of determining
Directors’ service contracts, reviewing of Directors’ and senior management's
emoluments and awarding of discretionary bonuses of the Company to the

remuneration committee of the Company.
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The board of directors (the “Board”) of OCI International Holdings Limited
(the “Company”) is committed to maintaining and ensuring a high standard
of corporate governance. The Board takes the view that a high standard of
corporate governance lays down a solid foundation for enhancing a high degree
of accountability and transparency, maintaining sound and effective internal
control, improving the performance of the Group and safeguarding the interests

of the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”).

The Board has adopted the code provisions set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the "CG Code") as contained in Appendix |4 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Listing Rules"). During the year ended 31 December 2018 (the “Year"),
the Company has complied with the CG Code except for Mr. Lam Man Sum
Albert was appointed as an Independent non-executive Director without specific
term of office, which constitutes a deviation from A.4.1 of the CG Code. On 7
May 2018, the Company fulfilled the requirement after Mr. Lam retired.

THE BOARD

As at 31 December 2018, the Board was comprised of Mr. Feng Hai (Chairman),
Mr. Li Yi (Chief Executive Officer) and Ms. Xiao Qing (Chief Operating Officer)
as executive directors ("Executive Directors"); Mr. Du Peng and Ms. Zheng
Xiaosu as non-executive directors ("Non-executive Directors"); and Mr. Chang
Tat Joel, Mr. Wong Stacey Martin, Mr. Tso Siu Lun Alan and Mr. Fei John Xiang
as independent non-executive directors (“Independent non-executive Directors"
or "INED"). Mr. Lam Man Sum Albert retired as an Independent non-executive
Director on 7 May 2018 after the conclusion of the AGM and Mr. Fei John Xiang
appointed as an Independent non-executive Director on |8 May 2018. Ms. Chan

Mee Sze resigned as an Executive Director on | September 2018.
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The Board is responsible for the overall strategic development of the Company
and its subsidiaries (collectively the "Group”) and is also responsible for the
financial performance, risk management, internal control policies and business
operations of the Group. The daily operations of the Group are delegated
to the Group's management. All directors of the Company (“Director(s)")
are provided with updated information relating to corporate governance and
regulatory matters. During the Year, all Directors had been provided with
monthly management updates giving a balanced and understandable assessment
of the Company's performance, position and prospects to enable the Directors

to discharge their duties under the Listing Rules.

The Board is responsible for performing corporate governance functions with

written terms of reference. The primary duties are:

I. To develop and review the Company's policies and practices on corporate

governance.

2. To review and monitor the training and continuous professional

development of Directors and senior management.

3. To review and monitor the Company's policies and practices on

compliance with legal and regulatory requirements.

4. To develop, review and monitor the code of conduct applicable to

employees and Directors.

5. To review the Company's compliance with code and disclosure in the

corporate governance report.

The biographies of the Directors are set out in pages 48 to 52. On 30 January
2019, the Company has updated the Board Diversity Policy (the “Policy”) in
order to achieve diversity on the Company's board of directors (“Board”). The
Policy sets out measurable objectives for the composition of the Board. The
composition of the Board members demonstrates a diversity of skills, expertise,

experience and qualifications.
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Attendance record of meetings: SRHUELE
The attendance records of each Director at the various meetings of the BE_T-\F+-A=T—HLFE K&
Company during the year ended 31 December 2018 are set out as below: FHEARAI TR GE LTI T :

Directors’ attendance record of the board meetings,

committees meetings, and general meetings in 2018

R-\FESEEH ZEECHRRRAGZEZLRER

Annual Audit Extraordinary Nomination ~ Remuneration
general Committee Board general Committee Committee
meeting meeting meeting meeting meeting meeting

R¥BEAE  ENEEE E2e RRNMAE  REZEE  HMZES

Number of meetings EEV \ 1 17 1 I 2
Executive Director HTES

Feng Hai 58 I n/a T 16/17 1n n/a T & X ilii
Li'Yi =3 I/l nla NER [6/17 il nla MER na MER
Xiao Qing HE I/l nfa MR 16/17 In nla MER nfa MER
Chan Mee Sze RxER* ol nla T 314 0 ok MER n/a TiEA
Non-executive Director FUTES

Du Peng i Ul nfa MR 1417 22 nla MEA nfa NEA
Zheng Xiaosu L\ Il nfa T @R 6/17 n nla M nfa TER
INED BUFUTES

Lam Man Sum Albert* MER I/1 Il 515 0n na MEA 111
Chang Tat Joel L=} 0/1 2 13117 01 I 11
Wong Stacey Martin L I/l 0N 10117 n o/l n
Tso Siu Lun Alan E2h ol 1n /17 0n I 0N
Fei John Xiang" B nfa FER Il 10711 nfa R @R nfa M@ nfa FER
L Ms. Chan resigned as an Executive Director on | September 2018, L BEZTR=E-N\FAA—BBENTES -

% Mr. Lam retired as INED, the chairman of the nomination committee and a member b3 MEER-_BE-NERA+EREAERE

of each of the audit committee and remuneration committee of the Company on 7 BERERABUFNTES ARTREZ
May 2018 after the conclusion of AGM. BEIRURERZEGRFMEESHE -

* Mr. Fei was appointed as INED, the chairman of the nomination committee and : BRAERZT-N\GERATN\REZEARB

a member of each of the audit committee and remuneration committee of the VEHITES  ARAIREBZESEIREUR
Company on 18 May 2018. ERLEERTHNEEENE -
REEBREZEREBRLT
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During the Year, all Directors discharged their duties in a dedicated, diligent
and proactive manner with reasonable prudence. They have executed their
duties in accordance with statutory requirements, the articles of association of
the Company (the “Articles of Association”) and the Listing Rules. All Directors
have exercised due care in monitoring corporate matters of the Company and

provided sufficient time and attention to all significant issues of the Group.

BOARD MEETINGS AND PROCEEDING

The Executive Directors meet on a regular basis to discuss the ordinary business
of the Company. Board meetings are held to discuss the overall development,
operation, financial performance, interim results, annual results and other
business of the Company that require approval from the Board. Reasonable
notice has been given to Board members to give them an opportunity to attend.
All Board members are provided relevant documentation covering the subject
matter of the Board meetings. Board members are also provided with sufficient
information in a timely manner to review and consider matters to be discussed
at Board meetings and also for passing written resolutions. The Company utilises
telephone conferencing for Directors who are not able to attend in person. The

Board held seventeen Board meetings during the Year.

Minutes of Board meetings and Board committee meetings are drafted by
the secretary of the meetings and recorded in sufficient details the matters
considered and decisions reached, with draft and final versions being circulated
to the Directors for their comments and records within reasonable time after
the meetings are held. Originals of such minutes, being kept by the company
secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary"), are open for inspection at

any reasonable time on reasonable notice by any Director.

If a Director has conflict of interest in a matter to be considered by the Board
which the Board has determined to be material, the matter will be dealt with
by a physical Board meeting rather than a written resolution. That Director will
abstain from voting on the relevant Board resolution in which he/she or any of
his/her associates has a material interest and that he/she shall not be counted in

the quorum present at such Board meeting.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

To assist the Board in execution of its duties and facilitate effective management,
certain functions of the Board have been delegated by the Board to the audit
committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”), remuneration committee
of the Company (the “Remuneration Committee”) and nomination committee of

the Company (the “Nomination Committee”).

The members of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee are Independent non-executive Directors. Clear written
terms of reference of all the Board Committees are given to the respective
members of these Committees. Details of the Board Committees are set out

below:

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established in 2001 and the Company adopted
written terms of reference for the Audit Committee. In January 2019, the
Board adopted a set of revised terms of reference of the Audit Committee
which included changes in line with the new requirements of the CG Code.
During the Year and up to the date of this report, the Audit Committee is

comprised of the following Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Chang Tat Joel (Chairman)

Mr. Lam Man Sum Albert (retired on 7 May 2018 after
the conclusion of AGM)

Mr. Wong Stacey Martin

Mr. Tso Siu Lun Alan

Mr. Fei John Xiang (appointed on 18 May 2018)

The primary duties of the Audit Committee include, among other things,
review and supervision of the financial reporting process, risk management
and internal control policies and procedures of the Company. The Audit
Committee also acts as the communication bridge between the Board
and the external auditors in relation to the planning and scope of audit
work. The appointment of members to the Audit Committee was based
on members’ breadth of experience in various commercial sectors and

professional knowledge of financial reporting and general management.
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During the Year, the Audit Committee held two meetings to review
interim and annual results of the Group, internal control, risk management
issues and the planning of annual audit. The risk management policies
and procedures was adopted in the year 2016 and the enterprise risk
management advising service and internal control review report were
prepared by an external advisor and were reviewed by the Audit

Committee.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established in 2005. In March 2012, the
Board adopted a set of revised terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee which included changes in line with the new requirements
of the CG Code. During the Year and up to the date of this report, the
Remuneration Committee is comprised of the following Independent non-

executive Directors:

Mr. Chang Tat Joel (Chairman)

Mr. Lam Man Sum Albert (retired on 7 May 2018 after
the conclusion of AGM)

Mr. Wong Stacey Martin

Mr. Tso Siu Lun Alan

Mr. Fei John Xiang (appointed on 18 May 2018)

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include, among other
things, determining the policy for the remuneration of Executive Directors,
assessing performance of Executive Directors and approving the terms
of Executive Directors’ service contracts. The Remuneration Committee
reviews and approves the management's remuneration proposals
with reference to the Board's corporate goals and objectives to make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of individual

executive Directors and senior management.

During the Year, the Remuneration Committee held two meetings and

recommended the remunerations of the Directors and senior management.
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3. Nomination Committee
The Company established the Nomination Committee in March 2012 and
the Company adopted a set of revised written terms of reference which
included changes in line with the new requirements of the CG Code
in January 2019. During the Year and up to the date of this report, the

Nomination Committee is comprised of the following Directors:

Mr. Fei John Xiang (Chairman)
(appointed on 18 May 2018)

Mr. Lam Man Sum Albert (Chairman) (retired on 7 May 2018 after
the conclusion of AGM)

Mr. Chang Tat Joel (appointed as Chairman on 7 May 2018
after conclusion of the AGM, ceased to be the Chairman and

become a member of the Committee on 18 May 2018)

Mr. Wong Stacey Martin
Mr. Tso Siu Lun Alan

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee include (i) reviewing the
structure, size and composition of the Board; (ii) selection of individuals
nominated for directorships; (iii) assess the independence of Independent non-
executive Directors; (iv) make recommendations to the Board; (v) to review the
nomination policy and board diversity policy on regular basis; and (vi) to monitor
the implementation of the nomination policy and board diversity policy and

report in the corporate government report annually.

The Nomination Committee has implemented the following procedures and

processes in respect of the nomination of Directors:

I, The Nomination Committee may select potential candidates for nomination
by: (i) inviting the Board to nominate suitable candidates, if any, for its
consideration; or (ii) nominating candidates who were not proposed by the
Board members; or (iii) engaging external recruitment agencies to assist in

identifying and selecting suitable candidates, if considered necessary;

2. The Nomination Committee will conduct background search on each

potential candidates;
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3. After consideration, the Nomination Committee shall then make

recommendations of the suitable candidates for the Board's consideration
and approval. For the election of candidates to stand for re-election at a
general meeting, the Nomination Committee shall make nominations to

the Board for its consideration and recommendation to Shareholders; and

4. Shareholders may also nominate candidates for election as a Director in

accordance with the procedures posted on the Company's website.

During the Year, the Nomination Committee held one meeting to consider the

appointment of Mr. Fei John Xiang as Independent non-executive Director.

DIVIDEND POLICY

This Company established the dividend policy in January 2019 aimed at setting
out the principles and guidelines that the Company intends to apply in relation
to the declaration, payment or distribution of its profits as dividends to the

shareholders of the Company.

In considering the payment of dividends, there shall be a balance between
maintaining sufficient capital for expanding the Group's business and rewarding

the shareholders of the Company.

The Board shall also take into account, among other things, when considering the

declaration and payment of dividends:

. the actual and expected financial performance of the Group
. the capital and debt level of the Group

. the general market conditions

. any working capital requirements, capital expenditure requirements and

future development plans of the Group

. retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Company and each of

the members of the Group

. the liquidity position of the Group
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0 any restrictions on dividend payouts imposed by any of the Group's

lenders

0 the statutory and regulatory restrictions which the Group is subject to

from time to time
. any other relevant factors that the Board may deem appropriate

Notwithstanding anything in this Dividend Policy, the declaration and payment
of dividends (if any) by the Company is subject to the discretion of the Board,
any restrictions under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the Listing
Rules, the laws of Hong Kong and the Company's Memorandum and Articles of

Association and any other applicable laws and regulations.

The Company does not have any pre-determined dividend distribution ratio.
The Company's dividend distribution record in the past may not be used as a
reference or basis to determine the level of dividends that may be declared or

paid by the Company in the future.

The Dividend Policy shall in no way constitute a legally binding commitment by
the Group in respect of its future dividend and/or in no way obligate the Group

to declare a dividend at any time or from time to time.

DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS TRAININGS AND DEVELOPMENT

All Directors have been given relevant guideline materials regarding to duties and
responsibilities of being a Director, the relevant laws and regulations applicable
to the Directors, duty of disclosure of interest and business of the Group and
such induction materials would also be provided to newly appointed Directors
shortly upon their appointment as Directors. All Directors have been updated
on the latest developments regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements to ensure compliance and enhance their awareness of
good corporate governance practices. There is a procedure agreed by the Board
to ensure Directors, upon reasonable request, to seek independent professional

advice in appropriate circumstance, at the Company's expenses.

The Directors confirmed that they have completed with the Code Provision
A.6.5 of the CG Code and report on Directors’ training. All Directors have
participated in continuous professional development by the following means to

develop and refresh their knowledge during the Year.
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Reading materials/attending training course
Reading materials/attending training course
Reading materials/attending training course

Reading materials/attending training course

Reading materials/attending training course

iz b =+

1= % =) & £ =
Directors Training received
E= 53340k
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Feng Hai it
Mr. Li Yi FREE
Ms. Xiao Qing BERL
Ms. Chan Mee Sze (resigned on BREBLL(RZZ-N\E

| September 2018) NA—BEf)
Non-executive Directors FUTES
Mr. Du Peng HAxE
Ms. Zheng Xiaosu B)Ert Reading materials
Independent non-executive Directors BYFHTES

Mr. Lam Man Sum Albert (retired on

7 May 2018 after conclusion

HEREER-_F-N\F
hAAtARRBFAGERE

Reading materials/attending training course

Reading materials/attending training course

Reading materials/attending training course

of the AGM) RAE)
Mr. Chang Tat Joel HEHE
Mr. Wong Stacey Martin BRALE Reading materials
Mr. Tso Siu Lun Alan BEREE Reading materials
Mr. Fei John Xiang (appointed on EARERZZ-N\EF

18 May 2018) AAT/\BEZ)

The topics on training covered corporate governance, finance and industry

specific regulations.

BIEMEL/ R SE
BIENHL/ R sE
BIEHHL/ R sE
BIEMEL/ R SE

BIENEL/ R sE
BB

BIEHR/ R sE

BIEHR/ R sE
BB A
BIEMTH
BIEHR/ R sE

BT RERERRAE - M RIBETRRN -

RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN THE BOARD MEMBERS
None of the members of the Board has any relationship (including financial,

business, family or other material/relevant relations) among each other.

DIRECTORS’ INSURANCE
The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect of legal action

against the Directors.
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of the Company (the “Model Code") as set out in Appendix 10 of the
Listing Rules. Following enquiries with the Directors, the Company has received
confirmation from each of the Directors confirming that he or she has complied

with the required standard of dealings set out in the Model Code for the Year.

SEGREGATION OF DUTIES

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer positions are held by separate individuals
with a view to maintain an effective segregation of duties in respect of the
management of the Board and the day-to-day management of the Group's
business. The Chairman is responsible for the management of the Board and the
strategic developments of the Group. The Chief Executive Officer is responsible

for the Group's day-to-day corporate administration.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Independent non-executive Directors bring independent judgment to the
Board. Each Independent non-executive Director sent a written confirmation of
their independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules to the Company.
Based on these confirmations, the Board considers that all Independent non-
executive Directors have met the qualifications of Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules

for the Year.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Directors are appointed in accordance with their qualifications and experience
to ensure they are capable to perform their duties and protect the interests of
the stakeholders. Every newly appointed Director receives a comprehensive and
formal introduction to ensure that he/she has an understanding of the Group's
business and operation, his/her responsibilities and obligations under the Listing

Rules and relevant regulatory requirements, and the Model Code.

Article A4.1 of the CG Code stipulates that non-executive directors shall
be appointed for a specific term and be subject to re-election. Save as the
appointment of Mr. Lam Man Sum Albert as an Independent non-executive
Director has no specific term of office, which constitutes a deviation from A.4.1
of the CG Code, all the Independent non-executive Directors and Non-executive
Directors have been appointed for an initial term of 3 years. On 7 May 2018, the

Company fulfilled the requirement upon the retirement of Mr. Lam.
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According to the provisions of the Articles of Association and the Listing Rules,
any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office
until the next following general meeting of the Company, and in the case of an
addition to the existing Board, until the next following Annual General Meeting.
Furthermore, each Director, including those appointed for a specific term
or holding office as Chairman and/or Chief Executive Officer, are subject to

retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Nomination Committee is responsible for the selection of individuals
nominated as Director and senior management. The Board considers the
experience, qualification, general market conditions and composition of the

Board in selecting and recommending candidates as Directors of the Company.

Detailed information relating to educational, professional qualifications and
relevant work experience are provided at the Board meeting to approve the
proposed appointment of new Directors. The criteria for selecting Directors
are mainly based on the candidate's qualifications, experience, professional

knowledge, ethics and integrity.

The nomination policy and board diversity policy were reviewed and updated on

30 January 2019.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

In January 2019, the Board has adopted a set of revised board diversity policy
of the Company (the “Board Diversity Policy”) pursuant to which the Board
considers a number of aspects, including but not limited to, gender, age, culture,
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and
length of services in designing the Board's composition. The ultimate decision
will be based on merit and contribution that the selected candidates will bring
to the Board. The Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity Policy,
as appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness and to monitor the implementation of

the Board Diversity Policy.
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Board diversification in terms of:
Gender
Male:

Female:

Age Group
30-39:
40-49:
50-59:

Capacity
Executive Directors:

Non-executive Directors:

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Length of Service in the Board
0-3 years:
4-6 years:

Nationality
Chinese:
USA:

Australian:

Educational Background
Bachelor's degree:

Master's degree:

Professional Experience
Accounting:

Asset Management Financial:

Market/Industry Experience
Investment:
Banking & Finance:

Real Estate:

78%
22%

45%
22%
33%

33%
22%
45%

78%
22%

78%
1%
1%

33%
67%

1%
44%

67%
22%
I'1%
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INED’s Other Listed Board Roles:

BYFHTESHMLHTESZEAG

Chang Wong Stacey Tso Siu Fei John

Tat Joel Martin Lun Alan Xiang

EiEE HEW EER B3

Executive director BiTE=S - >

Non-executive director FEHITES S >

Independent non-executive director BERITES -
REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT EEREREEE2HM

In determining the remuneration of Directors and senior management, the
Company took into account of (i) the prevailing market conditions; (ii) the
time commitment requirements; (iii) the duties and responsibilities; (iv) the
contribution to the Group; (v) the qualifications and (vi) the experience, to
ensure sufficient remuneration levels to attract and retain high calibre personnel

without paying excessively.

COMPANY SECRETARY

All Directors have access to the advices and services of the Company Secretary,
Ms. Lai Pik Chi Peggy, a full-time employee of the Company. Ms. Lai has
confirmed that she had received no less than |5 hours of relevant professional
training for the year ended 3| December 2018 in compliance with Rule 3.29 of

the Listing Rules.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS
The Memorandum of Association of the Company are published on the websites

of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS

Company general meetings are valuable platform to allow the Board to
communicate with Shareholders and answer questions regarding proposed
resolutions. Individual resolutions stipulated at general meetings for each
substantial issue and Board members are available to answer questions raised by

Shareholders.
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The Board adopted a Shareholder’'s communication policy aiming to provide
Shareholders and potential investors with ready and timely access to balanced
and understandable information of the Company. Information of the Group was

disseminated to Shareholders and investors as follows:

o Delivery of interim reports and annual reports to all Shareholders and

other interested parties;

° Announce interim results and annual results on both the websites of
Stock Exchange and the Company; and issue and publication of other
announcements and shareholders' circulars in accordance with the

continuing disclosure obligation under the Listing Rules; and

o Inside Information is disclosed to the public by way of announcement as
required by the Listing Rules and pursuant to Inside Information Provisions

under Part XIVA of the Securities and Futures Ordinance.

Procedures for directing Shareholders’ enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may direct enquiries to the Board at any time. Such enquiries can
be addressed to the Company Secretary by mail to the Company's principal
office in Hong Kong at Suite 811, Level 8, One Pacific Place, 88 Queensway,

Admiralty, Hong Kong.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for putting forward proposals at general meetings by Shareholders

There are no provisions allowing Shareholders to propose new resolutions at
general meetings under the Cayman Islands Companies Law or the Articles
of Association. Shareholders who wish to move a resolution may request the
Company to convene an extraordinary general meeting following the procedures

set out below.

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles of Association, any one or more members
holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the
paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the
Board or the Company Secretary, to require for an extraordinary general
meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in

such requisition.
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If the requisition is in order, then the meeting shall be held within two (2)
months after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days
of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting the
requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of

the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Procedures for proposing a person for election as a Director

If a Shareholder wishes to propose a person other than a Director, for election
as a new Director of the Company, the Shareholder must deposit a written
notice (the “Notice”) to the principal place of business of the Company in Hong
Kong at Suite 811, Level 8, One Pacific Place, 88 Queensway, Hong Kong for the
attention of the Company Secretary.

The Notice must state clearly the name, the contact information of the
Shareholder and his/her/their shareholding, the full name of the person proposed
for election as a Director, including the person’s biographical details as required
by Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules, and be signed by the Shareholder
concerned (other than the person to be proposed). The Notice must also be
accompanied by a letter of consent (the “Letter”) signed by the person proposed

to be elected on his/her willingness to be elected as a Director.

The period for lodgement of the Notice and the Letter will commence no earlier
than the day after the dispatch of the notice by the Company of the general
meeting appointed for election of Directors and end no later than seven (7) days

prior to the date of such general meeting.

The Notice will be verified with the Company's branch share registrar and
upon their confirmation that the request is proper and in order, the Company
Secretary will forward the relevant documents to the Nomination Committee
and the Board to consider to include the resolution in the agenda for the general

meeting proposing such person to be elected as a Director.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for overseeing the preparation
of the financial statements of the Group and believe these statements give a
true and fair view of the Group's affairs and its results. The Directors are also
responsible for the timely publication of financial statements of the Group and
to ensure they are prepared in accordance with statutory requirements and
applicable financial reporting standards. The Directors are also committed to
make appropriate announcements in accordance with the requirements of the
Listing Rules, and to disclose all information necessary for Shareholders to assess

the financial performance and other aspects of the Company.

Crowe (HK) CPA Limited was appointed as the external auditor of the Group
for the Year and will continue as such until the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting. The annual consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year
have been audited by Crowe (HK) CPA Limited. The auditors’ responsibilities for
the Group's financial statements are set out in the Independent Auditor's Report

on pages 74 to 82 of the Company's 2018 Annual Report.

The Audit Committee is responsible for evaluating, including but not limited to,

their independence and objectivity of the external auditors of the Group.

The fees of the external auditors of the Group for audit services amounted to
HK$1.30 million and for non-audit services, being engagement on the Group's
interim financial statements 2018, conducted in accordance with Hong Kong Standard
in Related Services 4400 “Engagements to Perform Agreed-Upon Procedures
Regarding Financial Information” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public

Accountants amounted to approximately HK$0.2 million for the Year.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible to ensure that the Company establishes and maintains
appropriate and effective risk management and internal control systems, and
to review its effectiveness through the Audit Committee. The internal control
systems are designed to meet the Group's particular needs and the risks to which
it is exposed, and by their nature can only provide reasonable, but not absolute
assurance against misstatement or loss and to manage, but not to eliminate, risks
of failure in achieving the Group's objectives. Practicable and effective control
systems and procedures have been implemented by the Group to enhance
internal control in an ongoing basis. The Board, through the Audit Committee,
has conducted reviews of the effectiveness and the adequacy of such systems at

least annually.
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During the Year, the Executive Directors are responsible for the overall risk
management functions. In order to comply with the applicable code provisions
set out in the CG Code contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules, the
Board has retained an external advisor with a view to facilitating adequacy of
resources and quality of review to satisfy the Group's internal audit function as
required by Stock Exchange and to assist the Board to perform annual reviews
on the effectiveness of the Group's risk management and internal control
systems for the Year. The results of the assessment have been reported to the
Audit Committee and areas of the recommended actions have been identified

and taken into consideration by the Board for improvements.

The Company has developed its code of conduct which provides a general
guideline to the Company's Directors and relevant employees in handling
confidential information, monitoring information disclosure and responding to

enquiries.

Based on the risk management and internal control systems established and
maintained by the Group, the work performed by the external auditor, the
internal audit function, and reviews performed by executive management,
respective Board Committees and the Board, the Audit Committee and the
Board are of the view that the Group has maintained sound and effective risk
management and internal control systems during the financial period ended 3|
December 2018.

During the Year, the Board has conducted a review and assessment of risk
management and appointed a professional management consultancy firm, Crowe
(HK) Risk Advisory Limited, to provide internal controls assessment services to
assess and evaluate the risk and effectiveness of its system of internal controls.
The Audit Committee members, together with the management, have reviewed,
considered and discussed all the findings and recommendations of the internal
control review relating to the internal control system that operates within the
Group, and the Audit Committee is satisfied that the internal control system
of the Group is sound and adequate. Pursuant to the system improvement
recommendations made by Crowe (HK) Risk Advisory Limited, the Group will

continue to improve its internal management and control systems.
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The management and various departments conducted periodic self-assessment
of the effectiveness of the internal control policies and procedures. During the
year ended 31 December 2018, management of the Company had conducted an
internal audit on the systems of internal control of investments in fixed income
products to ensure compliance with procedures laid down by the Company and

the Group.

The Board is of the view that the systems of internal control and risk
management are effective and there are no irregularities, improprieties, fraud or
other deficiencies that suggest there is no material deficiency in the effectiveness

of the Group's internal control and risk management system.

GOING CONCERN

The Directors confirm that, to the best of their knowledge, information and
belief and having made all reasonable enquiries, they are not aware of any
material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cause significant
doubt upon the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. The Board
therefore continues to adopt the going concern approach in preparing the

financial statements for the Year.

On behalf of the Board

OCI International Holdings Limited

Feng Hai

Executive Director (Chairman)

28 February 2019
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Directors and Senior Management Profile
EENREREBAERN

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Feng Hai, aged 40, was appointed as an Executive Director and the
Chairman of the Company in November 2016. Mr. Feng is director of various
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Feng holds a Master degree in Management
Science from Fudan University and was awarded both Bachelor degree of Law
and Bachelor of Management degree from Nankai University in China. Mr. Feng
has over |3 years of experience in private equity and investment banking in
China. Mr. Feng currently serves as deputy general manager of Shanghai Orient
Securities Capital Investment Co., Ltd. Mr. Feng started his career in Sinochem'’s
office in Shanghai, and has subsequently served at Orient Securities, Morgan
Stanley Huaxin Securities and Citi Orient Securities as an investment banker. Mr.
Feng is a sponsor representative registered under China Securities Regulatory
Commission (“CSRC") and Securities Association of China (“SAC").

Mr. Li Yi, aged 37, was appointed as an Executive Director of the Company
in November 2016 and redesignated as the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company in July 2017. Mr. Li is director of various subsidiaries of the Company.
In 2018, Mr. Li was appointed as an Executive Director and Responsible Officer
of OCI Asset Management Company Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company. Mr. Li holds a Master degree in Law (International Relations) from
Fudan University and a Bachelor degree in Philosophy from Renmin University of
China. Mr. Li has over |2 years of experience in investment banking and private
equity in China and Hong Kong. Mr. Li served as deputy general manager of
Orient Ruide (Shanghai) Investment Management Co., Ltd. Before joining Orient
Ruide, Mr. Li served at Guotai Junan Securities, Morgan Stanley Huaxin Securities
and Citi Orient Securities as an investment banker. Mr. Li was a sponsor

representative registered under CSRC and SAC.

Ms. Xiao Qing, aged 50, was appointed as an Executive Director of the
Company in December 2016 and redesignated as Chief Operating Officer of
the Company in July 2017. Ms. Xiao is director of various subsidiaries of the
Company. Ms. Xiao holds a Bachelor degree in Economics. Ms. Xiao has over 20
years of experience in investment banking and private equity. Ms. Xiao currently
serves as chief operating officer and board secretary of Orient Securities Capital
Investment Co., Ltd. Before joining Orient Securities Co., Ltd., Ms. Xiao worked
in Foreign Economy Office of Shanghai Second Commercial Bureau and China
Economic Development Trust & Investment Corporation. Ms. Xiao joined Orient
Securities Co., Ltd. in 2001.
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Directors and Senior Management Profile

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Du Peng, aged 38, was appointed as a Non-executive Director of the
Company in February 2017. Mr. Du holds a Master degree in business from
Victoria University in Australia and a Bachelor degree in business from Beijing
Jiaotong University in China. Mr. Du has around ten years of experience in
investment banking and asset management in Hong Kong. Mr. Du has started his
career in CCB International Asset Management Limited since 2007 to present.
He currently serves as managing director of CCB International Asset Management

Limited.

Ms. Zheng Xiaosu, aged 33, was appointed as a Non-executive Director of the
Company in February 2017. Ms. Zheng holds a Bachelor degree in Mathematics,
Accounting and Financial Management from Loughborough University in the
United Kingdom. Ms. Zheng has around nine years of experience in investment
banking and asset management in Hong Kong. Ms. Zheng currently serves as

managing director of CCB International Asset Management Limited.

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Chang Tat Joel, aged 50, was appointed as an Independent non-executive
Director of the Company in September 2014. Mr. Chang has considerable
strategic, financial and advisory experience. He is the co-founder of AID Partners
Capital Limited and a founder of Genius Link Assets Management Limited, both
are private equity investment companies. He is an investment committee member
of AID Partners Capital Limited, and is responsible for its strategic investment
planning. He is also a member of the Australian Society of Certified Practising
Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He

obtained a Bachelor's degree in Economics from Monash University in 1990.
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Directors and Senior Management Profile
EENREREBAERN

Mr. Chang is an executive director and chief operating officer of Mason Group
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 0273) and an independent non-executive director
of Hailiang International Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 2336), companies are
listed on the main board of Stock Exchange. Mr. Chang was a non-executive
director of AID Life Science Holdings Limited (formerly known as Healthoo
International Holdings Limited) (Stock Code: 8088), a company listed on the
GEM board of the Stock Exchange and a non-executive director of Kong Sun
Holdings Limited (stock code: 0295) and was an independent non-executive
director of Kingsoft Corporation Limited (Stock Code: 3888), and was an
executive director and the chief financial officer of Orange Sky Golden Harvest
Entertainment (Holdings) Limited (Stock Code: 1132), companies listed on
the main board of Stock Exchange. He was an independent director of China
Mobile Games and Entertainment Group Limited, a company previously listed on

NASDAQ.

Mr. Wong Stacey Martin, aged 51, was appointed as an Independent non-
executive Director of the Company in September 2014. Mr. Wong holds
a Bachelor degree of Arts and a Master degree of Arts from University of
Cambridge, the United Kingdom. Mr. Wong has over 28 years of investment
banking experience and has extensive experience in fund raising transactions
of Hong Kong and Chinese companies and has participated in various kinds
of transactions of Blue-chips, Red-chips and H-shares and mergers and
acquisitions. Mr. Wong is currently the chief operating and risk officer of China
Tonghai International Financial Limited (previously known as China Oceanwide
International Financial Limited) (stock code: 0952), a company listed on the main
board of the Stock Exchange and non-executive director of Minshang Creative
Technology Holdings Limited (Stock Code:1632), a company listed on the
main board of the Stock Exchange. Prior to joining China Tonghai International
Financial Limited, Mr. Wong was the chief operating officer of CMBC
International Holdings Limited (a subsidiary of China Minsheng Banking Corp.,
Ltd) since | April 2015. Mr. Wong was the head of investment banking of Piper
Jaffray Asia Limited (formally named as Goldbond Capital (Asia) Limited) and
also headed Bear Stearns Asia Limited's corporate finance team. He has spent
over 10 years with Peregrine Group, with his last position as executive director

of BNP Paribas Peregrine Capital Limited.
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Directors and Senior Management Profile

Mr. Tso Siu Lun Alan, aged 35, was appointed as an Independent non-executive
Director of the Company in May 2017. Mr. Tso graduated from University of
Cambridge with a Bachelor and a Master degrees in Land Economy, majoring
in real estate finance and property law. Mr. Tso is the founder of the China
Mini Storage Limited (“CMS"). Prior to establishing CMS, based in Beijing,
Mr. Tso worked as an investment director of the Everbright Ashmore China
Real Estate Fund, a joint venture offshore real estate fund sponsored by the
China Everbright Limited (stock code: 0165), a company listed on the main
board of the Stock Exchange and the Ashmore Group PLC (LSE stock code:
ASHM). Previously, based in Hong Kong, Mr. Tso also worked at Merrill Lynch's
Global Commercial Real Estate team where he was principally involved in
the firm's principal investing activities in Asian real estate. He also worked
at the HSBC's Global Capital Markets — ABS & Structured Bonds Team
where he was principally involved in the bank’s securitisation business. As for
community services, Mr. Tso has been invited to become the [0th and the
I'1th session member of the Beijing Youth Federation, the 3rd and 4th session
member of the Beijing Overseas Friendship Association Youth Committee,
the 4th session council member of the Shanxi Province Overseas Friendship
Association, the 8th session council member of the Beijing Haidian District
Overseas Friendship Association, the Innovation Committee Vice Chairman
of the HK Professionals (Beijing) Association, the Beijing Group Convener of
China Real Estate Chamber of Commerce (“CRECC") Hong Kong Chapter,
and the board member of the Self-Storage Association (“SSAA"). Also, he has
been appointed as a part-time lecturer for the Asia-Pacific Commercial Real
Estate Academy (“APCREA"), an educational institution sponsored by the
CRECC's China Commercial Real Estate Commission. Mr. Tso is currently an
independent non-executive director of Shi Shi Services Limited (Formerly known
as Hang Sheng Holdings Limited and Kong Shum Union Property Management
(Holding) Limited) (stock code: 8181), a company listed on the GEM board of
the Stock Exchange, and a responsible officer at Acer King Capital (Hong Kong)
Limited (CE No: BII746) for the SFC regulated activities of Type 4 and Type 9.
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Directors and Senior Management Profile
EENREREBAERN

Mr. Fei John Xiang, aged 47, holds a Master of Business Administration degree
from Columbia Business School in the United States of America. He is currently
the chief executive officer of Wintech Group Limited. Mr. Fei has more than
20 vyears of extensive experience in investment banking and securities fields.
Prior to joining Wintech Group Limited, he was the chief executive officer of
Kim Eng Securities (Hong Kong) Limited and held senior positions in various
international investment banks, including Merrill Lynch (Asia Pacific) Limited,

Deutsche Bank AG, Hong Kong Branch and ICBC International Holdings Limited.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Lam Suk Ping, was appointed as an Executive Director of the Company in
June 2011 and resigned as an Executive Director and continued to act as Chief
Financial Officer to oversee the accounts department of the Group in July 2017.
Mr. Lam holds a degree of Master of Business Administration from the University
of Hull and a degree of Master of Corporate Governance from the Open
University of Hong Kong. He has over 35 years of experience in auditing, finance
and accounting, investment and business management. Mr. Lam is currently
an independent non-executive director of Mingyuan Medicare Development
Company Limited (stock code: 0233), a company listed on the main board of the

Stock Exchange.

Ms. Lai Pik Chi Peggy, was appointed as the Company Secretary of the
Company in July 2017. Ms. Lai is an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants, a fellow member of Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales. Ms. Lai obtained a Master degree of Business Administration from the
University of Manchester in June 2010, and has over 20 years of experience in
auditing, accounting, company secretarial, financial management and corporate
finance. Ms. Lai is currently an independent non-executive director of KPa-BM
Holdings Limited (stock code: 2663), a company listed on the main board of the

Stock Exchange.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

OCI International Holdings Limited (the “Company”, “We" and “Our", and
together with its subsidiaries the “Group”) hereby presents this Environmental,
Social and Governance report (“ESG Report”) for the year ended 31 December
2018 (“Year 2018"). The board of directors of the Company is responsible for
our Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG") strategy and reporting. We
have identified relevant ESG issues and assess their materiality on our businesses
as well as our stakeholders, through reviewing our operations and holding
internal discussions. To comply with the requirements set forth in Appendix 27
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide of the Main Board Listing
Rules issued by the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (the "ESG Guide"), disclosures
relating to the material ESG issues identified have been included in this ESG

Report pursuant to the General Disclosure requirements of the ESG Guide.

A.  ENVIRONMENTAL
Al Emissions
The Company acts as an investment holding company. During Year
2018, its subsidiaries were principally engaged in securities trading
and investments, asset management, provision of financial advisory
services and trading of wines. During the year ended 31 December
2017, the Company sold its entire interest in the operation of
healthcare products and pharmaceutical products, as a result, the
Group did not produce any production-related emission, hazardous
or non-hazardous wastes or emissions produced by cars in Year
2018. Our impact of emissions during Year 2018 on the environment

was not significant.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE -HERERRE

A summary on the relevant emissions related key performance
indicators of the Company (“KPIs") for Year 2018 (with 2017

comparative data) is disclosed as follows:

TR \FARRENFHEBIR
FEERIIBRAREDHR
(ER-Z—tFUBET)REN

T

2018 2017
Types of Emissions BERE Rl —E-N\F S
Nitrogen Oxides (NOx) AALY(NO,) (REEH) NIL 73.62 kg
(produced by cars) TEA 7362
Sulphur Oxides (SOx) Haty o, (mAEES) NIL 0.11 kg
(produced by cars) ~ER 011 Af
Respiratory Suspended Particles/ ARABFR T/ S
Particulate Matter (RSP/PM) (RSP/PM) (FRIREEAE) NIL 5.44 kg
(produced by cars) ~ER 544
Carbon Dioxide (CO») —afbhx (CO,)
(produced by business air travel by (RESHERERBEL) 36,431 kg 27914 kg
employees) 36,431 DT 27914 AT
Carbon Dioxide (CO2) Z &Lk (CO,) (RENES) 13,833 kg 902,021 kg
(produced by electricity) 13,833 2T 902,021 AfT
Carbon Dioxide (CO) —&HR (CO,) (RAEEA) NIL 17,293 kg
(produced by cars) TEA 17293 A
Methane (CHs) (produced by cars) Bt (CH,) (RTEES) NIL 27.55 kg
TER 255 AT
Nitrous Oxide (N20) SALTA(NO) (RTEEL) NIL 1,931 kg
(produced by cars) ~EHR 1931 AfT

For the security trading and investments, asset management,
provision of financial advisory service and wine trading businesses,
our Group did not have significant air emissions or other discharges,
besides the non-hazardous solid wastes generated in our offices and
warehouses during our operations. Principles of reducing, reuse, and

recycle were applied in minimising waste generation.
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Use of resources

Our Group is committed to conserving resources in our business
activities, including use of energy, water, paper, and raw materials
for production. We aim to reduce the use of resources and
corresponding carbon footprint through adoption of various green
initiatives. Green awareness is promoted among employees in order
to drive their behavioural changes. Green measures on deploying
energy-efficient equipment and adoption of resource conserving
process are implemented in pursuing our commitment. Awareness
is promoted among our employees, and various green measures
are implemented in the office area, including printing paper on both
sides and reusing paper printed on one side, switching off lights and
air-conditioning for rooms and computers not in use and setting

room temperature at 25.5C.

A summary on the relevant use of resources related KPIs of the
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Group for Year 2018 (with 2017 comparative data) is disclosed as REGHE(ERA-_Z—tFUR
follows: T )WENT :

2018 2017

Use of Resources EE¥ER —E-N\E “E+F

17,510 kWh 907,973 kWh

Electricity W 17510 FER 907973 TR

N/A 5,149 m?

Water K TEHR 5,149 3 F K

327 kg 1,266 kg

Paper AR NIAF 1,266 AT

Packaging BE

N/A 14,916 kg

— Aluminium foil —RSE A rEA 14916 AT

N/A 3263 kg

— Plastic (PVC) -~ ZERB(BRELRE) ~ERA 3263 AT

N/A 1,965 kg

~ Heat shrinkable film — B RIR TER 1,965 AT
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A3

Our Group experienced a significant reduce in electricity, water,
paper and packaging consumption during the reporting year due to

the termination of the production segment.

The Group's existing businesses are not expected to pose a
significant use of water or packaging materials and hence has no

material impact on the environment.

The environment and natural resources

Our Group aimed at monitoring possible environmental impacts of
our business operations and investment portfolio, and to implement
measures to control the adverse impacts, in order to generate long-

term values to our stakeholders as well as the whole community.

In order to implement the policy, we monitor our impact on the
environment and natural resources. Various sources of pollution,
including land, water, noise, and air, are monitored by our
management. If necessary, environmental impact assessment is
performed, in order to assess the environmental risk of the business
activities. Necessary measures are taken to control the risk and

comply with national/local laws and regulations.
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B. SOCIAL

Bl

Employment

Employees are the most valuable assets of our Group. We strive to
attract and retain talents and reconcile economical imperatives with
well-beings, aiming at reinforcing satisfaction, loyalty and commitment
of human capital. In order to enhance our governance in human
resources management, our directors directly involved in governing
the recruitment, resignation, termination, training, promotion,
working hours, rest periods, discipline, other benefits and welfare, in

accordance with the relevant laws and regulations.

The salary and benefit levels of the Group's employees are reviewed
annually based on the performance of employees. Our Group
established a compensation practice taking into account the overall
economic outlook, relevant external compensation levels as well
as the requirement of internal fairness. A wide range of benefits
including comprehensive medical and retirement schemes are also
provided to employees. Social, sporting and recreational activities are

arranged for the employees in achieving work-life balance.

We committed that nobody should be treated less favourably on his/
her personal characteristics such as gender, pregnancy, marital status,
disability, family status, and race. Opportunities for employment,
training and career development are equally opened to all qualified

employees.
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Health and safety
Our Group is committed to provide and maintain a safe, healthy, and
hygienic workplace for all employees, and all other persons likely to

be affected by our operations and activities.

Health and safety standards are given prime consideration in our
operations and regulatory compliance is strongly upheld. Employees
are committed to deliver safety initiatives in reducing the potential
danger in workplace. Considering the occupational risk, proper

protective equipment and guidance are provided to the employees.

Appropriate training, education, and evacuation exercise are
organised regularly. Employees are encouraged to report unmanaged

workplace hazard and to suggest improvement on workplace safety.

Development and training

To accomplish the corporate objectives as well as personnel
development of employees, our Group encourages and supports our
employees in continuous personal and professional training. Training
enhances employees’ competencies and potentials in performing
their jobs effectively and efficiently and leads to long-term mutual

success of employees and the Group.

Depending on operational and management requirements, and skills
required, we committed to creating an environment of continuous
improvement through providing in-house peer learning and on-the-
job coaching. We also encourage our staff to attend external training

courses and seminars.
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Labour standards

Our Group prohibits the engagement of any child and forced labour
in any of our operations and services. Children who are identified
by the local labour law should not be employed, as they reserve the
right to pursue education in their childhood. Labour who is forced to
work by means of physical punishment, abuse, involuntary servitude,
peonage or trafficking is strictly forbidden. We will also avoid
engaging with suppliers and contractors that are known to employ

child or forced labour in their products or services.

The Group guarantees employees the right to rest and vacation
according to law. Employees enjoy legal holidays and legal leave,
marriage leave, compassionate leave, paid annual leave and other

leave entitlements.

Supply chain management

Our Group encourages suppliers to maintain a high standard on
business ethics and conducts, with managing the environmental
and social issues arising from their business operations. During the
supplier selection and contract drafting processes, the following
factors are considered in achieving “Green Procurement” on the

Group's supply chain:

* Use of environmental-friendly resources in provision of

products/services;
e Effort on limiting emission of pollutants;

*  Responsible management of environmental impacts;
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¢ Compliance with local environmental and social law and

regulations;

d Historical incidents on bribery, corruption, and money

laundering;

®  Existence of discrimination due to ethnicity, gender, age,

disability or marital status on supplier's recruitment;

o Provision of fair wages and all other legally mandated benefits;

i Provision of a safe working environment which complies with

local laws or practices;

¢ Community investment initiatives and effort.

Product responsibility

Responsible investment policy

The Group realises the materiality of environmental, social and
governance factors in affecting the performance of business, as
well as the long term impact on the surrounding communities. The
investment may impact the local community, for example on living

condition of local citizens, labour treatment, and natural habitats.

Hence, in the process of making investment decisions, factors of
ESG are integrated into our investment analysis and decision making
process. As a responsible investor, we strive to incorporate ESG
insight in managing our investment portfolio, in order to control

undesired risk and maximise shareholders’ value in long-term basis.

OCI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Product responsibility policy

Our Group highly values the safety and quality of our wine products.
We developed strong governance structure in monitoring the
quality of wine products, with strict compliance with the national/
local laws and standards. Facilities, warehouse, hygienic condition,
quality control and inspection procedures are examined on a regular
basis. All employees across the value chain will continuously achieve

various quality objectives.

Data privacy policy

Protecting the security and privacy of stakeholders' personal data is
important to our Group. We ensure compliance with the statutory
requirements to meet a high standard of security and confidentiality
of personal data privacy protection. The following data protection

principles are adopted in preserving proper security and use of data:

*  We only collect personal data that are relevant and required

for our businesses;

*  We will not share personal data to any entity that is not a
member of our Group without consent unless it is required by

law or it was previously notified;

*  We maintain appropriate data collection, storage, and
processing practices and security measures to protect to

protect against unauthorised access to personal information.
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Anti-corruption

Employees at all levels are expected to behave with integrity,
impartiality and honesty. Our Group does not tolerate corruption,
bribery, extortion, money-laundering and other fraudulent activities
in connection with any of our business operations that compromise
the interest of our shareholders, investors, customers, and other

stakeholders.

Our Group has issued relevant whistle-blowing procedures in
setting up a private communication channel on reporting suspicious
fraudulent actions to the Group's management directly. The conduct
of employee is closely monitored by management in preventing
wrong-doings. Ongoing review of the effectiveness of the internal
control systems is conducted on a regular basis in preventing the

occurrence of corruption activities.

Community investment

As a responsible company, we aim at serving and strengthening
the wider community, and encouraging employees and other
stakeholders in supporting the community. Our Group understands
well of the importance for making positive contribution to the
community where it operates, and considers community benefits
as one of its social responsibility. We encourage our employee to
actively participate in public conventions, conference, exhibitions
and events with a particular focus on community investment,

sponsorships and charitable contributions.

Selection of supporting charities involves several considerations. We
evaluate the vision and background of requesting charities in aligning
with our Group's. Charities engaged in unethical activities, and those
in unclear financial position, and conflict of interest with corporation/

individual will not be considered.

OCI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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The directors of OCI International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) present
the annual report and the audited consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2018 (the “Year").

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal activities of
the Company's subsidiaries are set out in Note 30 to the consolidated financial

statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS
The results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group") for
the Year are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income on page 83.

The directors do not recommend any payment of a dividend for the Year (2017:

Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review and future developments of the Group for the Year are
contained in the Chairman’ s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis
section of this annual report. Key sources of estimation uncertainty, capital risk
management and financial risk management are disclosed in pages 156 to 157
and pages 203 to 219 of this annual report. There were no important events

affecting the Group that have occurred since the end of the Year.

An analysis of the Group's performance during the year ended 3| December
2018 using financial performance indicators is provided in the section headed

“Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 8 to 28 of this annual report.

In addition, details regarding the Group's performance by reference to
environmental and social-related key performance indicators and policies, as well
as compliance with relevant laws and regulations which have a significant impact
on the Company are provided in the paragraph headed “Environmental, Social

and Governance Report” on pages 53 to 62 of this annual report.

Detailed information of the Group's corporate governance is contained in the
section headed “Corporate Governance Report” on pages 29 to 47 of this

annual report.
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the

last five financial years are set out on page 232.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group during

the Year are set out in Note |3 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of movements during the Year in the Company's share capital are set out

in Note 24 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

The Company's reserves available for distributions to shareholders as at 3|
December 2018 comprised the share premium plus retained profits with an
aggregate amount of approximately HK$313.01 million (2017: HK$373.00

million).

DIRECTORS
The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) during the Year and up to the

date of this report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Feng Hai (Chairman)

Mr. Li Yi (Chief Executive Officer)

Ms. Xiao Qing (Chief Operating Officer)

Ms. Chan Mee Sze (resigned on | September 2018)

Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Du Peng
Ms. Zheng Xiaosu

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Chang Tat Joel

Mr. Wong Stacey Martin

Mr. Tso Siu Lun Alan

Mr. Lam Man Sum Albert (retired on 7 May 2018)
Mr. Fei John Xiang (appointed on 18 May 2018)

OCI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Biographical details of the Directors and senior management as at the date of
this report are set out from pages 48 to 52 of this annual report. Details of
Directors’ remuneration are set out in Note 10 to the consolidated financial

statements.

Mr. Fei John Xiang shall retire as director and be eligible for re-election in

accordance with Article 86(3) at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

In accordance with Article 87(1) and 87(2) of the Company's Articles of
Association, Ms. Xiao Qing, Ms. Zheng Xiaosu and Mr. Chang Tat Joel shall be
retired and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming

annual general meeting.

Each of the Executive Directors, namely Mr. Feng Hai, Mr. Li Yi and Ms. Xiao
Qing have entered into a service agreement with the Company for a term
of three years commencing from 6 July 2017. Each of the Non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Du Peng and Ms. Zheng Xiaosu, has entered into a service
agreement with the Company for a term of three years commencing from |7
February 2017. The Independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Wong
Stacey Martin, Mr. Chang Tat Joel, Mr. Tso Siu Lun Alan and Mr. Fei John Xiang,
have entered into a service agreement with the Company for a term of three
years commencing from 2 September 2017, 2 September 2017, 16 May 2017
and 18 May 2018 respectively.

All Directors” appointments will be subject to normal retirement and re-election
at the annual general meeting by the shareholders of the Company pursuant to

the articles of association of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract which is not determinable by the
Group within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory

compensation.
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CHANGES IN DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

Since 6 July 2018, Mr. Wong Stacey Martin, the Independent non-executive
Director of the Company has been appointed as non-executive Director of
Minshang Creative Technology Holdings Limited (formerly known as Food Wise
Holdings Limited).

Save as disclosed above, there had not been any other changes to Directors'
information as required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(l) of the Listing

Rules.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITION IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2018, so far as is known to the Directors, none of the
Directors and the chief executive of the Company and their associates had any
interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of Laws of Hong Kong) (“SFO™))
which were to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange") pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they were taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) or which were required,
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to
therein or which were required, pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers of the Listing Rules (“Model Code"),
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY

At no time during the Year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party
to any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means
of acquisition of shares in, or debt securities (including debentures) of, the
Company or any associated corporations, and none of the Directors, or their
spouses or children under age of 18, had any right to subscribe for the shares or

debt securities of the Company or had exercised any such right during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS

There was no contract of significance to which the Company, its holding
company, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the

Year or at any time during the Year.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

So far as is known to Directors, as at 31 December 2018, the persons or

companies (other than Directors or chief executive of the Company) who had

interests or short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
which fall to be disclosed to the Company under Part XV of the SFO, or which

were recorded in the register of substantial shareholders required to be kept by

the Company under section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Long positions in the ordinary shares of the Company (the “Share”) as at 3|

December 2018:

Directors’ Report
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Number percentage
Name of Shareholders Capacity of Shares  of shareholding
BRREH 54 ROBE RESOEILL
Golden Power Group Limited (Note /) Beneficial Owner 314,000,000 29.63%
Golden Power Group Limited (#7it1) ERBEEA
East Milestone Company Limited (Note /) Interest of controlled corporation 314,000,000 29.63%
ROBERBROR (M) REHEE RS
Orient Ruiyi (Shanghai) Investment Interest of controlled corporation 314,000,000 29.63%
Management Co., Limited (Note /)
RNhEE(LB)REERARAR (M) REHEE RS
Shanghai Orient Securities Capital Investment Interest of controlled corporation 314,000,000 29.63%
Co., Ltd (Note /)
LBRTEFETREBRRA(ME ) REHEE RS
RABHRNDBRA B (Note /) Interest of controlled corporation 314,000,000 29.63%
RABFBRODERARHE 1) R E S
Central Huijin Investment Ltd. (Note 2) Interest of controlled corporation 210,860,000 19.89%
hRESRERREERA (M 2) R EE S
China Construction Bank Corporation (Note 2) Interest of controlled corporation 210,860,000 19.89%
PERZRRITRNERRA(MEZ2) REHEE RS
CCB International Group Holdings Limited (Note 2) Interest of controlled corporation 210,860,000 19.89%
RTEREEZRRERAR (Mit2) Rt EE S
CCB Financial Holdings Limited (Note 2) Interest of controlled corporation 210,860,000 19.89%
BOTSRERBRAR(MEZ2) R EE S
CCB International (Holdings) Limited (Note 2) Interest of controlled corporation 210,860,000 19.89%
RIREBR (BB AR AR (M 2) SR EE RS
CCBI Investments Limited (Note 2) Interest of controlled corporation 210,860,000 19.89%
CCBI Investments Limited (#7£2) REthxERER
Cheer Hope Holdings Limited (Note 2) Beneficial owner 210,860,000 19.89%
Cheer Hope Holdings Limited (f7#2) ExBAA
REEBRZRARDA
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Notes:

RAEBFHRMHBERAB (Orient Securities Co., Ltd.) directly holds 100% of the
equity interest in Shanghai Orient Securities Capital Investment Co., Ltd., which
in turn holds 100% of the equity interest in Orient Ruiyi (Shanghai) Investment
Management Co., Ltd., which in turn holds 100% of the issued share capital of East
Milestone Company Limited, which in turn holds 100% of the issued share capital of
Golden Power Group Limited. Therefore, 375 & % 8% {7 5 MR A (Orient Securities
Co., Ltd.), Shanghai Orient Securities Capital Investment Co. Ltd., Orient Ruiyi
(Shanghai) Investment Management Co., Ltd. and East Milestone Company Limited
are taken to be interested in the number of Shares held by Golden Power Group

Limited pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.

Central Huijin Investment Ltd. directly holds 57.11% of the equity interest in China
Construction Bank Corporation, which in turn holds 100% of the issued share
capital of CCB International Group Holdings Limited, which in turn holds 100%
of the issued share capital of CCB Financial Holdings Limited, which in turn holds
100% of the issued share capital of CCB International (Holdings) Limited, which
in turn holds 100% of the issued share capital of CCBI Investments Limited, which
in turn holds 100% of the issued share capital of Cheer Hope Holdings Limited.
Therefore, Central Huijin Investment Ltd.,, China Construction Bank Corporation,
CCB International Group Holdings Limited, CCB Financial Holdings Limited, CCB
International (Holdings) Limited and CCBI Investments Limited are taken to be
interested in the number of Shares held by Cheer Hope Holdings Limited pursuant
to Part XV of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, no person, other than the

Directors, whose interests are set out herein this report, had registered an

interest or short position in the shares or underlying Shares that was required to

be recorded pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A new share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme") has been adopted by
the Company pursuant to a shareholder's resolution passed on |7 December
2012. The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to reward any Directors and
employees of the Group, any director or employee of a company or entity in
which the Group has invested in and any advisors (professional or otherwise),
consultants, distributors, contractors, suppliers, agents, customers, business
partners, joint venture business partners, promoters, any director or employee
of any service partners of any member of the Group who the Board considers,
in its sole discretion, have contributed to or will contribute to the Group (the
“Participants”) and to encourage Participants to work towards enhancing the
value of the Company and its Shares for the benefit of the Company and its

Shareholders as a whole.

The maximum number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
options granted to each grantee under the Share Option Scheme (including
both exercised and outstanding options) in any [2-month period shall not
(when aggregated with any Shares subject to options granted during such period
under any other share option scheme(s) of the Company other than those
options granted pursuant to specific approval by the Shareholders in a general
meeting) exceed 1% of the Shares in issue for the time being, unless further
grant of options being approved by Shareholders in general meeting with such
Participant and his associates abstaining from voting. Where any grant of options
to a substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive director of the
Company, or any of their respective associates, would result in the Shares issued
and to be issued upon exercise of all options already granted and to be granted
(including options exercised, cancelled or outstanding) to such person in the
[2-month period up to and including the date of such grant (i) representing in
aggregate over 0.1% of the Shares in issue on the date of such grant; and (ii)
having an aggregate value, based on the closing price of the Shares as stated in
the daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the date of grant,
in excess of HK$5 million, such further grant of options shall be subject to prior

approval by resolution of the Shareholders (voting by way of poll).
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An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share Option
Scheme at any time during the period to be determined and notified by the
Board to the grantee at the time of grant of the option which shall not expire
later than 10 vyears from the date of grant. The Share Option Scheme does not
specify a minimum period for which an option must be held nor a performance
target which must be achieved before an option can be exercised. However,
the rules of the Share Option Scheme provide that the Board may determine, at
its discretion, such term(s) on the grant of an option, which decision may vary
on a case by case basis. A remittance in favour of the Company of HK$1.00 as
consideration for the grant of option is payable by the grantee upon acceptance
of the grant of option within a period of 28 days from the date of grant. Such

remittance is not refundable in any circumstances.

The exercise price shall be determined by the Board in its absolute discretion
but in any event shall not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the
Shares as stated in the daily quotations sheets by the Stock Exchange on the
date of grant which must be a business day; (i) the average closing price of the
Shares as stated in the daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange
for the five business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the

nominal value of the Shares.

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of 10 years
commencing on the adoption date i.e. |7 December 2012. The provisions of the
Share Option Scheme shall remain in full force and effect in all other respects

until 16 December 2022,

No options have been granted under the Share Option Scheme since the

adoption of the Share Option Scheme and up to the date of this report.

As at the date of this report, there is no option granted or outstanding under
any of the Company's share option scheme. The total number of securities
available for issue under the share option scheme mandate limit is 105,974,992,

representing 10% of the issued shares as at the date of this report.

CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES, OPTIONS OR OTHER SIMILAR RIGHTS
The Company has no outstanding convertible securities, options or similar rights

in issue as at 31 December 2018.
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BORROWINGS
As at 3| December 2018, the Group did not have any secured short-term
borrowing and the unsecured short-term borrowing amounted to HK$352.66

million (2017: HK$234.00 million).

ADVANCE TO AN ENTITY

Details of the relevant advance to an entity, including details of the balances, the
nature of events or transactions giving rise to the amounts, the identity of the
debtor group, interest rate, repayment terms and collateral are disclosed in the

Management Discussion and Analysis section of this annual report.

DONATIONS

For the Year, the Group had not made any charitable and other donations.

RETIREMENT SCHEME

The Group provides a defined contribution retirement scheme under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “Scheme”) in Hong Kong. Under the
Scheme, employer and employees are each required to make contributions
to the scheme at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of
monthly relevant income of HK$30,000 and a minimum level of relevant income
of HK$7,100 for the employees’ contribution. The Group's employees in the
PRC, participate in a defined contribution central pension scheme operated by

the local municipal government.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS
No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or
any substantial part of the business of the Company and the Group was entered

into or existed during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

There were no competing business of which a director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or in-directly, subsisted at the end of the year
or at any time during the year ended 3| December 2018 which is required to be

disclosed pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules.
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INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the Independent non-executive
Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the Independent non-executive

Directors are independent.

EMOLUMENT POLICY
The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the
remuneration committee of the Company (the “Remuneration Committee™) on

the basis of their merit, qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are recommended by the Remuneration
Committee, having regard to the Company's operating results, individual
performance, time, commitment, duties and responsibilities, contribution to the

Group, comparable market statistics and prevailing marketing practice and trends.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS
There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company's Articles of
Association, or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company

to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS
During the Year, the largest supplier of the Group by itself and together with the
next four suppliers accounted for about 28.3% and 50.4%, respectively, of the

Group's purchases.

During the Year, the largest customer of the Group by itself and together with
the next four customers accounted for about 65.6% and 18.5% of the Group's

turnover from provision of asset management services and sales of good.

At no time during the Year did a Director, an associate of a Director or a
shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors own
more than 5% of the Company's share capital) have an interest in any of the

Group's five largest suppliers.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION

The related party transactions which amount to HK$1.5 million as set out in
Note 29 to the consolidated financial statements fall within the definition of
connected transaction or continuing connected transaction under Chapter [4A

of the Listing Rules.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SECURITIES
During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased,

sold or redeemed any of the listed securities of the Company.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT
Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of its directors, as at the date of this report, the Company has

maintained sufficient public float as required under the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year and years ended
31 December 2016 and 31 December 2017 were audited by Crowe (HK) CPA
Limited and the consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2015 were audited by Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu.
A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming annual general meeting of the

Company to re-appoint Crowe (HK) CPA Limited as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

OCI International Holdings Limited

Feng Hai

Executive Director (Chairman)

28 February 2019
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B % B R

Crowe

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF OCI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of OCI International
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to
as the "Group”) set out on pages 83 to 231, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2018, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for
the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including

a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2018, and
of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“the Code”) together with any ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements in the Cayman
Islands, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have

obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the

consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,

and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Impairment assessment of debt investments

Refer to Notes 3(a), 14 and 26(b)(i) to the consolidated financial statements and

the accounting policies on pages 120 to 129.

The Key Audit Matter

HREELEE

As at 31 December 2018, gross debt investments at amortised
cost and its related loss allowance amounted to HK$416,952,000
and HK$54,282,000 respectively.

Impairment of debt investments at amortised cost is subjective
area due to the level of judgement applied by management in

determining loss allowance.

The Group has adopted HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”
("HKFRS 9") since | January 2018 and developed a new

impairment loss model for financial assets.

The determination of loss allowance using the expected credit
loss model is subject to a number of key parameters and
assumptions, including the identification of loss stages, estimates
of probability of default (“PD"), loss given default (“LGD"),
exposures at default ("EAD") and discount rate, adjustments
for forward-looking information and other adjustment factors.
Management judgement is involved in the selection of those

parameters and the application of the assumptions.

In particular, the determination of the loss allowance is heavily
dependent on the external macro environment and the Group's
internal credit risk management strategy. The expected credit
losses are derived from estimates including the Group's historical
losses, internal and external credit grading and other adjustment

factors.
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How the matter was addressed in our audit
BMRERTREEHSENG
Our audit procedures to address the impairment assessment of

debt investments included the following:

. assessing the design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of key controls over the approval,
recording and monitoring of debt investments measured
at amortised cost, the credit grading process and the

measurement of impairment losses;

. assessing the reliability of the expected credit loss model
used by management in determining loss allowance,
including assessing the appropriateness of the key
parameters and assumptions in the expected credit loss
model, including the identification of loss stages, PD,
LGD, EAD, discount rate, adjustments for forward-looking

information and other management adjustments;

. assessing the completeness and accuracy of data used for
the key parameters in the expected credit loss model.
For key parameters derived from internal data relating
to original investment or loan agreements, we compared
the total balances of the investment or loan grading
report, which contain information used by management
to assess impairment losses, with the general ledger and
compared individual investment or loan information with
the underlying investment or loan agreements and other
related documentation to assess the presentation of the
information in the investment or loan grading report. For
key parameters derived from external data, we selected
samples to inspect the accuracy of such data by comparing

them with public resources;
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The Key Audit Matter
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Management also exercises judgement in determining the
quantum of LGD based on a range of factors. These include
available remedies for recovery, the financial situation of the
borrower, the recoverable amount of collateral, the seniority
of the claim and the existence and cooperativeness of other
creditors. The enforceability, timing and means of realisation of
collateral can also have an impact on the recoverable amount of
collateral and, therefore, the amount of impairment losses as at

the end of the reporting period.

We identified impairment of debt investments measured at
amortised cost as a key audit matter because of the inherent
uncertainty and management judgement involved and because of

their significance to the financial results of the Group.
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for key parameters involving judgement, critically assessing
input parameters by seeking evidence from external
sources and comparing to the Group's internal records
including historical loss experience and type of collateral.
As part of these procedures, we challenged management's
revisions to estimates and input parameters compared
with prior period and on transition to the new accounting
standard and considered the consistency of judgement.
We compared the economic factors used in the models
with market information to assess whether they were

aligned with market and economic development;

for key parameters used in the expected credit loss
model, assessing the accuracy of input data by comparing

the input data with original documents;

evaluating the validity of management's assessment on
whether the credit risk of debt investments at amortised
cost, or have not, increased significantly since initial
recognition and whether debt investments at amortised
cost are credit-impaired. We analysed the portfolio by
industry sector to select samples in industries more
vulnerable to the current economic situation with
reference to other borrowers with potential credit risk.
We checked the overdue information, making enquiries
of the key management about the borrowers' business
operations, checking borrowers’ financial information
and researching market information about borrowers'

businesses;

for debt investments at amortised cost are credit-
impaired, evaluating management's assessment of the
value of any asset collateral held by comparison with
market prices. We also evaluated the timing and means of
realisation of collateral, evaluated the forecast cash flows,
challenged the viability of the Group's recovery plans and
evaluated other credit enhancements that are integral to

the contract terms; and

evaluating whether the disclosures on impairment of
debt investments at amortised cost meet the disclosure

requirements in the prevailing accounting standards.
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INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S REPORT THEREON

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the annual report, but
does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor's report

thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other

information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to

report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or

error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible
for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease

operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their

responsibilities for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B % B R

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person

for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of

these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional

judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

0 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the override of internal

control,

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the

Group's internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by

the directors.
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0 Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or

conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a

manner that achieves fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group

audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including

any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to

bear on our independence and, where applicable, related safeguards.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B % B R

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh

the public interest benefits of such communication.

Crowe (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 28 February 2019

Yau Hok Hung
Practising Certificate Number P0491 1
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income A
meEakEMMEzEWER

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HEZZ-\FT-A=+-BLFE

NOTE 2018 2017
P &£ —B-N\F —2—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER THERT
Continuing operations HERERY
Revenue Wa 5
Sales of goods HEEm 27,145 50,033
Revenue from financial advisory services R B B 5 ARG 2 U as — 3,420
Revenue from asset management REBEEEEE WA 51,907 -
Income from securities trading and investments REEEERERE 2z 45,562 34,450
124,614 87,903
Cost of sales HEKA (38,791) (45,700)
85,823 42,203
Other income HgA 697 64
Other gains and losses HithBE 6 = (414)
Selling and distribution costs HEREHER (144) (181)
General and administrative expenses —MRRITH X (69,770) (41,026)
Loss allowance on debt investments ERREEERE (54,282) —
(Loss) profit from operations REEK(ER)EF (37,676) 646
Finance costs BBER 7(a) (22,579) (7,545)
Share of loss of joint venture EEEERRIER (158) (427)
Loss before taxation BATEE (60,413) (7,326)
Income tax expenses FfEH 8 (419) (412)
Loss for the year rEERBEREXY
from continuing operations &8 7 (60,832) (7,738)
Discontinued operations DRIELEXK
Profit for the year from discontinued AEFERILEER
operations ikl 9 — 50,322
(Loss) profit for the year AFEE(BHR) RN (60,832) 42,584
REEBRZRERD A
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P,

meRERkEMEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HEZZ-\FT-A=+-BLFE

. Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

NOTE 2018 2017
Pl &£ ZB-N\F —TtF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT TRT
Other comprehensive income (expenses) Hts2EBA (XH)
[tems that may be reclassified subsequently Higmeges» 8
to profit or loss: ZHEHZER
Exchange differences arising on translation MBI ERESE
of foreign operations ZERER 5 (1,312)
Release of translation reserve upon disposal HE—RRBARE
of a subsidiary FRIRIE I = (52,026)
5 (53,338)
Total comprehensive expenses for the year FEEREX AR (60,827) (10,754)
(Loss) profit for the year attributable to: RTATEEREE
(1R &7 :
Equity shareholders of the Company AREREERE (60,792) 42,584
Non-controlling interests s (40) —
(60,832) 42,584
Total comprehensive expenses for the year MWTATERERFEERE
attributable to: X
Equity shareholders of the Company ARAERRER (60,787) (10,754)
Non-controlling interests gD (40) —
(60,827) (10,754)
(Loss) earnings per share BR(G8R)EA 12
Basic and diluted EAREE
— Continuing operations - RERBEEES HK(5.74) cents HK(0.73) cents
(5.74) #Al (0.73) 7L
- Discontinued operations - REBRILBEER HK4.75 cents
— 4.75 Al
HK(5.74) cents HK4.02 cents
(5.74) Al 4,02 74

The notes on pages 90 to 231 form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e B AR R &

As at 31 December 2018
RZE—\F+=ZA=+—H

NOTE 2018 2017
P &E ZE-N\F “B—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT FET

Non-current assets ERBDEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BEREE I3 1,848 2,502
Debt investments at amortised cost BB A THE BHRE 14 103,015 -
Held-to-maturity investments REIHBARE 14 = 234,000
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss ERAFEFTABZZEMEE 19 40,228 —
Interest in joint venture REERAIMNER 15 1,415 1,573
Rental deposits HERE 18 1,968 1968

148,474 240,043
Current assets RBEE
Inventories BE 16 17,273 12,790
Trade receivables e B 5 8RIE 17 1,635 10,451
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables Be BNFER

AU RIR 8 19,398 32,776

Debt investments at amortised cost REHM A BBIRE 14 259,655 -
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss BATFEFABRZZ SRHEE 19 173,919 82,940
Cash and cash equivalents ReRE&SEEE 20 185,058 254,497

656,938 393,454
Current liabilities RBAE
Trade payables ENESHE&RE — 3
Contract liabilities aHER 5(b) 15,671 =
Accruals and other payables JE ST HRIA R E A FE AT BRI 21 30,747 11,364
Taxation payable JERTiIE 558 442
Obligations under repurchase agreements BEBRTHOERE 22 78,918 -
Borrowings fa5 23 352,657 234,000

478,551 245,809
Net current assets RBEERE 178,387 147,645
NET ASSETS BERE 326,86 387,688

REEBRZRERD A
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. Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

A BB AR R

As at 3| December 2018
n-E-\F+=-A=1+—-H

NOTE 2018 2017
CEE —T-t%
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET THET
CAPITAL AND RESERVES eSSy

Share capital A 24 10,598 10,598
Reserves E 316,442 377,229

Total equity attributable to equity shareholders ZNA BRI RELAER
of the Company 327,040 387,827
Non-controlling interests IR (179) (139)
TOTAL EQUITY BRER 326,861 387,688

The consolidated financial statements on pages 83 to 231 were approved and EBEVBIEZHEEUBREN_Z-NFZ
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 28 February 2019, and are AZTNBEESSHRARKENE  XhT

signed on its behalf by: FIEERREE
Feng Hai Li Yi
-9 R
Director Director
EE EE
The notes on pages 90 to 231 form part of these financial statements. HNENEV BN AL ST BRERNH—
#Bin o
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity A

n‘/_\é*géﬁij]%

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HEZZ-\FT-A=+-BLFE

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

AAARERRES
Non- Non-
Share Share  Translation ~ distributable Special  Retained controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve earnings Total interests equity
B RGEE EXBE HMOKEE HAER  REEA g FERER  48%
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK§'000  HK$000  HK§'000
Ten  fEr  TEn  TEn TR TEn  TEn  TER  TER
(note a) (note b)
(Wia) (KD
Balance at | January 2017 ZEtE-A-BeES 10,598 27,190 53,580 W31 3142 89,334 398,581 - 398,581
Changes in equity for 2017: “E-tEERE
Profit for the year REREH - - - = = 4,584 4,584 - a5
Other comprehensive expenses for the year AFEEMZARH = - (533 = = - (5333 - (533
Total comprehensive (expenses) income 2 (X ) A LHE = - (533 = = 0584 (10754) — (10754
Transaction with owners n their capacity ~ EEBAUAREZ 2EBAFR)
as owners #1225
Derecognition of other reserves upon HE-RNBARGAL
disposal of a subsidiary (Note 25) TR LA fa (M 20) = = e L B ALY YL = = =
Non-controling interests arising R AR AT
on acquisition of an immaterial subsidiary ~ FIEERELERER - - - - - B B (139) (139)
Balance at 31 December 2017 “E-+ET-ACT-REH 10,598 27,190 1) - - 159,797 387827 (139) 38788
Balance t 3| December 2017 ZE-tFTZAZT-BR
and | January 2018 RZE-\E-F-RER 10,598 217,190 2142 - - 159,797 387,827 (139) 387,688
Changes in equity for 2018: R \FERRE:
Loss for the year KERBE - - - - = (e0792)  (6079) (40) (60832
Other comprehensive income for the year ~ AEFEBZEMNA - - 5 - - - 5 - 5
Total comprehensive (expenses) income 27 (X1 A% - - 5 - — (6079 (60787) (40)  (60827)
Balance at 3| December 2018 ZE-N\ETZRZT-BER 1059 217,19 17 - - 99,005 327,040 (179) 326,86l
REEBRZRARDA
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A Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
REERBHR
For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE-2-N\F-Az+-AILFE
Notes:

(@)  The non-distributable reserve represents statutory reserves appropriated from
profit after tax of the Company's subsidiaries in the People’s Republic of China
("PRC") under the PRC laws and regulations.

(b)  The special reserve of the Group represents reserve arising pursuant to a group

reorganisation that was effected in during the year ended 31 December 2000.

The notes on pages 90 to 231 form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows A

MERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE-T-\FT-A=1-BLFE

NOTE 2018 2017
Pl £ —E-N\E —TtF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TR
Operating activities ReED
Cash used in operations REEHMARS 20(b) (166,166) (379,182)
Bank interest received EUERITHE 666 79
Income tax paid EHEER (293) (109)
Net cash used in operating activities ReZBHIAREEH (165,793) (379,212)
Investing activities REEH
Payments for purchase of property, BANE  BEK
plant and equipment RN FE (451) (3,338)
Payment for investment in joint venture REERAREMIMZR — (2,000)
Net cash outflow from disposals HEMEA ﬂmHﬁE(ﬁ;ﬁE
of subsidiaries (net of cash disposed) (HBRELERSE) 25 — (14,376)
Net cash used in investing activities REZDMAREREE (451) (19714)
Financing activities METH
New borrowings raised BERHEN 20(c) 470,100 245512
Repayment of bank and other borrowings BERITER 20(c) (352,536) -
Interest paid on bank and other borrowings RITREMEREAFE 20(c) (20,756) (6,622)
Net cash generated from financing activities METHAERETE 96,808 238,890
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents ReRFASEEBERADFHE (69,436) (160,036)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year FHZHERBELEEEE 254,497 414,263
Effect of changes in exchange rate EX2Ho 28 (3) 270
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year, FR2BERALEEER
represented by bank balances and cash NETEBRES 185,058 254,497

BNENE BENNTALEMBEREN—

#in o

The notes on pages 90 to 231 form part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS R MY R

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE-T-\FT-A=1-BLFE

GENERAL

OCI International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated in
the Cayman Islands as an exempted company with limited liability and its
shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The addresses of the registered office and principal place of
business of the Company are disclosed in the corporate information to the

annual report.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries are
principally engaged in securities trading and investments, asset management,
provision of financial advisory services and trading of wines. During the
year ended 31 December 2017, the Company sold its entire interest in
the operations of pharmaceutical and healthcare businesses through the
disposal of a wholly-owned subsidiary Captain Wise Limited. Details of
disposal of Captain Wise Limited were disclosed in Note 25. Their results

of operations were classified as discontinued operations in Note 9.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars
("HK$"), which is the Company's functional and the Group's presentation

currency.
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2.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

@)

Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"),
which collective term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs") and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA™), accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. The financial statements also comply
with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
Significant accounting policies adopted by the Group are disclosed

below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that are first
effective or available for early adoption for the current accounting
period of the Group. Note 2(c) provides information on any changes
in accounting policies resulting from the initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant to the Group for
the current and prior accounting periods reflected in these financial

statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 3l
December 2018 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries (together
referred to as the “Group”) and the Group's interest in a joint

venture.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial
statements is the historical cost basis except that the financial assets
at fair value through profit of loss (“FVTPL") are stated at their fair

value as explained in the accounting policy set out in Note 2(f).

e MR AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE-F \Ft-A=t-ALEE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MBIRRMHEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE-§ N\Ft-A=t-ALEE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements (Continued)
Non-current assets and disposal groups held for sale are stated at
the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell (see

Note 2(t)).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the
judgements about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ

from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the

revision affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of HKFRSs
that have a significant effect on the financial statements and major

sources of estimation uncertainty are discussed in Note 3.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(©

Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued a number of new HKFRSs and amendments
to HKFRSs that are first effective for the current accounting period
of the Group. Of these, the following developments are relevant to

the Group's financial statements:

. HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

. HKFRS |5, Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation that
is not yet effective for the current accounting period, except for
the amendments to HKFRS 9, Prepayment features with negative
compensation which have been adopted at the same time as HKFRS

9.

Details of the changes in accounting policies are discussed in Note
2(c)(i) for HKFRS 9 and Note 2(c)(ii) for HKFRS 15.

() HKFRS 9, Financial instruments, including the amendments to

HKFRS 9, Prepayment features with negative compensation

HKFRS 9 replaces HKAS 39, Financial instruments: recognition
and measurement. It sets out the requirements for recognising
and measuring financial assets, financial liabilities and some

contracts to buy or sell non-financial items.

e MR AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE-F \Ft-A=t-ALEE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE-§ N\Ft-A=t-ALEE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c)  Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

()

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments, including the amendments to
HKFRS 9, Prepayment features with negative compensation

(Continued)

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 retrospectively to items that
existed at | January 2018 in accordance with the transition
requirements. The Group has recognised the cumulative effect
of initial application as an adjustment to the opening equity at
| January 2018. Therefore, comparative information continues

to be reported under HKAS 39.

There is no material impact of transition to HKFRS 9 on the

Group's retained earnings and reserves at | January 2018.

Further details of the nature and effect of the changes to
previous accounting policies and the transition approach are

set out below:
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c)  Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

() HKFRS 9, Financial instruments, including the amendments to

HKFRS 9, Prepayment features with negative compensation

(Continued)

Classification of financial assets and financial liabilities

HKFRS 9 categorise financial assets into three principal
classification categories: measured at amortised cost,
at fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVTOCI) and at fair value through profit or loss
(FVTPL). These supersede HKAS 39's categories of held-
to-maturity investments, loans and receivables, available-
for-sale financial assets and financial assets measured at
FVTPL. The classification of financial assets under HKFRS
9 is based on the business model under which the
financial asset is managed and its contractual cash flow

characteristics.
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.. Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MBIRRMHEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE-T-\FT-A=1-BLFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(c)  Changes in accounting policies (Continued)
() HKFRS 9, Financial instruments, including the amendments to

HKFRS 9, Prepayment features with negative compensation

(Continued)

(a) Classification of financial assets and financial liabilities
(Continued)
Under HKFRS 9, derivatives embedded in contracts
where the host is a financial asset in the scope of the
standard are not separated from the host. Instead, the

hybrid instrument as a whole is assessed for classification.

The following table shows the original measurement
categories for each class of the Group's financial assets
under HKAS 39 and reconciles the carrying amount of
those financial assets determined in accordance with
HKAS 39 to those determined in accordance with
HKFRS 9.
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2.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c)  Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

2.

(i) HKFRS 9, Financial instruments, including the amendments to

HKFRS 9, Prepayment features with negative compensation

(Continued)

(a) Classification of financial assets and financial liabilities

(Continued)

HKAS 39
carrying amount

at 31 December

e MR AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE-T-\FT-A=1-BLFE
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AR AERHEZIE
AIETIFIE ()
@ cREENREMEE

NRE)

HKFRS 9

carrying amount

2017 at | January
BB GRS 2018
F395% BB RS EA
RZE—tF EIRR
+-A=+—8H Reclassification —T-N\F
FREE ENNE —A-BOKEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THT THT
Financial assets carried at REBHEHRARIR 2
amortised cost SREE
Debt investments at R AR
amortised cost (Note) EBRE (i) — 234,000 234,000
Financial assets classified as BEFBEEL
held-to-maturity under EIRIEARE
HKAS 39 (Note) IRz EeMEE
GES 234,000 (234,000) —

Note: Corporate debt securities that were previously classified

as held-to-maturity are now classified at amortised

cost. The Group intends to hold the assets to maturity

to collect contractual cash flows and these cash flows

consist solely of payments of principal and interest on

the principal amount outstanding.
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‘M Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE-T-\FT-A=1-BLFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c)  Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

()

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments, including the amendments to

HKFRS 9, Prepayment features with negative compensation

(Continued)

Classification of financial assets and financial liabilities
(Continued)

For an explanation of how the Group classifies and
measures financial assets and recognises related gains
and losses under HKFRS 9, see respective accounting

policy notes in Notes 2(f) and 2(i)(i).

The measurement categories for all financial liabilities
remain the same. The carrying amounts for all financial
liabilities at | January 2018 have not been impacted by
the initial application of HKFRS 9.

The Group did not designate or de-designate any
financial asset or financial liability at FVTPL at | January
2018.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c)  Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

() HKFRS 9, Financial instruments, including the amendments to

HKFRS 9, Prepayment features with negative compensation
(Continued)

Credit losses

HKFRS 9 replaces the “incurred loss” model in HKAS 39
with the expected credit loss (“ECL") model. The ECL
model requires an ongoing measurement of credit risk
associated with a financial asset and therefore recognises
ECL earlier than under the “incurred loss” accounting
model in HKAS 39.

The Group applies the new ECL model to financial
assets measured at amortised cost (including cash and
cash equivalents, trade and other receivables and debt

investments at amortised cost).

The Group has assessed that the difference between the
closing loss allowance determined in accordance with
HKAS 39 as at 31 December 2017 and the opening loss
allowance determined in accordance with HKFRS 9 as at

| January 2018 is immaterial.
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'\ Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2018

BE-Z-\§+-A=t-RI5E

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c)  Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

() HKFRS 9, Financial instruments, including the amendments to

HKFRS 9, Prepayment features with negative compensation

(Continued)

(b)  Credit losses (Continued)

For further details on the Group's accounting policy for

accounting for credit losses, see Note 2(i)(i).

(c)  Transition

Changes in accounting policies resulting from the

adoption of HKFRS 9 have been applied retrospectively,

except as described below:

Information relating to comparative periods has
not been restated. There is no material impact on
the carrying amounts of financial assets resulting
from the adoption of HKFRS 9. Accordingly, the
information presented for 2017 continues to be
reported under HKAS 39 and thus may not be

comparable with the current period.
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2.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(c)  Changes in accounting policies (Continued)
() HKFRS 9, Financial instruments, including the amendments to

HKFRS 9, Prepayment features with negative compensation

(Continued)

(c)  Transition (Continued)
= The determination of the business model within
which a financial asset is held has been made
on the basis of the facts and circumstances that
existed at | January 2018 (the date of initial
application of HKFRS 9 by the Group).

= If, at the date of initial application, the assessment
of whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition would have
involved undue cost or effort, a lifetime ECL has

been recognised for that financial instrument.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MBIRRMHEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE-§ N\Ft-A=t-ALEE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c)  Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(i)

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers
HKFRS 15 supersedes HKAS Il “Construction Contracts’,
HKAS 18 "Revenue” and related Interpretations and it applies
to all revenue arising from contracts with customers, unless
those contracts are in the scope of other standards. The
new standard establishes a five-step model to account for
revenue arising from contracts with customers. Under HKFRS
I5, revenue is recognised at an amount that reflects the
consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled in

exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer.

The standard requires entities to exercise judgement, taking
into consideration all of the relevant facts and circumstances
when applying each step of the model to contracts with their
customers. The standard also specifies the accounting for the
incremental costs of obtaining a contract and the costs directly
related to fulfilling a contract. The adoption of HKFRS |5 does
not have any material impact on the Group's financial position

and results of operations.

d)  Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls

an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from

its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those

returns through its power over the entity. When assessing whether

the Group has power, only substantive rights (held by the Group

and other parties) are considered.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (Continued)

Investments in subsidiaries are consolidated into the consolidated
financial statements from the date that control commences until the
date that control ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions and cash
flows and any unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but only to the

extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary not
attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and in respect
of which the Group has not agreed any additional terms with the
holders of those interests which would result in the Group as a
whole having a contractual obligation in respect of those interests
that meets the definition of a financial liability. For each business
combination, the Group can elect to measure any non-controlling
interests either at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’

proportionate share of the subsidiary's net identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately from equity
attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company. Non-
controlling interests in the results of the Group are presented on
the face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as an allocation of the total profit or loss and
total comprehensive income for the year between non-controlling
interests and equity shareholders of the Company. Loans from
holders of non-controlling interests and other contractual obligations
towards these holders are presented as financial liabilities in the
consolidated statement of financial position depending on the nature

of the liability.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE-§ N\Ft-A=t-ALEE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (Continued)

Changes in the Group's interests in a subsidiary that do not result in
a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions, whereby
adjustments are made to the amounts of controlling and non-
controlling interests within consolidated equity to reflect the change
in relative interests, but no adjustments are made to goodwill and no

gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with a
resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any interest
retained in that former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is
recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair value
on initial recognition of a financial asset (see Note 2(f)) or, when
appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of a joint venture (see
Note 2(e)).

In the Company's statement of financial position, investments in
subsidiaries are stated at cost less impairment losses (see Note 2(i)
(1)), unless the investments are classified as held for sale (or included

in a disposal group that is classified as held for sale) (see Note 2(t)).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(e)

Joint ventures
A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the Group or Company
and other parties contractually agree to share control of the

arrangement, and have rights to the net assets of the arrangement.

An investment in a joint venture is accounted for in the consolidated
financial statements under the equity method, unless it is classified as
held for sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified as held
for sale) (see Note 2(t)). Under the equity method, the investment
is initially recorded at cost, adjusted for any excess of the Group's
share of the acquisition-date fair values of the investee's identifiable
net assets over the cost of the investment (if any). Thereafter, the
investment is adjusted for the post acquisition change in the Group's
share of the investee's net assets and any impairment loss relating
to the investment (see Note 2(i)). Any acquisition-date excess over
cost, the Group's share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of
the investees and any impairment losses for the year are recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss, whereas the Group's
share of the post-acquisition post-tax items of the investees' other
comprehensive income is recognised in the consolidated statement

of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

When the Group's share of losses exceeds its interest in the joint
venture, the Group's interest is reduced to nil and recognition of
further losses is discontinued except to the extent that the Group
has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of the investee. For this purpose, the Group's interest is the
carrying amount of the investment under the equity method together
with the Group's long-term interests that in substance form part of

the Group's net investment in the joint venture.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS R MY R

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE-T-\FT-A=1-BLFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(e)

Joint ventures (Continued)

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions between
the Group and its joint venture are eliminated to the extent of the
Group's interest in the investee, except where unrealised losses
provide evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred, in which

case they are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture or vice versa, retained interest is not remeasured. Instead,
the investment continues to be accounted for under the equity

method.

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have joint control over
a joint venture, it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest
in that investee, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former investee at the
date when joint control is lost is recognised at fair value and this
amount is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a

financial asset (see Note 2(f)).

In the Company's statement of financial position, investments in joint
venture are stated at cost less impairment losses (see Note 2(i)),
unless classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal group that

is classified as held for sale) (see Note 2(t)).

Financial instruments

i) Recognition and initial measurement
Trade receivables and debt securities issued are initially
recognised when they are originated. All other financial
assets and financial liabilities are initially recognised when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the

instrument.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR AR MR

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(f)  Financial instruments (Continued)

)

Recognition and initial measurement (Continued)

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without
a significant financing component) or financial liability is
initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL,
transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition
or issue. A trade receivable without a significant financing
component is initially measured at the transaction price and
is recognised when the Group has an unconditional right
to receive consideration. A right to receive consideration is
unconditional if only the passage of time is required before

payment of that consideration is due.

Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial assets — Policy applicable from I January 2018

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured
at: amortised cost; fair value through other comprehensive
income (“FVTOCI") — debt investment; FVTOCI — equity
investment; or FVTPL.

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial
recognition unless the Group changes its business model for
managing financial assets, in which case all affected financial
assets are reclassified on the first day of the first reporting

period following the change in the business model.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS R MY R

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE-T-\FT-A=1-BLFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(f)  Financial instruments (Continued)
ir)  Classification and subsequent measurement (Continued)
Financial assets — Policy applicable from | January 2018
(Continued)
A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both

of the following conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL:

= it is held within a business model whose objective is to

hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and

— its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest

on the principal amount outstanding.

A debt investment is measured at FVTOCI if it meets both of
the following conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL:

= it is held within a business model whose objective is
achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and

selling financial assets; and

= its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest

on the principal amount outstanding.

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not
held for trading, the Group may irrevocably elect to present
subsequent changes in the investment's fair value in other
comprehensive income (“OCI"). This election is made on an

investment-by-investment basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(f)  Financial instruments (Continued)

ir)

Classification and subsequent measurement (Continued)
Financial assets — Policy applicable from | January 2018
(Continued)

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised
cost or FVTOCI as described above are measured at
FVTPL. This includes all derivative financial assets. On initial
recognition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial
asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured
at amortised cost or at FVTOCI as at FVTPL if doing so
eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that

would otherwise arise.

Financial assets — Business model assessment: Policy

applicable from | January 2018

The Group makes an assessment of the objective of the
business model in which a financial asset is held at a portfolio
level because this best reflects the way the business is
managed and information is provided to management. The

information considered includes:

- the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and
the operation of those policies in practice. These include
whether management's strategy focuses on earning
contractual interest income, maintaining a particular
interest rate profile, matching the duration of the
financial assets to the duration of any related liabilities or
expected cash outflows or realising cash flows through

the sale of the assets;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS R MY R

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE-T-\FT-A=1-BLFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(f)  Financial instruments (Continued)

ir)

Classification and subsequent measurement (Continued)
Financial assets — Business model assessment: Policy

applicable from | January 2018 (Continued)

- how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and

reported to the Group's management;

= the risks that affect the performance of the business
model (and the financial assets held within that business

model) and how those risks are managed;

— how managers of the business are compensated — e.g.
whether compensation is based on the fair value of the
assets managed or the contractual cash flows collected;

and

- the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial
assets in prior periods, the reasons for such sales and

expectations about future sales activity.

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions
that do not qualify for derecognition are not considered
sales for this purpose, consistent with the Group's continuing

recognition of the assets.

Financial assets that are held for trading or are managed and
whose performance is evaluated on a fair value basis are
measured at FVTPL.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(f)  Financial instruments (Continued)

ir)

Classification and subsequent measurement (Continued)
Financial assets — Assessment whether contractual cash
flows are solely payments of principal and interest: Policy

applicable from | January 2018

For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the
fair value of the financial asset on initial recognition. ‘Interest’
is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for
the credit risk associated with the principal amount outstanding
during a particular period of time and for other basic lending
risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as

well as a profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely
payments of principal and interest, the Group considers the
contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing
whether the financial asset contains a contractual term that
could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows
such that it would not meet this condition. In making this

assessment, the Group considers:

= contingent events that would change the amount or

timing of cash flows;

= terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate,

including variable-rate features;

= prepayment and extension features; and
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS R MY R

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE-T-\FT-A=1-BLFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(f)  Financial instruments (Continued)

ir)

Classification and subsequent measurement (Continued)
Financial assets — Assessment whether contractual cash
flows are solely payments of principal and interest: Policy

applicable from | January 2018 (Continued)

— terms that limit the Group's claim to cash flows from

specified assets (e.g. non-recourse features).

A prepayment feature is consistent with the solely payments
of principal and interest criterion if the prepayment amount
substantially represents unpaid amounts of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding, which may
include reasonable compensation for early termination of
the contract. Additionally, for a financial asset acquired at
a discount or premium to its contractual par amount, a
feature that permits or requires prepayment at an amount
that substantially represents the contractual par amount
plus accrued (but unpaid) contractual interest (which may
also include reasonable additional compensation for early
termination) is treated as consistent with this criterion if the
fair value of the prepayment feature is insignificant at initial

recognition.

OCI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

2018 Annual Report

2.

BEASHBE#E)
(f SBMIAE)
i) PDHEREEEE)

CREE-THENALR
ERBEAXNEXERA
B BZ%-N\§-A-H
RWWBR ()

REIAEEE KRG
BEAE(NEERRE
ER)HREREN K

R o
MREAMEESHRELELR
Tﬁﬂi1%“t$éﬂ’lf?<§iﬁﬁﬁ
EME (A BERAR L

é%’ﬂﬁ’ﬂéi@ﬁ%) - BIER AT
ERNHAEYARE KT
BHRE— - 1o HR
NENEESENTINRE
BRENEREE MR
AERRENRTEEDNR

.y

HRRLAEK - BILEFk
EXNANEESEME

(B RR) A HH
B(AgEBRERAMELSH
MEEBIMEEINERE
BORHAREARZRE—
o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B R R AR M AT

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE-F \Ft-A=t-ALEE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. EREHBE#E)
() Financial instruments (Continued) H EWIAE)
if)  Classification and subsequent measurement (Continued) i) DHEREEIE(E)
Financial assets — Subsequent measurement and gains and CRMEE-HAGERE
losses: Policy applicable from | January 2018 #: B-E-N\§-H—-H
R ER
Financial assets at These assets are subsequently measured at ERFEFA REFEEREBUATET
FVTPL fair value. Net gains and losses, including any BHRMEME = - %8z BREEHAF
interest or dividend income, are recognised BHBREMA  HEER
in profit or loss. Ao

Financial assets at These assets are subsequently measured at REHK ARG RFEEREUERFS

amortised cost amortised cost using the effective interest EMEMEE FREBENAHE - RE
method. The amortised cost is reduced by BEEEMREHEKR -
impairment losses. Interest income, foreign FMEKA - SMER R KR
exchange gains and losses and impairment ERBRER - AR LH#
are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or REOEAN RSB RNE
loss on derecognition is recognised in profit T HER ©
or loss.

Debt investments at  These assets are subsequently measured ERFEF A ZEEEMEERLATERT

FVTOCI at fair value. Interest income calculated HM2EHKZE £ - FRERIEZEHE
using the effective interest method, foreign FIETSIZE MFBIA - B R Y &
exchange gains and losses and impairment BREARBERES®
are recognised in profit or loss. Other net R o B FERENE iR
gains and losses are recognised in OCI. On AR - R ILHER
derecognition, gains and losses accumulated B iR e e R
in OCl are reclassified to profit or loss. K kBENEHHEE

1B o

Equity investments ~ These assets are subsequently measured HEAFEFA REFEEREEAFER

at FVTOCI at fair value. Dividends are recognised as HEt2HEHKE £ BRELBZTERA
income in profit or loss unless the dividend —HIRERE WA - BRIERSAERE
clearly represents a recovery of part of the REKANH D e
cost of the investment. Other net gains and o HfFEs AR
losses are recognised in OCl and are never Hih 2EB P HER - I
reclassified to profit or loss. ERAENEERH -
REEBRZRARDA

2018 &
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A Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HEZZ-\FT-A=+-BLFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(f)  Financial instruments (Continued)

ir)

Classification and subsequent measurement (Continued)

Financial assets — Policy applicable before | January 2018

The Group classified its financial assets into one of the

following categories:

- loans and receivables;

= held-to-maturity;
- available-for-sale; and

- at FVTPL, and within this category as:

= held for trading;

- derivative hedging instruments; or

S designated as at FVTPL.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BIRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE-T-\FT-A=1-BLFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. EREHBE#E)
() Financial instruments (Continued) (H SMIAE)
i) Classification and subsequent measurement (Continued) i) DHEREEIE(E)

CRMEE-HEAFERKE
REBR RZZE-NE-8

Financial assets — Subsequent measurement and gains and

losses: Policy applicable before | January 2018

— BATRA MR

Financial assets at Measured at fair value and changes therein A FEFA RAFEFE  HE2HR
FVTPL were recognised in profit or loss. BaverE BaER-

B
Held-to-maturity Measured at amortised cost using the RZEIHzE NERFEEREHKAR
financial assets effective interest method. MEE AEe
Loans and Measured at amortised cost using the EHXREUMZK UNERFELZEHKA
receivables effective interest method. b} AE e
Available-for-sale Measured at fair value and changes therein, At E&8 KATEFE HE
financial assets other than impairment losses, dividend B (BERTAMRESS-

&
BEWA - FIBRA K E

income, interest income and foreign

currency differences on debt instruments, R%%ﬂ?%)ﬁ(\ﬂ@%@
were recognised in OC| and accumulated W tER - NER
in the fair value or impaired (see Note 2(i) R - %%Mét“wﬁf'%é
(i) — policy applicable before | January EFEELRAERH
2018) reserve. When these assets were F20H-RZE-NF

derecognised, the gain or loss accumulated

in equity was reclassified to profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS R MY R

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE-T-\FT-A=1-BLFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(f)  Financial instruments (Continued)

ir)

i)

Classification and subsequent measurement (Continued)
Financial liabilities — Classification, subsequent measurement

and gains and losses

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost
or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is
classified as held-for-trading, it is a derivative or it is designated
as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL
are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including
any interest expense, are recognised in profit or loss. Other
financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and
foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or
loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in

profit or loss.

Derecognition

Financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or it
transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a
transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the
Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks
and rewards of ownership and it does not retain control of the

financial asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(f)  Financial instruments (Continued)

i)

Derecognition (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

The Group enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets
recognised in its statement of financial position, but retains
either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the
transferred assets. In these cases, the transferred assets are not

derecognised.

Financial liabilities

The Group derecognises a financial liability when its
contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or expire.
The Group also derecognises a financial liability when its terms
are modified and the cash flows of the modified liability are
substantially different, in which case a new financial liability

based on the modified terms is recognised at fair value.

On derecognition of a financial liability, the difference between
the carrying amount extinguished and the consideration
paid (including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities

assumed) is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MBIRRMHEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE-§ N\Ft-A=t-ALEE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(

(®

Financial instruments (Continued)

iv)  Offsetting
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount presented in the statement of financial position when,
and only when, the Group currently has a legally enforceable
right to set off the amounts and it intends either to settle
them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the

liability simultaneously.

Property, plant and equipment

[tems of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses (see
Note 2(i)(ii)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an item
of property, plant and equipment are determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
item and are recognised in profit or loss on the date of retirement

or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of property,
plant and equipment, less their estimated residual value, if any, using

the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Leasehold improvement Over the shorter of the terms of the

lease or 5 years

Furniture, fixtures and 5 years

equipment

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated on a reasonable
basis between the parts and each part is depreciated separately. Both
the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any, are reviewed

annually.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(h)

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of transactions,

is or contains a lease if the Group determines that the arrangement

conveys a right to use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period

of time in return for a payment or a series of payments. Such a

determination is made based on an evaluation of the substance of

the arrangement and is regardless of whether the arrangement takes

the legal form of a lease.

Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership are classified as being held under finance leases.
Leases which do not transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the Group are classified as operating

leases.

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under operating
leases, payments made under the leases are charged to profit
or loss in equal instalments over the accounting periods
covered by the lease term, except where an alternative basis
is more representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived
from the leased asset. Lease incentives received are recognised
in profit or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net lease
payments made. Contingent rentals are charged to profit or

loss in the accounting period in which they are incurred.
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A Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE-T-\FT-A=1-BLFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

() Impairment

()

Non-derivative financial assets

Policy applicable from I January 2018

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECLs on financial
assets measured at amortised cost (including cash and cash
equivalents, trade and other receivables and debt investments

at amortised cost).

Financial assets measured at fair value, including equity
securities measured at FVTPL and derivative financial assets,

are not subject to the ECL assessment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

()  Impairment (Continued)

(i)

Non-derivative financial assets (Continued)

Policy applicable from | January 2018 (Continued)

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses.
Credit losses are measured as the present value of all
expected cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash
flows due to the Group in accordance with the contract and

the cash flows that the Group expects to receive).

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted using the following

discount rates where the effect of discounting is material:

— fixed-rate financial assets, trade and other receivables:
effective interest rate determined at initial recognition or

an approximation thereof;

- variable-rate financial assets: current effective interest

rate;

The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the
maximum contractual period over which the Group is exposed

to credit risk.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE-§ N\Ft-A=t-ALEE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
()  Impairment (Continued)

(i)

Non-derivative financial assets (Continued)

Policy applicable from | January 2018 (Continued)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into account reasonable
and supportable information that is available without undue
cost or effort. This includes information about past events,

current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.

ECLs are measured on either of the following bases:

= [2-month ECLs: these are losses that are expected to
result from possible default events within the |2 months

after the reporting date; and

= lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are expected to

result from all possible default events over the expected

lives of the items to which the ECL model applies.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

()  Impairment (Continued)

(i)

Non-derivative financial assets (Continued)

Policy applicable from | January 2018 (Continued)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured
at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs. ECLs on these financial
assets are estimated using a provision matrix based on the
Group's historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors
that are specific to the debtors and an assessment of both
the current and forecast general economic conditions at the

reporting date.

For all other financial instruments, the Group recognises a
loss allowance equal to 12-month ECLs unless there has been
a significant increase in credit risk of the financial instrument
since initial recognition, in which case the loss allowance is

measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MBIRRMHEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE-§ N\Ft-A=t-ALEE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

()  Impairment (Continued)

(i)

Non-derivative financial assets (Continued)

Policy applicable from | January 2018 (Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial instrument
has increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of default occurring on the financial
instrument assessed at the reporting date with that assessed
at the date of initial recognition. In making this reassessment,
the Group considers that a default event occurs when (i)
the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the
Group in full, without recourse by the Group to actions such
as realising security (if any is held); or (i) the financial asset
is 90 days past due. The Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and forward-looking information

that is available without undue cost or effort.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

()  Impairment (Continued)

(i)

Non-derivative financial assets (Continued)

Policy applicable from | January 2018 (Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk (Continued)
In particular, the following information is taken into account
when assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly

since initial recognition:

failure to make payments of principal or interest on their

contractually due dates;

= an actual or expected significant deterioration in a
financial instrument’s external or internal credit rating (if

available);

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in the

operating results of the debtor; and

= existing or forecast changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have a significant
adverse effect on the debtor's ability to meet its

obligation to the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS R MY R

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE-T-\FT-A=1-BLFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

()  Impairment (Continued)

(i)

Non-derivative financial assets (Continued)

Policy applicable from | January 2018 (Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk (Continued)

Depending on the nature of the financial instruments, the
assessment of a significant increase in credit risk is performed
on either an individual basis or a collective basis. When
the assessment is performed on a collective basis, the
financial instruments are grouped based on shared credit risk

characteristics, such as past due status and credit risk ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to reflect
changes in the financial instrument's credit risk since initial
recognition. Any change in the ECL amount is recognised as an
impairment gain or loss in profit or loss. The Group recognises
an impairment gain or loss for all financial instruments with a
corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount through
a loss allowance account, except for investments in debt
securities that are measured at FVTOCI (recycling), for which
the loss allowance is recognised in other comprehensive

income and accumulated in the fair value reserve (recycling).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
()  Impairment (Continued)
(1) Non-derivative financial assets (Continued)

Policy applicable from | January 2018 (Continued)

Basis of calculation of interest income

Interest income recognised in accordance with Note 2(q)(v) is
calculated based on the gross carrying amount of the financial
asset unless the financial asset is credit-impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated based on the amortised cost (i.e.
the gross carrying amount less loss allowance) of the financial

asset.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether a financial
asset is credit-impaired. A financial asset is credit-impaired
when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have

occurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE-§ N\Ft-A=t-ALEE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

()  Impairment (Continued)

(i)

Non-derivative financial assets (Continued)

Policy applicable from | January 2018 (Continued)

Basis of calculation of interest income (Continued)
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the

following observable events:

- significant financial difficulties of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in

interest or principal payments;

= it becoming probable that the borrower will enter into

bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological, market, economic
or legal environment that have an adverse effect on the

debtor; or

= the disappearance of an active market for a security

because of financial difficulties of the issuer.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

()  Impairment (Continued)

(i)

Non-derivative financial assets (Continued)

Policy applicable from | January 2018 (Continued)

Whrite-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off
(either partially or in full) to the extent that there is no
realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when
the Group determines that the debtor does not have assets or
sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to

repay the amounts subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was previously written
off are recognised as a reversal of impairment in profit or loss

in the period in which the recovery occurs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE-§ N\Ft-A=t-ALEE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

()  Impairment (Continued)

(i)

Non-derivative financial assets (Continued)

Policy applicable before | January 2018

Prior to | January 2018, an “incurred loss” model was used to
measure impairment losses on financial assets not classified as
at FVTPL (e.g. trade and other receivables, available-for-sale
investments and held-to-maturity debt securities). Under the
“incurred loss” model, an impairment loss was recognised only

when there was objective evidence of impairment.

Objective evidence of impairment included:

= significant financial difficulties of the debtor;

= a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in

interest or principal payments;

= it becoming probable that the debtor will enter

bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B R R AR M AT

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE-T-\FT-A=1-BLFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. EBEABHBE#E)
()  Impairment (Continued) () WEE)
() Non-derivative financial assets (Continued) (i) FTESREE(E)

Policy applicable before | January 2018 (Continued) RZB-NE—-B—HAHH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS R MY R

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE-T-\FT-A=1-BLFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
()  Impairment (Continued)
(1) Non-derivative financial assets (Continued)

Policy applicable before | January 2018 (Continued)

= For trade and other receivables and other financial
assets carried at amortised cost, impairment loss was
measured as the difference between the asset's carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the financial asset's original effective
interest rate, where the effect of discounting was
material. This assessment was made collectively where
these financial assets shared similar risk characteristics,
such as similar past due status, and had not been
individually assessed as impaired. Future cash flows for
financial assets which were assessed for impairment
collectively were based on historical loss experience
for assets with credit risk characteristics similar to the

collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment
loss decreased and the decrease could be linked
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised, the impairment loss was reversed
through profit or loss. A reversal of an impairment loss
was only recognised to the extent that it did not result
in the asset's carrying amount exceeding that which
would have been determined had no impairment loss

been recognised in prior years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B R R AR M AT

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE-F \Ft-A=t-ALEE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. EREHBE#E)
() Impairment (Continued) () REE)
() Non-derivative financial assets (Continued) (i) FTESREE(E)
Policy applicable before | January 2018 (Continued) RZB-NE—-B—HAHH
MIBR(E)
When the recovery of a trade debtor or other financial ENEEFEBR AR
assets carried at amortised cost was considered REBHEK AT RHE
doubtful but not remote, associated impairment losses 48 EER o] W [E
were recorded using an allowance account. When the M KRR T FE IR B -

Group was satisfied that recovery was remote, the
amount considered irrecoverable was written off against
the gross carrying amount of those assets directly.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously charged
to the allowance account were reversed against the
allowance account. Other changes in the allowance
account and subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off directly were recognised in profit

or loss.

For available-for-sale investments, the cumulative loss
that had been recognised in the fair value reserve
(recycling) was reclassified to profit or loss. The amount
of the cumulative loss that was recognised in profit or
loss was the difference between the acquisition cost
(net of any principal repayment and amortisation) and
current fair value, less any impairment loss on that asset

previously recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS R MY R

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE-T-\FT-A=1-BLFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

() Impairment (Continued)

(i)

(i1

Non-derivative financial assets (Continued)

Policy applicable before | January 2018 (Continued)

Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss in respect
of available-for-sale equity securities were not reversed
through profit or loss. Any subsequent increase in
the fair value of such assets was recognised in other

comprehensive income.

Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss in respect
of available-for-sale debt securities were reversed if the
subsequent increase in fair value could be objectively
related to an event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised. Reversals of impairment losses in such

circumstances were recognised in profit or loss.

Non-financial assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period to identify indications that
the following assets may be impaired or, an impairment loss

previously recognised no longer exists or may have decreased:

- property, plant and equipment; and

- investments in subsidiaries and joint ventures in the

Company's statement of financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset's recoverable amount is

estimated.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

()  Impairment (Continued)

(1) Non-financial assets (Continued)

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of
its fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.
Where an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets, the recoverable
amount is determined for the smallest group of assets
that generates cash inflows independently (that is, a

cash-generating unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss if the
carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-generating unit
to which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash-
generating units are allocated to reduce the carrying
amount of the assets in the unit (or group of units) on
a pro rata basis, except that the carrying value of an
asset will not be reduced below its individual fair value
less costs of disposal (if measurable) or value in use (if

determinable).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE-§ N\Ft-A=t-ALEE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

()  Impairment (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Non-financial assets (Continued)
= Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates used to determine

the recoverable amount.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the asset's
carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised in prior years.
Reversals of impairment losses are credited to profit or

loss in the year in which the reversals are recognised.

Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the Group is required
to prepare an interim financial report in compliance with HKAS
34 “Interim Financial Reporting” in respect of the first six
months of the financial year. At the end of the interim period,
the Group applies the same impairment testing, recognition,
and reversal criteria as it would at the end of the financial year
(see Notes 2(i)(i) and (ii)).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

()

Inventories
Inventories are assets which are held for sale in the ordinary course

of business.

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost formula and
comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and

condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs of completion and the

estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those inventories
is recognised as an expense in the period in which the related
revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-down of inventories
to net realisable value and all losses of inventories are recognised as
an expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount
of any reversal of any write-down of inventories is recognised as a
reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an expense in

the period in which the reversal occurs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MBIRRMHEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE-§ N\Ft-A=t-ALEE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

()

Contract assets and contract liabilities

A contract asset is recognised when the Group recognises
revenue (see Note 2(q)) before being unconditionally entitled
to the consideration under the payment terms set out in the
contract. Contract assets are assessed for expected credit losses in
accordance with the policy set out in Note 2(i)(i) and are reclassified
to receivables when the right to the consideration has become

unconditional.

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays
consideration before the Group recognises the related revenue
(see Note 2(q)). A contract liability would also be recognised if the
Group has an unconditional right to receive consideration before the
Group recognises the related revenue. In such cases, a corresponding

receivable would also be recognised.

For a single contract with the customer, either a net contract
asset or a net contract liability is presented. For multiple contracts,
contract assets and contract liabilities of unrelated contracts are not

presented on a net basis.

When the contract includes a significant financing component,
the contract balance includes interest accrued under the effective

interest method (see Note 2(q)).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

()

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions, and
short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk
of changes in value, having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form
an integral part of the Group's cash management are also included
as a component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the
consolidated statement of cash flows. Cash and cash equivalents are

assessed for ECLs in accordance with the policy set out in (see Note

2 ()(0))-

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. The par value of the shares
issued and fully paid is recognised in the share capital account.
Any excess of proceeds from a new issue of shares (net of any
incremental costs directly attributable to the new issue) over the
par value of the shares issued is recognised in the share premium

account.

Employee benefits

() Short term employee benefits and contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans
Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of non-
monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the
associated services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect would be

material, these amounts are stated at their present values.

(i) Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of when the
Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits and
when it recognises restructuring costs involving the payment of

termination benefits.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MBIRRMHEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE-§ N\Ft-A=t-ALEE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(©)

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss
except to the extent that they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the
relevant amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive

income or directly in equity respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for
the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end
of the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect

of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and taxable
temporary differences respectively, being the differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from

unused tax losses and unused tax credits.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(©)

Income tax (Continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities,
and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which the asset can be
utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that may support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the reversal of existing
taxable temporary differences, provided those differences relate
to the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and
are expected to reverse either in the same period as the expected
reversal of the deductible temporary difference or in periods into
which a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried
back or forward. The same criteria are adopted when determining
whether existing taxable temporary differences support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and
credits, that is, those differences are taken into account if they relate
to the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and are
expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or

credit can be utilised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS R MY R

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE-T-\FT-A=1-BLFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(©)

Income tax (Continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets and
liabilities are those temporary differences arising from the initial
recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither accounting
nor taxable profit (provided they are not part of a business
combination), and temporary differences relating to investments in
subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case of taxable differences, the
Group controls the timing of the reversal and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case
of deductible differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse

in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on the
expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount
of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantially
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax assets and

liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the end
of each reporting period and is reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available
to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction
is reversed to the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient

taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of dividends
are recognised when the liability to pay the related dividends is

recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(©)

Income tax (Continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and movements
therein, are presented separately from each other and are not
offset. Current tax assets are offset against current tax liabilities, and
deferred tax assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company
or the Group has the legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the following additional

conditions are met:

= in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the Company or
the Group intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise

the asset and settle the liability simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they relate
to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on

either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each future period
in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities
or assets are expected to be settled or recovered,
intend to realise the current tax assets and settle the
current tax liabilities on a net basis or realise and settle

simultaneously.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MBIRRMHEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE-§ N\Ft-A=t-ALEE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(P)

(9)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation
and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value of
money is material, provisions are stated at the present value of the

expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability
of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are also disclosed as
contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow of economic

benefits is remote.

Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it arises from the
sale of goods, the provision of services or other sources (including
securities trading and investments) in the ordinary course of the

Group's business.

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or service
is transferred to the customer, at the amount of promised
consideration to which the Group is expected to be entitled,
excluding those amounts collected on behalf of third parties.
Revenue excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is after

deduction of any trade discounts.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(9)

Revenue and other income (Continued)

Where the contract contains a financing component which provides
a significant financing benefit to the customer for more than 12
months, revenue is measured at the present value of the amount
receivable, discounted using the discount rate that would be
reflected in a separate financing transaction with the customer, and
interest income is accrued separately under the effective interest
method. Where the contract contains a financing component
which provides a significant financing benefit to the Group, revenue
recognised under that contract includes the interest expense
accreted on the contract liability under the effective interest method.
The Group takes advantage of the practical expedient in paragraph
63 of HKFRS |5 and does not adjust the consideration for any
effects of a significant financing component if the period of financing

is 12 months or less.

Further details of the Group's revenue and other income recognition

policies are as follows:

() Sale of goods
Revenue is recognised when the customer takes possession
of and accepts the products. If the products are a partial
fulfilment of a contract covering other goods and/or services,
then the amount of revenue recognised is an appropriate
proportion of the total transaction price under the contract,
allocated between all the goods and services promised under

the contract on a relative stand-alone selling price basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE-§ N\Ft-A=t-ALEE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(q9)  Revenue and other income (Continued)

(i)

(i)

(iv)

v)

Financial advisory services income
Financial advisory services income is recognised on an accrual
basis in accordance with the substance of the relevant

agreements.

Income from asset management
Income from asset management is recognised on an accrual
basis in accordance with the substance of the relevant

agreements.

Dividends
— Dividend income from unlisted investments is recognised
when the shareholder's right to receive payment is

established.

= Dividend income from listed investments is recognised
when the share price of the investment goes ex-
dividend.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective
interest method. For financial assets measured at amortised
cost or FVTOCI (recycling) that are not credit-impaired, the
effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount
of the asset. For credit-impaired financial assets, the effective
interest rate is applied to the amortised cost (i.e. gross carrying

amount net of loss allowance) of the asset (see Note 2(i)(i)).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(9)

(")

Revenue recognition (Continued)
(vi)  Realised/unrealised gains or losses from financial assets at

FVYTPL

Net gains (losses) on financial assets at FVTPL are recognised
on the transaction dates when the relevant contract notes are
exchanged and unrealised fair value gains (losses) on financial
assets at FVTPL are recognised in the period in which they

arise.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting

period. Exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Non-monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are stated at
fair value are translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the

dates the fair value was measured.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS R MY R

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE-T-\FT-A=1-BLFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(")

()

Translation of foreign currencies (Continued)

The results of foreign operations are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the exchange rates approximating the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. Statement of financial
position items are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the closing
foreign exchange rates at the end of the reporting period. The
resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in equity in the translation

reserve.

On the disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount of the
exchange differences relating to that foreign operation is reclassified
from equity to profit or loss when the profit or loss on disposal is

recognised.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset which necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale
are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing

costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of a
qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the asset is
being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred and activities
that are necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use or sale
are in progress. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended or
ceases when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are interrupted or

complete.
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2.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(t)

Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations

(i)

Non-current assets held for sale

A non-current asset (or disposal group) is classified as held
for sale if it is highly probable that its carrying amount will
be recovered through a sale transaction rather than through
continuing use and the asset (or disposal group) is available
for sale in its present condition. A disposal group is a group
of assets to be disposed of together as a group in a single
transaction, and liabilities directly associated with those assets

that will be transferred in the transaction.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving loss
of control of a subsidiary, all the assets and liabilities of that
subsidiary are classified as held for sale when the above
criteria for classification as held for sale are met, regardless of
whether the Group will retain a non-controlling interest in the

subsidiary after the sale.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE-§ N\Ft-A=t-ALEE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(t)  Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations (Continued)

(i)

Non-current assets held for sale (Continued)

Immediately before classification as held for sale, the
measurement of the non-current assets (and all individual
assets and liabilities in a disposal group) is brought up-to-
date in accordance with the accounting policies before the
classification. Then, on initial classification as held for sale and
until disposal, the non-current assets (except for certain assets
as explained below), or disposal groups, are recognised at
the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to
sell. The principal exceptions to this measurement policy so
far as the financial statements of the Group and the Company
are concerned are deferred tax assets, assets arising from
employee benefits and financial assets (other than investments
in subsidiaries). These assets, even if held for sale, would
continue to be measured in accordance with the policies set

out elsewhere in Note 2.

Impairment losses on initial classification as held for sale,
and on subsequent remeasurement while held for sale, are
recognised in profit or loss. As long as a non-current asset is
classified as held for sale, or is included in a disposal group
that is classified as held for sale, the non-current asset is not

depreciated or amortised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(t)  Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations (Continued)

(i)

Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group's
business, the operations and cash flows of which can be clearly
distinguished from the rest of the Group and which represents
a separate major line of business or geographical area of
operations, or is part of a single coordinated plan to dispose
of a separate major line of business or geographical area of
operations, or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view

to resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs upon disposal
or when the operation meets the criteria to be classified as
held for sale (see (i) above), if earlier. It also occurs if the

operation is abandoned.

Where an operation is classified as discontinued, a single
amount is presented on the face of the statement of profit or

loss and other comprehensive income, which comprises:

= the post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued operation;

and

= the post-tax gain or loss recognised on the measurement
to fair value less costs to sell, or on the disposal, of the
assets or disposal group(s) constituting the discontinued

operation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE-§ N\Ft-A=t-ALEE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(u)  Related parties
(a) A person, or a close member of that person's family, is related

to the Group if that person:

(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the

Group or the Group's parent.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following

conditions applies:

(i)  the entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and

fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

(i)  one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of a

group of which the other entity is a member).

(iii)  both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the

other entity is an associate of the third entity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(u)  Related parties (Continued)
(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies: (Continued)

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity

related to the Group.

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person

identified in (a).

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management

personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

(vii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services to the

Group or to the Group's parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family members
who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person

in their dealings with the entity.

7PN
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE-§ N\Ft-A=t-ALEE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

)

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the financial
information provided regularly to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of allocating resources to, and
assessing the performance of, the Group's various lines of business

and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature
of products and services, the nature of production processes, the
type or class of customers, the methods used to distribute the
products or provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not individually material

may be aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, management
has used its judgements and made assumptions of the effects of uncertain
future events on the financial statements. The most significant use of
judgements and key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial period are

described below.

(@) Loss allowances on debt investments
The impairment provisions for financial assets at amortised cost are
based on assumptions about the expected loss rates. The Group
uses judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs
to the impairment calculation, based on the Group's past history,
existing market conditions as well as forward looking estimates at
the end of each reporting period. For details of the key assumptions
and inputs used, see Note 26. Changes in these assumptions and
estimates could materially affect the result of the assessment and it
may be necessary to make additional impairment charge to profit or

loss.

e MR AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS R MY R

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE-T-\FT-A=1-BLFE

3.

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

(b)

Income taxes

Determining income tax provisions involves judgement on the future
tax treatment of certain transactions and significant estimation are
required in determining the provision for income tax. Management
carefully evaluates tax implications of transactions and tax provisions
are set up accordingly. The tax treatment of such transactions is
reconsidered periodically to take into account all changes in tax
legislations. Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses not
yet used and temporary deductible differences. As those deferred
tax assets can only be recognised to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profits will be available against which the unused
tax credits can be utilised, management's judgement is required
to assess the probability of future taxable profits. Management's
assessment is constantly reviewed and additional deferred tax assets
are recognised if it becomes probable that future taxable profits will
allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered. The Group has not
recognised deferred income tax assets in respect of estimated tax
losses carried forward disclosed in Note 8 as there is no evidence

that future taxable profits will be available.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's primary objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the

Group's ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can continue to

provide returns for equity shareholders and benefit for other stakeholders,

by pricing products and services commensurately with the level of risk and

by securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group regularly reviews and manages its capital structure to maintain

a balance between the higher shareholder returns that might be possible

with higher levels of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded

by a sound capital position, and makes adjustments to the capital structure

in light of changes in economic conditions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

The Group monitors its capital structure by reviewing its gearing ratio and
cash flow requirements, taking into account its future financial obligations
and commitments. For this purpose, the Group defines gearing ratio as
total borrowings over equity attributable to equity shareholders of the

Company as shown in the consolidated statement of financial position. As

at 31 December 2018, the Group's gearing ratio was 132% (2017: 60%).

There were no changes in the management's approach to capital
management of the Group during the year. In order to maintain or
adjust the ratio, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, issue new shares, raise new debt financing or sell assets to

reduce debt.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject to externally

imposed capital requirements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HEZZ-\FT-A=+-BLFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 5. KBRS HESE
(@)  Revenue @) W&
The principal activities of the Group are securities trading AEEFZXEBREFEERR
and investments, provision of financial advisory services, asset B REMBERRE  BEER
management and trading wines. FEBBEE -
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers by major RIBEMIMBRIAD 2EFE
products or service lines is as follows: KT
2018 2017
—E-N\F —EB—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERr THET
Continuing operations BELEER
Revenue from contracts with customers BERMBHREENE 155
within the scope of HKFRS 15 HEEANEEFNEHBRA
Disaggregated by major products or BREIBEMIRBEEE S
service lines
— Trading of wines —-EEAEH 27,145 50,033
— Financial advisory services — B TS AR TS — 3,420
— Asset management -BEER 51,907 —
79,052 53,453
Revenue from other sources H A 1 25 R
Income from debt investments RERBIRE ZK/A 47,709 —
Income from held-to-maturity investments REFZEIHAREZ
LN — 18,021
Change in fair value of financial assets at ARFEF ARG
fair value through profit or loss EREELTEED 7,021 1,063
Dividend income R BHA 1,485 5337
Gain on disposal of debt investments at HERE AR HE 2 B
amortised cost K&z W 113 —
(Loss) gain on disposal of financial assets HERATEGABRZ
at fair value through profit or loss SREE 2 (B e (10,766) 10,029
45,562 34,450
Total S 124,614 87903
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

@)

Revenue (Continued)

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers by the
timing of revenue recognition and by geographic markets is disclosed
in Note 5(c).

The Group has applied practical expedient in paragraph 121 of
HKFRS |5 to exempt the disclosure of revenue expected to be
recognised in the future arising from contracts with customers in
existence at the reporting date to its income from financial advisory
services and asset management as the Group recognises revenue
at the amount to which it has a right to invoice, which corresponds
directly with the value to the customer of the Group’s performance

completed to date.

The Group has applied the practical expedient in paragraph |21
of HKFRS 15 to exempt the disclosure of revenue expected to be
recognised in the future arising from contracts with customers in
existence at the reporting date to its revenue from sales of wines as
the performance obligation is part of a contract that has an original

expected duration of one year or less.

e MR AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
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Liabilities related to contract with customers b) FEHEEFEANERE
2018
—E-N\E
HK$'000
T
Contract liabilities ROV
— Billings in advance of performance in respect of - BEEREHRAMN
asset management activity BREE 15,671
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A\ Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MBIRRMHEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HEZZ-\FT-A=+-BLFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 5. WRRkaIHEEE)
(b) Liabilities related to contract with customers (Continued) (b)) FHEEFEANEEE)
Movements in contract liabilities BHREZEE
2018
ZE-N\F
HK$'000
TER
Balance at | January n—A—B &% —
Increase in contract liabilities as a result of FEEERERPNARERR
billings in advance of asset management activity RRABEM 15,671
Balance at 31 December Rt+-—A=+—Hz&% 15,671
When the Group receives fee income before asset management EREEEEEEREY
activity commences this will give rise to contract liabilities at the LI E -Gl N
start of the contracts, until the revenue recognised on the project ERESRNRERELS
exceeds the amount of fee income received. MaflE BEEM®ERNE
B HBBMEREOER
WA o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

(©

Segment reporting

The Group's executive directors are the chief operation decision

makers (“CODM") as they collectively make strategic decisions

towards the Group's operations based on nature of business.

In a manner consistent with the way in which information is reported

internally to the CODM for the purposes of resource allocation and

performance assessment, the Group has presented the following

reportable segments:

(@)
(®)

()

securities trading and investments
trading of wines

financial advisory services

asset management

healthcare products, which are mainly ginseng products
(classified as discontinued operations during the year ended 3|
December 2017 (see Note 9))

pharmaceutical products, which are mainly licensed medicines
(classified as discontinued operations during the year ended 3|
December 2017 (see Note 9))

e MR AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
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"m Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HEZZ-\FT-A=+-BLFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 5. WRkaIHEEE)
Segment revenue and results SEWRERER

REEP A K H0 Y 28 12 B 2 Uk 2 B ) A9
gy ERAKER_FT-\EL-F
—tFT A=t -HLEEENEBRSD
ERDBRAFEMALIELERRE
REBBASKEN ZHD BNEHET
W e

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers by the timing
of revenue recognition, as well as information regarding the Group's
reportable segments as provided to the CODM for the purposes of
resource allocation and assessment of segment performance for the years
ended 3| December 2018 and 2017 is set out below.

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE-F—|E+-f=+—HIEE

Continuing operations
BEEERE
Securities trading Financial Asset
and investments  Trading of wines  advisory services Management Total
E5RERRE ROEER  HEERR REER 3

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T Tin Tin

Revenue from contracts with customers: REEFRNNNE
- At a point in time -RE-RHEE - 7,145 - 35,000 62,145
- Over time -Hh-BEE - - - 16907 16907
- 7,145 - 51,907 79,052
Revenue from other sources REARRRHNE 45,561 - - - 45,56
Reportable segment revenue PEE v 45,56 7,145 - 51,907 124614
Segment (lss) profi PEENBR) (27275) (490) (69) 8770 (19488)
Other income EfpA 693
Unallocated corporate and other expenses RARRARIHR (20539)
Share of loss of joint venture ElaERABE (158)
Finance costs HER (20,721)
Loss before taxtion BHAEE (60413)
Income tax expenses FERL (419
Loss for the year EERR (60832)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5.

Segment revenue and results (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 (Note)

Continuing operations

e MR AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE-T-\FT-A=1-BLFE

KRR E (&)
PRBERFEE)
BE-F—tF+ZA=1T-HILFE
(Het)

Discontinued operations

RREREH BALEERH
Securities
trading and Financial
Investments Trading advisory Healthcare - Pharmaceutical
#7E8 of wines services Subtotal  products  products Subtotal Total
RRE HBERE BHEARE Nt REER  BE¥Em it #;
HKF000  HKFO000  HKSO000  HKS000  HK$000  HKS000  HKFO000  HK$000
TRt Tér  TEn  TEn  TEn  TEn  TEn TEn
Revenue from contracts with customers: REEFAANNE

- Ata point intime ~RR-RRA - NWm M B\ B BN B TS
- Over time ~ ARk = = S = S = S =
- 50033 3420 53453 133 15,391 1554 78977
Revenue from other sources REARRRGNE 34450 = = 34450 - - - 34450
Reportable segment revenue PEE e 34450 50033 3420 87903 133 25391 215524 113427
Segment profit (oss) AR (BE) 23387 1875 155 26417 (839) 1355 (7043) 19374
Other income HpA 2 30 ]
Unallocated corporate and other expenses FARAARA bR (5773) (2371) (28,145)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE-FHBAR 2 b - 62298 62,298
Share of loss of oint venture ElhaER7ER (4 = (427
Finance costs §BER (7543) (2591) (10,136)
Profit (loss) before taxation BT (B8) (73%) 50322 £9%
Income tax expenses AR (412) - (412)
Profit (loss) for the year ERENBR) (1739) 5032 4,564

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS |5 using the accumulative effect

method. Under this method, the comparative information is not restated and

was prepared in accordance with HKAS 18 (see Note 2(c)(ii)).

Mt : AEBERARTHEENRERS
AU REEUNSEIS% REZH
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‘a\ Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MBIRRMHEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HEZZ-\FT-A=+-BLFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Segment revenue and results (Continued)
Revenue are allocated to the reportable segments with reference to
revenue and income generated by those segments.

Segment (loss) profit represents the loss from or profit earned by each
segment without allocation of certain other income, other gains and
losses, certain finance costs, share of loss of joint venture and unallocated
corporate and other expenses. This is the information reported to
the CODM for the purposes of resources allocation and performance
assessment.

Segment assets and liabilities
The following is an analysis of the Group's assets and liabilities by

reportable and operating segments:

As at 3| December 2018

KRR E (&)
PRBERFEE)
W HE2E D BRET RE RRAK

NEEAZHRNE

PRBR)ENESIBRELEZERE
A Y EA AR T EMEA - Bt
KaEkBE ETHHEER  2ERE
RAMBRERADE AR RAMIH -
EHRETREERAREZMEN LA
BHEERRERR

PREERRE
ATREEZBRREENBIASHEE
EREZDH

R-E-NF+ZA=1—-H

Continuing operations

Securities trading Trading Financial Asset
and investments of wines advisory services Management Total
REEENRE BEERE  URHARE EEER @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FTER FER FER TER
ASSETS &E
Segment assets PTEEE 587,433 19,435 41 2,150 609,059
Unallocated items: RAEER
Property, plant and equipment  ¥1% + BB Rk [,494
Deposits, prepayments and e BRFER
other receivables Eth WA 8,386
Interest in joint venture REERAIMESR 1,415
Bank balances and cash RITEBRRRS 185,058
Total assets BENRS 805,412
LIABILITIES af
Segment liabilities PEEE 91,519 331 18 29,315 121,183
Unallocated items: RABER
Other payables A ENTIE 4711
Borrowings EE S 352,657
Total liabilties BEAE 478,551
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)

As at 3] December 2017

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group disposed of its
discontinued operations, details of which are set out in Note 25, and

accordingly no segment assets and liabilities of the Group's discontinued

operations were presented.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B R R AR M AT

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE-T-\FT-A=1-BLFE

5. WERkoMB|E#)
SERERAM(H)
R=®—tF1+=f=1-F

Continuing operations

BE-F—tF+-A=t—BLF
B OARBEERELLENEE A
B RN S - TR 251
SREE L EE RO RAERAN

Securities
trading and Financial
investments Trading advisory
BEHEE of wines services Total
KIEE  BEREE UBHARS @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT FET FET
ASSETS EE
Segment assets PEEE 344,620 25,075 53 369,748
Unallocated items: KPEIEE :
Property, plant and equipment m¥ - BERRE 2,423
Deposits, prepayments and Be - BRNRER
other receivables HA U AR TR 5256
Interest in joint venture REERAIMER 1,573
Bank balances and cash BOIEHRERS 254,497
Total assets BELE 633,497
LIABILITIES g
Segment liabilities SEEE 1,183 54 853 2,090
Unallocated items: KAEIER :
Other payables H it JE T 5RIR 9,277
Borrowings EES 234,000
Taxation payable FERTiIE 442
Total liabilities BEAE 245,809
REEBRERERAA
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HEZZ-\FT-A=+-BLFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)
For the purpose of monitoring segment performances and allocating

resources between segments:

g all assets are allocated to reportable and operating segments,
other than certain property, plant and equipment, certain deposits,
prepayments and other receivables, interest in joint venture and

bank balances and cash.

. all liabilities are allocated to reportable and operating segments,

other than certain other payables and certain borrowings.

Other segment information

Amounts included in measure of segment profit or loss or segment assets:

For the year ended 31 December 2018

KRR E (&)
PREERER(E)
REEDBRZIBRARERIK -

s MBEENEKEZEERELKENE
EETYE BERRE ATR

- BNSELREMREERE  ©
ERAINERARRITER IR

A
(=)
SR o

/)LI|\ °

BERGENRENAERANBEE
A

BE-E-/\F1=A=1—-HL¥E

Continuing operations

BELERY
Securities
trading and Financial
investments Trading advisory Asset
B5HE of wines services  Management  Unallocated Total
kRE AEERE MEEARE 2 BEEE i Azt

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AR THER TER THER AR TAx
Additions to property, % - BEREERE
plant and equipment - - 8 402 41 451
Depreciation of property, % BEREENE
plant and equipment — 6 18 109 970 [,103
Loss allowance on debt EBREEERR
investments 54,282 - - - — 54,282
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE-T-\FT-A=1-BLFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5. WRRkaIHEEE)
Other segment information (Continued) HittnBER(E)
For the year ended 3| December 2017 BE_F—+tF+-A=1—HIL¥E
Continuing operations Discontinued operations
REAZEK BALEERH
Securties
trading and Financial
nvestments Trading advisory  Healtheare - Pharmaceutical
#5EE of wines services products products  Unallocated Total

RRE  WEEEE WEAGEN 2 RRER  BEER 0 AOK it
HKS000  HKSO00  HKSODD  HKSOOD  HKSO00  HKSOOD  HKSO00
T TAn TR TAR TR T TR

Additions to property, plant and equipment 0% BEREHRE - 30 5 - 3 320 3339
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 1% ~ BE RXENE - 3 4 - - 1033 1040
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments BREEE B - - - 78 - - 78
Reversal of write-down of inventoris HENEAR = = = = (3.385) = (3385)
Allowance (write-back of allowance) for bad REEER(RRAR)
and doubtful debts - - - 3620 (2868) - 752
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment  (1E#% B
S - - - - - 414 414
REEBRZRARDA
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e R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HEZZ-\FT-A=+-BLFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5. WRRkaIHEEE)
Information about major customers BRIEEFZER
Revenue from customers of the respective years contributing over 0% of HBFEAAEEAKR 0% ENE
the total revenue of the Group is as follows: PlamT
2018 2017
ZE-N\F —TtF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TRT TRT
Continuing operations BELEER
Customer A’ BPA 51,828 —
Customer B’ RFB — 13,108
Revenue from asset management business segment. REBEBBRERH B2
" Revenue from trading of wines business segment. REBEBREEEBH B2 UG -
Geographical information I E R
The following table sets out information about the geographical location TREINEE()AEERBINIEF M
of (i) the Group's revenue from external customers and (i) the Group's Bk (NVAEBYE  BERREARE
property, plant and equipment and interests in joint venture (“specified EORER(FERRDEE MR
non-current assets”). The geographical location of customers is based on UEEF - BPaMIEAEBURR R H#
the location at which the services were provided or the goods delivered. BREXRZNEMONE - BEFRBE
The geographical location of the specified non-current assets is based ERMBEUENEREENBRLE (R
on the physical location of the asset, in the case of property, plant and ME - BERRENS) UREEMZ
equipment, and the location of operations, in the case of interest in joint (REErEERME)
venture.
Revenues from external customers Specified non-current assets
RENMIRF Ui REXRDEE
2018 2017 2018 017
“%-NE i “8-NE “E-tF
Continuing Continuing - Discontinued Continuing Continuing  Discontinued
operations operations  operations operations operations  operations
57 | Total i B Total 57 | Total & B Total
REXR g BERE  BERR Bt BERR B BERR BERR a5t
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000 ~ HKP000  HK§000  HK§'000  HK$000  HKFO00  HKF000  HK$000
Tér fEr TEr TEr  TEn  TEn Tz TEr  TER  TER
Hong Kong B 124614 124614 84483 - 84,483 3112 302 402 - 4012
PRC i — - 3420 25524 28,944 4l 4] 53 - 53
124614 124614 87,903 25524 113427 3,263 3,263 4075 - 4075
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B R R AR M AT

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE-T-\FT-A=1-BLFE

OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 6. HMRE
2018 2017
—B-N\F —TLF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERx FHET
Continuing operations RECERE
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE  BEkRB2ER
plant and equipment — (414)
LOSS BEFORE TAXATION FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS 7. BELEEBNRFAIEE

Loss before taxation is arrived after charging (crediting):

@)

BREABRRMRGIA) TIEEKE

%
Finance costs () BBEAX
2018 2017
“B-N\F “EtF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER FET
Continuing operations BERSEER
Interest on bank borrowings RITEEF S 2,268 -
Interest on other borrowings HipfEEH S 13,209 4,684
Other borrowing costs HifEERA 7,102 2,861
Total interest expense on AT EFABRED
financial liabilities not at fair value ERMBEMNE
through profit or loss 22,579 7,545
REEBREZERERA A

2018 &

169



ﬁ‘ Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MBIRRMHEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HEZZ-\FT-A=+-BLFE

7.  LOSS BEFORE TAXATION FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS
(Continued)

~

B

BEEXBNRBABE#E)

(b)  Staff costs (b) BIRK
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTER FHET
Continuing operations REREER
Directors” emoluments (Note 10) EEME (T 10)
— fees and other emoluments e kEMmie 4,884 3,203
Other staff costs HBTHY
— salaries, allowances and bonus —He  FEREA 30,773 12,130
— retirement benefits scheme contributions — RREFIFT EIfHE 1,455 305
37,112 15,638

OCI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements ‘ﬁl
e BIRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE-T-\FT-A=1-BLFE

LOSS BEFORE TAXATION FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS 7. HESEERNBRBAISEZ)

(Continued)
()  Other items (c) HtEE
2018 2017
—B-N\F —TtF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET TRT
Continuing operations REREER
Cost of inventories recognised as an expense BR AR X ZFEKA 24,391 45,700
Commission fee relating to asset REEEREKAH AEE
management business 14,400 —
Auditors’ remuneration ZEE &
— audit services — B MR 1,296 1,350
— other services —E R 200 1,440
1,496 2,790
Loss allowance on debt investments EHRE 2 BREE
(Note 26(b)(i)) (P =E26(b)(i)) 54,282 =
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BERREFTE
equipment 1,103 1,040
Operating lease charges: KeEMEER -
minimum lease payments HIEHEERE 6,497 6,256
Legal and professional expenses ERREXER 15,218 11,309
Bank interest income FIMEBWA(BREEEMBAR)
(included in other income) (666) (64)
REEBRZRARDA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS R MY R

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE-T-\FT-A=1-BLFE

8. INCOME TAX EXPENSES 8. MBHXH
2018 2017
—E-N\F —EB—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERr THET
Continuing operations HEREEB
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEMEH 418 122
PRC Enterprise Income Tax REI B EMEH | 290
419 412
(a) Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands and the @ BREFRSHESRABREAHENH

British Virgin Islands, the Group is not subject to any income tax in

these two jurisdictions.

(b)  The PRC Enterprise Income Tax rate is 25% (2017: 25%).

()  On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed The
Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017 (the “Bill") which
introduces the two-tiered profits tax rate regime. The Bill was signed

into law on 28 March 2018 and was gazetted on the following day.

Under the two-tiered profits tax rate regime, the first HK$2 million
of profits of a qualifying group entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and
profits above HK$2 million will be taxed at 16.5%.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, Hong Kong Profits Tax of
the qualified entity of the Group is calculated in accordance with
the two-tiered profits tax rates regime. The profits of other group
entities in Hong Kong not qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax

rates regime will continue to be taxed at the flat rate of 16.5%.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, Hong Kong Profits Tax was

calculated at a flat rate of 16.5% of the estimated assessable profits.

The directors of the Company are in the view that the impact of
the two-tiered profits tax rates regime on the Group's current and

deferred tax position is not material.
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INCOME TAX EXPENSES (Continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Reconciliation between tax expenses and accounting loss at applicable tax

rates is as follows:

e MR AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE-F \Ft-A=t-ALEE

RS-l ))
BREAMEFE BB HEeHEE
ZHEMT

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
T THET
Loss before taxation REFBREEB 2 HAEE
from continuing operations (60,413) (7,326)
Notional tax on loss before taxation, BREAERZ 2ENE  RAH
calculated at the rates applicable to profits  BlARERE 2R FEAHEHE
in the jurisdictions concerned (10,192) (1,110)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible AP X HEHBE FE
for tax purpose 10,163 1,550
Tax effect of income not taxable BRRMIWAHRIE ZE
for tax purpose (2,538) (1,839)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERVEBBHNACFE 2,864 1,994
Tax effect of unrecognised temporary AEREGRIEER
differences B2 122 (183)
Income tax expenses from REFBREER 2 AEHAX
continuing operations 419 412

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has estimated unused

tax losses of approximately HK$55,166,000 (2017: approximately

HK$37,806,000) available for offset against future profits relating to

the continuing operations. No provision of deferred taxation has been

recognised in respect of the tax losses due to unpredictability of future

profit streams. The unused tax losses do not expire under current tax

legislation.

The Group had no other significant potential deferred tax assets and

liabilities for the years ended 3| December 2018 and 2017 and at 3|

December 2018 and 2017.

RBEHR ARBEHAAREAHE
BB 455166000 TL(ZS—+F : 4
37,806,000 % 7T ) AT K S B AR B IS &
EBMATER - AR KK EMN B H
TR g Ept BB BRI
EEE - RBRIVE  ZARANE
HAEE 8 .

 E_FT-\FRZE-LF+ZA
ST-HLEFERRRZZ-NEKR=
T—tF+ZA=1+—H FEELE
HisNEEEEHBEERAR

REEBRZRARDA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS R MY R

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE-T-\FT-A=1-BLFE

9.  DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
The results of discontinued operations dealt with in the consolidated

financial statements for the year ended 3| December 2017 is analysed as

ERIERERY
REE-T—tF+-_A=1+—HLHF
EHaBRRRAREZCRIERLSE

follows: EBZEBEAMMAT
2017
—T—tF
HK$'000
THET
Profit for the year from discontinued AEFERLE BER
operations from Pharmaceutical Products ERRERZBRN
and Healthcare Products Business (RMHF9))
(see Note 9(a)) 50,322
Pharmaceutical Products and Healthcare Products Business BEEQRRBERER

On 7 November 2016, the Company entered into an agreement with an
independent third party to dispose of the entire equity interest in Captain
Wise Limited and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Captain
Wise Group” on the "“Pharmaceutical Products and Healthcare Products
Business”) for a cash consideration of HK$I0 million (the “VSD"). The
VSD was approved by the shareholders of the Company on 21 December
2017 and completed on 22 December 2017,

Upon the signing of this agreement, the directors of the Company
considered that the VSD was highly probable and were of the view
that the assets and liabilities to Pharmaceutical Products and Healthcare
Products Business were expected to be sold before the end of 2017.
Accordingly, the assets and liabilities attributable to the Pharmaceutical
Products and Healthcare Products Business were classified as a disposal
group held-for-sale at 31 December 2016 and its results were included in

discontinued operations for the years ended 3| December 2017.

The carrying amounts of assets and liabilities of the Captain Wise Group at

the date of disposal are disclosed in Note 25.
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RZFE-—RF+—HA+tH KARIHE—
BB = 77 5] M Hh#k A B 10,000,000
B ILHE Captain Wise Limited X E KB
A7) (48[ Captain Wise £ H | 2 [E %
EmERBEMER] 2 2HRAER
([FEEAMESE]) - FFERLE
EFER_F—tF+A-+—HER
NRAIREHE YR =ZF—+F+=A
Z+ZHREMK -

REAGZER  KNAREEZEIE
FEALESHERTEET UYRAE
EERRRBREREBEGEERERE
BHR Tt FFRADE - At -
BE-_T—R"E+-A=1t—0 BE
EmRRREDEBELEERERED
BABELEZLESRE  MEAXER
BE-T—+tF+-A=1+—HLFE
ARBERIEGEETR -

Captain Wise EERHE RS2 KERE
A B 325 B -



9.

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (Continued)
(a) Analysis of the results of discontinued operations, and the results (a) BRIKERFEEERBLIE

recognised on the disposal group, is as follows:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements ‘ﬁ‘
e B RS R R M R

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HEZZ-\FT-A=+-BLFE

9. BRILEREXK®E)

RERZZFBIINTHT -

Period from
| January 2017

to 22 December

2017
(date of disposal)
—E—+t&E
—HA—HZ
-
+=—BA=+=H
(HERH)HE
HK$’000
THERT
Revenue LhEny 25,524
Cost of sales HHE AR (13,996)
Other gains Hofh W zs 473
Other income Hpth Y A 1,160
Investment income RERA 343
Selling and distribution costs HERKHER (8,450)
Administrative expenses 1TH (14,439)
Finance costs MBER (2,591)
Loss before tax HATEE (11,976)
Income tax expense PR —
Net operating loss for the period/year AER/ FEBRIELE
from discontinued operations, X¥BEEBERTE  HKRHE
net of tax (1'1,976)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE - E ARz W
(Note 25) (BfEE 25) 62,298
Profit from discontinued operations BERIREER 25T 50,322
REEBRZRARDA
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‘ﬁ\ Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MBIRRMHEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HEZZ-\FT-A=+-BLFE

9.  DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (Continued)
(a)  (Continued)

Note: Loss for the period from discontinued operations has been arrived at

after charging (crediting):

9. BRILEREXK®E)

(@)

(%&)
Wit AHRERLEEXBEBED
R (FEA)THRE -

Period from
| January 2017

to 22 December

2017
(date of disposal)
—E-tF
—B—HZ
—E—tF
+=ZHA=+=H
(HEBH) A
HK$’000
THET
Staff costs ETH%
— salaries, allowances and bonus — e R RIEA 7,573
— retirement benefits scheme contributions — RIRREM Bl R 1,500
9,073
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments TERHERIE 2 #iH 78
The amount of inventories recognised BRRRX FELHE
as an expense
— Carrying amount of inventories sold —BHEFEZREE 13,996
— Reversal of write-down* — J B HORL * (3,385)
10,611
Operating lease rentals in respect T REFREHEL
of land and buildings MERE 518
Allowance for bad and doubtful debts REHREE 752
Bank interest income(included in other income) RITFIBRA(BRBEEMBAR) (15)
Unrealised gains on current investments REREZRER W=
(included in other gains) (BfEE M) (330)

Reversal of write-down of inventories made in current year

arose due to increase in the estimated net realisable value of

certain products as a result of obsolete inventories and/or a

change in consumer preferences.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements lﬁk
e BIRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HEZZ-\FT-A=+-BLFE

9. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (Continued) 9. CRLELEEK#E)
(b)  Cash flows b) HERE

Period from
| January 2017
to 22 December
2017
(date of disposal)
—E-tfF
—HA—BZ%
—E—tF
+T=BR=+=H
(HEBH)HME
HK$’000
TER

Operating cash flows RERENE (3,804)
Investing cash flows KERERE (9,243)
Financing cash flows REHERE 11,513

Total cash flows BenERE (1,534)

REEBRERERAA
2018 4 3§



mE MWK

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HEZZ-\FT-A=+-BLFE

0. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S EMOLUMENTS

The emoluments paid or payable to the directors and chief executive were

Aﬁx Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

10. EERFETHRASHE
ENIENEZERTIRITRAL ZEHM

as follows: LN
Executive directors Non-executive directors Independent non-executive directors
UhEs AnES BUF4fES
(Chief (Chief
Executive  Operating
(Chairman) ~ Officer) ~ Officer) Wong Total
Feng Hai LY Xiao Qing Chan Zheng  Lam Man Chang Stacey  TsoSiu Fei 018
(3R) (ERYGE) (EREEE) MeeSe  DuPeng  Xiaosw SumAbert  Tat]oel Martn  LunAln  John Xiang =5-N\E
B§ 3B K RXE HR B0 MER  WEE RER EER 0 W 4w
HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK§'000  HKS000  HK$000 ~ HK$000  HK$'000  HK§'000  HK§'000  HK$000  HK$000
Tn fEn  TEn  TEn  fEn  TEr  fEn  fRn  TEr  fEn  TRn  TER
(note 2) (note b) (note d)
(Wita) (Kitb) (Witd)
Fees Pz - - - - - - 100 M M M 158 78
Other emoluments ~ EAtf&
Salaries e - 2910 - 935 - - - - - - - 3845
Retrement benefit ~ EAEREHE
scheme - 0 - 1 - - 5 2 2 - - il
- 2930 - il - - 105 15 25 y2 158 4,884
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE-T-\FT-A=1-BLFE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S EMOLUMENTS (Continued) 0. EERTETHAEME 2
Executive directors Non-executive directors Independent non-executive directors
HiEs Kunes BUHES
(Chief (Chief
Executive  Operting
(Chairman) ~~ Officer) ~ Officer) Wong Total
Feng Hai LYl Xiao Qing Chan Lam Theng  Lam Man Chang Stacey  TsoSu 017
(¥8) (BEHOE) (EREZE) MeeSe  SkPng  DuPerg Xaosu  Sum Abert — Tat Joel Matin LA ZE-tE
[ EY HE RER WY th IE  WER  HER EEM %R it
HKS000  HKS000  HKFOO0  HKS000  HK$000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKSO000  HKSO00  HKS000
Thn  TEr  Tan  Thr  TEm TR TR A TR TR TEn T
(note ¢) (note ¢)
(Mie) (Hkc)
Fees e - - - - - - - L] L] L] 150 870
Other emoluments  EfuBé
Selaies i - 3 - n 45 - - - - - - m
Discetionary bonuses ~ AfE7EAL - 50 - - - - - - - - = 50
Retirement beneft ~ R{FER(313)
scheme - - - I8 9 - - 2 1 1 - 63
- 3 - 1140 414 - - 15 15 15 150 3003

Mr. Feng Hai and Ms. Xiao Qing did not receive any remuneration for their

appointment as executive directors.

The emoluments of Ms. Chan Mee Sze and Mr. Li Yi, the executive
directors of the Company, were mainly for their services in connection
with the management of the affairs of the Company and the Group. The
emoluments of independent non-executive directors were mainly for their

services as directors of the Company.

During both years, no emoluments were paid or payable by the Group to
any directors as an inducement to join, or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office. There was no arrangement under which a

director has waived or agreed to waive any remuneration.

BEEEREBRTYERRIERE
RPTESWEULAME -

ARARTEEREBRLRFREL
W I BERREEELARARAKHE
EHOREME - BIUFRITEEOM
EFERRFECARAESRHOM
4o

RREFE  AEEHECIREME
AEZZME  AERBRIIEMALM
ARKEREZR N RERAE - 8
BEENRIRENBEMFE 2 ZH -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MBIRRMHEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE-T-\FT-A=1-BLFE

0. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

Notes:

(2)

(b)

©

(d)

Ms. Chan Mee Sze resigned as an executive director on | September
2018.

Mr. Lam Man Sum Albert retired as independent non-executive director on
7 May 2018.

Mr. Tso Siu Lun Alan was appointed as independent non-executive
director on 16 May 2017.

Mr. Fei John Xiang was appointed as independent non-executive director on

I8 May 2018.

Mr. Lam Suk Ping resigned as an executive director on 6 July 2017.

1. EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group, one is

a director of the Company (2017: one director) whose emoluments are

disclosed in Note 10 above. The emoluments of the remaining four (2017:

four) individuals for the year ended 31 December 2018 were as follows:

10.

ESRTETBRAEME2)

Bt -

@)

()

REBLIBMARTEE R-F
—NEFENA—BER -
HEREER-Z-NFRALAR
EBUFMTES -

EEMEER_T—tFRA+AH
BEZERBUFHNITES -

EARE_FT-N\FRATN\BEZ
ERBIUIFFMTES

MRFEER _F—LFLARBEH
EHTES -

EEME

rEENEERRMEcANAL
FUBARRER(ZF—tF: L
EX) REZMEER EXMEIOR
B-BE_T-/\fT-A=t—AL
FE BRTOM(ZZ—tF: @) A

TZMEewmT
2018 2017
—E-N\E§ —TtF
HK$'000 HK$'000
it Fibt
Continuing operations RESEEB

Salaries and other benefits e AR 6,592 5257
Contributions to retirement benefits schemes RIKEFFHEIHE 57 53
6,649 5310

Their emoluments were within the following bands: BEFHMERATAR
2018 2017
—E-N\E —T—+F
No. of No. of
employees employees
BEAH EEAH
HK$Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 FEEITE 1,000,000 7T 0
HK$ 1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001 T E 1,500,000 7T 3
HK$ 1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 ,500,001 7 7L £ 2,000,000 7 7T |

OCI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE 12.

Basic (loss) earnings per share is calculated by dividing the (loss) profit
for the year attributable to equity shareholders of the Company by the

weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

e MR AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE-T-\FT-A=1-BLFE

SR (58 BH
SREAUSHE) BN DRERAREK
SR 4 P BSE)  FUB AF FO 2 B4T
HRRIETFLGHEBHE -

Basic: HA
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
T TR
(Loss) profit attributable to equity AR AIER R R (G (1R )& 7
shareholders of the Company
— Continuing operations —FHEREXK (60,792) (7,738)
— Discontinued operations —BRIEREER — 50,322
(60,792) 42,584
Weighted average number of ordinary BETEBRIETHH
shares in issue 1,059,749,920 1,059,749,920
Diluted: Bs:

Diluted (loss) earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding assuming conversion of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares. There were no dilutive potential ordinary
shares during the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017. Therefore,
the diluted (loss) earnings per share is the same as basic (loss) earnings

per share.

SREE(BER) BN IR R RITEER
BnEFHHELBE  URREHE
EEFLBRCELBMAE - HEZ
B-N\FR-Z2—tF+-HA=1+—H
FEERYEBEEETEBM - Bkt -
FREE(BR)BNASREAN(ER)
AFER -

REEBRZRARDA
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Aﬂ\ Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MBIRRMHEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HEZZ-\FT-A=+-BLFE

3. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. W% - BERRE

Furniture,

Leasehold fixtures and

improvements equipment

HE eI Total
MELE RERRE meE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TET FTExT FTEx

Cost: B
At | January 2017 KR-_ZE—+F—H—H 1,122 484 1,606
Exchange adjustments BEE 5 SR B — 4 4
Additions NE 2,430 876 3,306
Disposals HE (1,122) (484) (1,606)
At 31 December 2017 RZZE—+F+-A=+—H 2,430 880 3310
At | January 2018 R-_Z—-N\¥—H—H 2,430 880 3310
Exchange adjustments BEE 5 8 B — ) )
Additions NE 336 I5 451
At 31 December 2018 R-ZE-N\F+_A=+—H 2,766 993 3,759
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements ‘ﬁ\
e BIRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HEZZ-\FT-A=+-BLFE

13.  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 13. W% BERRGS)

Furniture,

Leasehold fixtures and

improvements equipment
HE B Total
MERE RERRE k]
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FEx FEx FEx
Depreciation: wE:
At | January 2017 KR-_ZE—+F—H—H 765 193 958
Exchange adjustments B i, B - — —
Provided for the year FREE 869 171 1,040
Eliminated on disposals & R (951) (239) (1,190)
At 3| December 2017 RZE—+F
+-A=+—H 683 125 808
At | January 2018 RZE—-N\F—H—H 683 125 808
Exchange adjustments EE 3¢, S B — — —
Provided for the year FARE 911 192 1,103
At 31 December 2018 RZZ-N\F+=A=+—H 1,594 317 1,911
NET BOOK VALUES RESE
At 31 December 2018 RZE—N\&F
+-A=+—H” 1,172 676 1,848
At 31 December 2017 ATE—+F
+-A=+—H 1,747 755 2,502
FREBERARA T
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A

A Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HEZZ-\FT-A=+-BLFE

14 DEBT INVESTMENTS AT AMORTISED COST/HELD-TO-MATURITY

14, REBERAHEZERRE BE

INVESTMENTS HHRRE
Note 2018 2017
P =t —E-N\F ZE-tF
HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FERT
Corporate debt securities NRMERE S
— Held-to-maturity —FE3HA (a) — 234,000
— At amortised cost — IR SRR T BR (a) 385,952 —
385,952 234,000
Receivable under a loan facility —HEEXRBEBE THRKFKIE (b 31,000 —
416,952 234,000
Less: Loss allowance B SRS
(see Note 26(b)(i)) (BT EE 26(b) (i) (54,282) —
Total debt investments at amortised & $5A AN EHE 2 B 75
cost, net of loss allowance REBBEGNREBEERRS) 362,670 234,000
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHER FHER
Analysed for reporting purpose, AHE2F|RE W (HBREERE)
net of loss allowance
— Non-current portion —JEBNERES & 103,015 234,000
— Current portion —BIEfEL & 259,655 —
362,670 234,000

The effect of initially applying HKFRS 9 in the consolidated financial
statements is described in Note 2(c)(i). Due to the transition method
chosen in applying HKFRS 9, comparative information has not been

restated to reflect the new requirements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements ‘ﬁ‘
e B RS R R M R

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HEZZ-\FT-A=+-BLFE

DEBT INVESTMENTS AT AMORTISED COST/HELD-TO-MATURITY 4, BRBEBAECERRE BEZ

INVESTMENTS (Continued) IHEREE)
(a)  Corporate debt securities @ DRAEEKERS
Corporate debt securities comprise the following: RAIEBESFBRE
Note 2018 2017
B &E —E2-N\F it a3
HK$'000 HK$'000
T T
8% senior guaranteed notes SEEERERER(ISPER])
("SP Note") (0 101,830 117,000
10% senior guaranteed notes I0EBEERZEB(RDRER])
(“RD Note") (il 117,496 117,000
6.95% guaranteed notes 695 BERFRFR([ZREE])
(“ZR Note") (i) 15,860 —
6.5% guaranteed bonds 6SERRER([ZYRE])
("ZY Note") (iv) 78,330 —
5.75% bonds (“GX Note") 5.75EEH([CXEE]) (v) 72,436 =
Gross carrying amount R+ZA=+—Bz@%KHEEAE
at 31 December 385,952 234,000
REEBRZRARDA
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A

2 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE-T-\FT-A=1-BLFE

[4 DEBT INVESTMENTS AT AMORTISED COST/HELD-TO-MATURITY
INVESTMENTS (Continued)

(@)  Corporate debt securities (Continued)
Notes:

() SP Note represented US$13 million (2017: US$I5 million) 8% senior
secured guaranteed notes issued by Sanpower (Hong Kong) Company
Limited (“SP Note Issuer”) maturing on 30 July 2019 with a right to
extend the maturity date by further 12 months exercisable by the
Company. The SP Note is secured by a charge over 131,000,000
shares of C.banner International Holdings Limited, a company listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The Group does not
have the right to sell or re-pledge the shares held as collateral in the
absence of default by SP Note Issuer. In addition, the SP Note is also
secured by corporate guarantee provided by Sanpower Group Co.,
Ltd. (the “Corporate Guarantor”) and personal guarantee provided by

Yuan Yafei (the "Personal Guarantor”).

Prior to | January 2018, SP Note was classified as held-to-maturity
investments and measured at amortised cost in accordance with HKAS
39.

During the year ended 3| December 2018, Sanpower Group Co., Ltd
and Yuan Yafei, being the guarantors of the SP Note failed to provide
additional collateral requested by the Company pursuant to the
terms of the SP Note and this has resulted in occurrence of events of
default ("EOD") under the terms of the SP Note. In October 2018,
the Group has issued EOD notice to SP Note Issuer in respect of all
outstanding sums owing by SP Note Issuer. The Company has made
announcements on 29 October 2018, 20 November 2018 and 10
January 2019 in relation to the default of the SP Note.

OCI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B R R AR M AT

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE-F \Ft-A=t-ALEE

|4 DEBT INVESTMENTS AT AMORTISED COST/HELD-TO-MATURITY |4, REBHERAAHTE2EBRRE BZE

INVESTMENTS (Continued) NBEREE)
(@)  Corporate debt securities (Continued) @) DREERFE)
Notes: (Continued) Wizt - (%)

On | November 2018, the Group appointed a legal adviser and the
Group brought legal proceedings against the Corporate Guarantor
and the Personal Guarantor at the Intermediate People's Court of
Jiangsu Province (the “Court”) by the end of November 2018 for
all outstanding sums owing by the SP Note Issuer under the SP
Note. On 20 December 2018, the Court issued a REFRE (the
“Mediation Order", order numbered (2018) Su 0l Min Chu No.3422)
in relation to the payments obligations of the Corporate Guarantor
and the Personal Guarantor, in respect of the amounts owed under
the SP Note recorded in the M7 (the “Settlement Agreement”)
entered into between OCI Capital Limited (“OCI Capital”), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, the Corporate Guarantor and
the Personal Guarantor on the same day as a result of the mediation
conducted by the Court. Although the Corporate Guarantor and the
Personal Guarantor are required under the Mediation Order and the
Settlement Agreement to repay amounts owed under the SP Note
to OCI Capital by making an initial US$2,000,000 payment by 28
December 2018 and twelve further monthly payments during 2019, no
payment was received by OCI Capital based on the Mediation Order
and Settlement Agreement. Given such failure to pay in accordance
with the agreed schedule, all amounts payable under the Mediation
Order and the Settlement Agreement became immediately due and
payable. Accordingly, on 9 January 2019, the Group submitted an
application to the Court for the enforcement of amounts due under
the Mediation Order and the Settlement Agreement. Up to the date

of these financial statements, such court application is still in progress.
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‘A Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HEZZ-\FT-A=+-BLFE

[4 DEBT INVESTMENTS AT AMORTISED COST/HELD-TO-MATURITY
INVESTMENTS (Continued)

(@)  Corporate debt securities (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(iii)

As at 31 December 2018, the net carrying amount of the SP Note
was HK$48,430,000 (2017: HK$117,000,000). Accordingly, in relation
to the SP Note, the Group made a provision for impairment loss as at
31 December 2018 of HK$53,400,000.

RD Note represented US$I5 million (2017: US$I5 million) 10%
senior guaranteed notes issued by Rundong Fortune Investment
Limited (“RD Note Issuer”) maturing on |5 April 2019. The RD Note
is secured by a charge over 78,000,000 shares of China Rundong Auto
Group Limited, a company listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited. The Group does not have the right to sell or re-pledge

the shares held as collateral in the absence of default by Rundong.

Prior to | January 2018, RD Note was classified as held-to-maturity
investments and measured at amortised cost in accordance with HKAS
39.

ZR Note represented US$2.20 million (face value) of 6.95%
guaranteed notes issued by Zhongrong International Bond 2016
Limited ("ZR Note Issuer”) maturing on 21 June 2019. ZR Note is

unsecured.

OCI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

[4 DEBT INVESTMENTS AT AMORTISED COST/HELD-TO-MATURITY
INVESTMENTS (Continued)

(@)  Corporate debt securities (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(iv)

ZY Note represented US$10 million 6.5% guaranteed bonds issued
by Zunyi New District Investment Co., Ltd. maturing on |2 February
2019, which are subject to a Repo arrangement (“Zunyi Repo”)
between the Company and GF Global Capital Limited. Pursuant to the
Zunyi Repo, the Group agreed to sell the ZY Note to the GF Global
Capital Limited for a consideration of US$5.08 million and agreed to
repurchase the ZY Note on repurchase date as set out in the Zunyi
Repo at the pre-agreed price. The ZY Note was fully settled on 13
February 2019.

GX Note represented US$10 million (face value) of 5.75% bonds
issued by Guangxi Financial Investment Group Co., Ltd. (BEF&EI%
BEEBRAF]) maturing on 23 January 2021, which are subject to
a Repo arrangement ("Guangxi Repo”) between the Group and CEBI
Financial Products Limited (“CEBI"). Pursuant to the Guangxi Repo,
the Group agreed to sell the GX Note to CEBI for a consideration of
US$5 million and agreed to repurchase the GX Note on repurchase

date as set out in the Guangxi Repo at the pre-agreed price.

(b)  Receivable under a loan facility

Receivable under a loan facility bears interest at a range of 1% to

[4% per semi-annum and will be repayable in May 2020.

Except for the SP Note, the Group did not have any debt investments that

were past due but not impaired at 31 December 2018. Further details on

the Group's credit risk arising from debt investments at amortised cost are

set out in Note 26.

e MR AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE-F \Ft-A=t-ALEE
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I\ Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MBIRRMHEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HEZZ-\FT-A=+-BLFE

I5. INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURE I5. REEDNRMNER
2018 2017
ZB-N\F s
HK$°000 HK$’000
TR TER
At | January ®—A—H 1,573 —
Additions NG — 2,000
Share of loss FEihER (158) (427)
At 31 December mt+-A=+—H 1,415 1,573
Details of the Group's interest in joint venture, which is accounted for using the AEERGARMBRREAEREAR
equity method in the consolidated financial statements, are as follow: NEEARERSIEBEINT :
Place of Particulars of issued
Name of joint venture incorporation and business and paid up capital % of ownership interest
RELNTER AR AL R S B ERITRMERAFFE BEREZEBEOL
TYEE-OCI Capital Cayman Islands 100 ordinary shares of US$0.01 Group's Held by
(Cayman) Limited HERHS |00 REAREE0.01 ETZ effective interest  the Company
LR AEBERNE  hARAERA
50% 50%

TYEE-OCI Capital (Cayman) Limited, the only joint venture in which the
Group participates, is an unlisted corporate entity whose quoted market

price is not available.

TYEE-OCI Capital (Cayman) Limited is engaged in the provision of fund
management services. The Group intends to invest in the funds managed

by the joint venture.

OCI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURE (Continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Summarised financial information of TYEE-OCI Capital (Cayman) Limited, adjusted

for any differences in accounting policies, and a reconciliation to the carrying

amount in the consolidated financial statements, are disclosed below:

5.

e MR AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018

BE_Z-\§+-A=t-RI%E

REENENES (&)

TYEE-OCI Capital (Cayman) Limited < 81
BEHRRC R G T HRZEMERIE
BERAMBRATNREEY

BREEMT
2018 2017
—E-N\E s
Gross amounts of TYEE-OCI Capital TYEE-OCI Capital HK$’000 HK$’000
(Cayman) Limited's net assets (Cayman) Limited 2 & THER TR
Current assets MENEE 2,829 3,146
Equity R 2,829 3,146
Included in the above assets: AALREE
Cash and cash equivalents Be kB eHEER 1,309 2,097
2018 2017
—E-0\F —E-tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
TERr TER
Revenue Y zs - -
Loss from operations KEXBZER (317) (854)
Reconciled to the Group's interest in TYEE-OCI  EZAREE M TYEE-OCI Capital
Capital (Cayman) Limited (Cayman) Limited 2 2 ¥1 R
Gross amounts of TYEE-OCI Capital (Cayman)  TYEE-OCI Capital (Cayman) Limited
Limited's net assets BERERASE 2,829 3,146
Group's effective interest AEEZERER 50% 50%
Group's share of TYEE-OCI Capital (Cayman) A& EE{L TYEE-OCI Capital
Limited's net assets (Cayman) Limited & & %18 1,415 1,573
Carrying amount of the Group's interest AEEERREE 1,415 1,573
REEBRZRERD A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MBIRRMHEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE-§ N\Ft-A=t-ALEE

[6. INVENTORIES l6. #E
2018 2017
—E-N\f§ —T—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TRT
Goods purchased for resale HEEZCEERM 17,273 12,790
7. TRADE RECEIVABLES 17. BREZRE
2018 2017
—B-N\E —FtF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERr THEL
Trade debtors in respect of wine trading FHEBREB ESBHBA 1,635 10,451
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts B R — —
1,635 10,451
Ageing analysis Rk DT
As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of trade RBEBRR  REZAHRNBERR
receivables, based on the invoice date and net of loss allowance, is as BREKEFRBZREAFTWT :
follows:
2018 2017
ZB-N\F ZTLF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TERT
0 to 60 days 0-60 H 914 8,824
61 to 90 days 61-90H — —
91 to 180 days 91-180 H 721 1,627
1,635 10,451
The Group allows an average credit period from 90 to 120 days (2017: 90 AEERHFHESEPEIEI20R(Z
to 120 days) to its trade customers. Further details on the Group's credit T—+F:90F10R)2EEH -8

policy and credit risk arising from trade receivables are set out in Note 26. AEECERRRRERKESRNZ
ERBF \aﬁw P7E 26 ©

uTl—
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements ‘6‘

R MWK

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE-T-\FT-A=1-BLFE

DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 18. #&E BANNERHEMBERRE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —TLF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERr THET
Rental and other deposits MERAEMES
— Non-current portion —3EENEAER 1,968 1,968
— Current portion —ENERER 9 208 33
Other receivables and prepayments H fth FE W 3008 R TR 3R
— Interest receivables from —BBRE 2 BKFIE
debt investments 9,544 7,633
— Prepayments for bank and other —BRRITREMEERA
borrowing costs 4,440 2,477
— Prepayments for fund —BNEED E&ARERE
sub-advisory services 1,398 —
— Other prepayments —Ht IR HRIE 2,300 2,239
— Other receivables — H At FE YA 744 347
18,426 12,696
Deposits with brokers R—BELENTTR 764 20,047
21,366 34,744
Less: Non-current portion of rental deposits  J&l : &R & FERIEE (1,968) (1,968)
19,398 32,776
REEBRZRERD A
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‘6‘ Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MBIRRMHEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HEZZ-\FT-A=+-BLFE

19.  FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS 19. BRAVEFABRZEMEE
2018 2017
—E-N\F “T—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT FET
Non-current FERE
US Dollar Bond Linked Notes ELEFHBRE 40,228 —
Current E
US Dollar Bond Linked Notes ILEFHBRE 123,446 —
Total return swaps ("TRS") B ([ A RE]) 27,955 —
Listed equity securities held for trading FHEEE 2 ETIRAE 5
— In Hong Kong —-REE 22,518 82,940
173,919 82,940
Total financial assets at fair value through BRATEFABR EREELR
profit or loss 214,147 82,940
20. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 20. ReERATEHEER
(@)  Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated statements of financial @ RESHBRARRERERT
position and cash flows comprise: ReRREEEEA AR
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$°000 HK$'000
TERT FET
Cash at bank and on hand RITRFENRSE 185,058 254,497

At 31 December 2018, there were bank balances and cash
denominated in RMB amounting to approximately HK$570,000
(2017: approximately HK$3,283,000). Remittance of funds out
of PRC is subject to the relevant rules and regulations of foreign

exchange control promulgated by the PRC government.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 195
e B RS ERAR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE-T-\FT-A=1-BLFE

20. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued) 20, ReRkAELEEBA(E)
(b)  Reconciliation of (loss) profit before taxation to cash used in operations : (b) BRHAI(FE)RFIEEEMANR
LU
NOTE 2018 2017
i —B-N\§ It Sl 2
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR 7L
(Loss) profit before taxation BRERIHEERHL
including discontinued operations BRBtAT (BHR) &R (60,413) 42996
Adjustments for: SLATIER e -
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ~ #1% * BE REZEHE [,103 1,040
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments BRABETEEH - 78
Reversal of write-down of inventories BEFEHA - (3,385)
Allowance for bad and doubtful debts REREE - 752
Loss allowance on debt investments ERREEHERE 7(c) 54,282 -
Foreign exchange gain, net MEWE  HE (400 -
Change in fair value of financial assets at RATEABRRZ
fair value through profit or loss EREELTEED 5() (7,021) (1,393)
Finance costs MBER 7(a) 22,579 10,136
Loss arising from acquisition of KE-RHEANEAR]
an immaterial subsidiary FEEZER — (139)
Share of loss of joint venture EheErZEER 158 427
Bank interest income SRATRB A (666) (79)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HENE - B Rk HE
equipment - 414
Gain on disposal of discontinued operations HMER HEREB NS 9(a) = (62298
Changes in working capital LEERED:
Increase in inventories FEEM (4,483) (9,024)
Decrease (increase) in trade receivables EWESEER S (Em) 8,816 (7.577)
Decrease (increase) in deposits, prepayments &€~ BNHER
and other receivables Efb AR (10) 12,821 (34,520)
Increase in debt investments at RRERAGHEZ BBRE/FE
amortised cost/held-to-maturity investments B ER A (100,910) (234,000)
Increase in financial assets at fair value through ~ RATFEFGIABRZEBEELEN
profit or loss (124,327) (91,088)
Decrease in trade payables ERESEERD 3) (27)
Increase in accruals and other payables RESNEC AN 16,627 8,505
Increase in contract liabilities AaBEM 15,671 -
Cash used in operations LEEHHARS (166,166) (379,182)
REEBRZRERD A
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‘ﬁ* Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MBIRRMHEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HEZZ-\FT-A=+-BLFE

20. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued) 20, BERASEEBB(E)
()  Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities () REMEZTBNAEGEHE
The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities from TRFNAEBREREEZHZ A
financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. BEY(RERLRIIERLED) -
Liabilities arising from financing activities are liabilities for which cash BEREEHELHEBNESR
flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the Group's FARRRERNARBGEREN
consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing ERVEAERETHZEERE
activities. KR o

Accrued interests Borrowings Total

FEat A 2 &g B

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TER TER TER

At | January 2018 R=Z-N¥-A-H 923 234,000 234,923

Changes in financing cash flows: BIE RS RNE 2 Z 8 :

Proceeds from new bank loan  #TIR1TE R 2 A5 IE — 156,500 156,500
Proceeds from new HRERE R FERIA

shareholders’ loans — 313,600 313,600
Repayment of bank loan EEIBITER (78,000) (78,000)
Repayment of shareholders’ EBERRENR

loans — (274,536) (274,536)
Interest paid on bank and B X RTT R A E AR

other borrowings (20,756) — (20,756)
Total changes from financing B EGEBRENEL B AR

cash flows (20,756) 117,564 96,808
Other changes: H
Exchange adjustments bE 5 8 B 933 1,093 2,026
Finance costs M%ER 22,579 — 22,579
Total other changes Hih #8458 23,512 1,093 24,605
At 31 December 2018 R-ZZB-NF+-A=t-H 3,679 352,657 356,336

OCI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HEZZ-\FT-A=+-BLFE

20. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued) 20, BERASEEBB(E)
(c)  Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities (Continued) () NREMETHNEEHRE)
Accrued interests Borrowings Total
FEat RIS B8 B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FiERr TER
At | January 2017 R-Z—+tF¥—-HA—H 335 1164 11,499
Changes from financing cash RERENECE
flows:
Proceeds from new REFREER
shareholder's loan RS R — 245512 245512
Interest paid on bank and B X FIR1T REAME A S
other borrowings (6,622) — (6,622)
Total changes from financing ~ BIEEBIREREL B AT
cash flows (6,622) 245,512 238,890
Other changes: Hith &
Exchange adjustments B H o 2 105 1,095 1,200
Finance costs BER 10,136 — 10,136
Derecognition upon disposal of 7 H& — R E A B
a subsidiary BRIETER (3.031) (23,771) (26,802)
Total other changes Hin & shase 7,210 (22,676) (15,466)
At 31 December 2017 RZZF-t&+-A=1+-H 923 234,000 234,923
REEBRZRERD A
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE-§ N\Ft-A=t-ALEE

21.

22.

ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES 21, ESTRUEREMENIRE
2018 2017
—E-N\E —T—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FET
Accrued staff bonus fEsT B T4 15,834 4,524
Accrued legal and professional fees EHERLEXER 9,827 4,194
Accrued interest FEE 7 8 3,679 923
Other accruals HihpEatEa 262 518
Other payables Hfth e 1 BR 18 ,145 1,205
30,747 11,364

OBLIGATIONS UNDER REPURCHASE AGREEMENTS 22. BEBBETHNEML

As at 31 December 2018, the Group entered into repurchase agreements
with independent third parties whereby the Group agreed to sell
corporate debt securities as included in the financial assets at amortised
cost with gross carrying amount of approximately HK$150,766,000 and
simultaneously agreed to repurchase these corporate debt securities at the
agreed date and price. The repurchase prices are fixed and the Group is
still exposed to substantially all the credit risks, market risks and rewards
of those securities sold. These securities are not derecognised from the
consolidated financial statements but regarded as “collateral” for the
liabilities because the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards

of these securities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE-T-\FT-A=1-BLFE

BORROWINGS 23. fEX
2018 2017
RZB-NF RZF—+F
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
P 5t THET TRT
Bank borrowing, unsecured and RITIES  BEAREER
unguaranteed (a) 78,500 —
Shareholders’ loans, unsecured REEH - EEF
— Cheer Hope Holdings Limited — Cheer Hope Holdings Limited
("Cheer Hope") (“Cheer Hope") (b) 117,496 234,000
— Orient Finance Holdings - RAeBER(EE)BRAA
(Hong Kong) Limited ([RA¢RE]) ()
(“Orient Finance") 156,661 —
352,657 234,000
Notes: i3
(a)  Bank borrowing, unsecured and unguaranteed @) RITEF - BEAREER

As at 3| December 2018, the bank borrowing bears a floating interest rate

at 1% per annum over HIBOR and is denominated in HK$ and repayable

within one year from the end of the reporting period.

(b)  Unsecured loan from Cheer Hope

The loan bears interest at a fixed rate of 4% and is denominated in US$ and

repayable within one year from the end of the reporting period.

(c)  Unsecured loan from Orient Finance

The loan bears interest at a fixed rate of 3.5% and is denominated in US$

and repayable within one year from the end of the reporting period.

R-ZE-NFE+-A=1+—H" 8§77
EEREE | bRFHNEFE - UB
TEHE  YARBSHRET —FR
BE - ROERAFRATIERRL
BRAIBHEAREBERARFMEM
MR RIERIEER -

% B Cheer Hope M E KR E TN

ZEFRETENE4%5E - ASRTE
B YEREERRE-FAEE -

RERT EROEERER

ZEFRETNEISBEE - AET
FHE YARBERRE—FNEE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE-T-\FT-A=1-BLFE

24. SHARE CAPITAL
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each

24. KA

BREEI BLTzZER

Number
of Shares Share capital
ROEE A
’000 HK$’000
TR TER
Authorised: ETE
At | January 2017, 31 December 2017, RZE—tF—H—H"
| January 2018 and 31 December 2018 —E—tE+A=t—H"
—T-\F-A-HK
—E-\F+=ZA=1+—H 100,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITRHR
At | January 2017, 31 December 2017, R-ZE—+F—-H—H"
| January 2018 and 31 December 2018 —E—+H+ZA=+—8"
—E-N\F-H-8k
—E-\F+-A=t—H 1,059,750 10,598
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 25.
Disposal of Captain Wise Group during the year ended 3| December 2017

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company disposed of the
entire equity interest in Captain Wise Limited and its subsidiaries at a cash
consideration of HK$10,000,000 to an independent third party (see Note
9). The net liabilities of Captain Wise Group on 22 December 2017, being

the date of the disposal, were as follows:

e MR AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE-T-\FT-A=1-BLFE

il
REBE-E-—tF+=-A=+-HLF
E%Captam Wise K8

E’E&im

E_E—tE+_A=+—-HL#F
&+ ARAIAE &K {E 10,000,000 87T
£ Captain Wise Limited R EHTB A RH
PHRAERT - BBLE=F(RIE
) © Captain Wise RER-_FT—+F+=
AZTZH(BLERZEEREN

¢

i

O

T
HK$'000
FHET
Net liabilities disposed of: EEREFE:

Property, plant and equipment Mm% - BERE 21,265
Prepaid lease payments BNMEEHRE 2,218
Inventories FE 4,803
Trade receivables JEWE 5 HRIR 24
Other receivables, deposits and prepayment HiEWARIE - e RFENFIE 1,190
Current investments MBI E 9,850
Bank balances and cash RITERRRS 12,447
Trade payables JERE 5RE (274)
Other payables and accruals HipERfERARETER (29,730)
Borrowings & (23,771)
Provision for taxation TR (223)
(2.201)
REEBRERERAA
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e MBIRRMHEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE-T-\FT-A=1-BLFE

25. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 5. HEWBARE)

Disposal of Captain Wise Group during the year ended 3| December 2017 REZE=-F—tF1+=Zf=1—-ALF
(Continued) E 1 & Captain Wise EB (&)
HK$'000
TRT
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary: HEMEA M -
Cash consideration received in prior year PERRMRENE 10,000
Net liabilities disposed of EEREFRE 2,201
Release of translation reserve upon i — I B A AR R R BE
disposal of a subsidiary 52,026
Direct expenses EERX (1,929)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HEMB A K 62,298
Net cash outflow arising on disposal: HEEE RS LIFE
Bank balances and cash disposed of BEHERTEBRER S (12,447)
Direct expenses BEERX (1,929)
(14,376)
The impact of Captain Wise Group's results and cash flows for the year Captain Wise s EHBZ T —+F+-A
ended 31 December 2017 is set out in Note 9. ST-REFENEERRERENY

EERMY -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL 26.

INSTRUMENTS

Categories of financial instruments

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments as

at the end of each reporting period are as follows:

e MR AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE-T-\FT-A=1-BLFE

B¥EBEEREMIAZATE

EMIACDE

AERREHREELBIANEEE
mT -

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERr TET
Debt investments at amortised cost/ RBERAGHECBEBRE BE
held-to-maturity investments IR A 362,670 234,000
Trade receivables B 5 RN 1,635 10,45
Financial assets included in deposits, BERNEE - BRFER
prepayments and other receivables HitEl g emEE 21,366 34,744
Cash and cash equivalents RekBReFEEEB 185,058 254,497
Financial assets at amortised cost RESERATEZERMERE 570,729 533,692
Financial assets at fair value through RAVTEFABRZEREE
profit or loss 214,147 82,940
REEBRZRERD A
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE-T-\FT-A=1-BLFE

26.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL 26, BIBEREEREMIAZATE
INSTRUMENTS (Continued) (%)
Categories of financial instruments (Continued) ERIAZSE(E)
2018 2017
—B-N\E —T—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TET
Trade payables ETANE — 3
Financial liabilities included in accruals and BIERREST FIB REMENFIERH
other payables g =V 14,425 5,680
Obligations under repurchase BEHETHOELE
agreements 78,918 —
Borrowings EE: 352,657 234,000
Financial liabilities at amortised cost BRERATENSRAR 446,000 239,683
Financial risk management objectives and policies P¥EBREEBNREE
The Group's major financial instruments include debt investments, financial AEEZIECRTIABEERRE &
assets at fair value through profit or loss, cash and cash equivalents, obligations AHEFABENeREE RekRe
under repurchase agreements and borrowings. Details of the financial ZEER - BRBAETOEERER -

instruments are disclosed in the respective notes. The risks associated with
these financial instruments include market risk (interest rate risk, currency
risk and equity price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how
to mitigate these risks are set out below. The management manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented

on a timely and effective manner.

OCI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR AR MR

26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(@)  Market risk

(i)

(i)

Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the value or cash flows of an
asset, liability or forecast transaction denominated in foreign
currency (that is, a currency other than the functional
currency of the entity to which the transactions relate) will
fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The
functional currency of the Hong Kong subsidiaries is HK$
and the functional currency of PRC subsidiaries is Renminbi
("RMB"). Foreign exchange risks mainly arise from the Group's
investments and borrowings in currencies other than HK$ and
RMB.

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Group's debt
investments at amortised cost/held-to-maturity investments
and borrowings are denominated in United States Dollars
("US$"), which is pegged against HK$, and are not therefore

subject to significant foreign currency risks.

Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash
flows of a financial instrument will fluctuates because of

changes in market interest rates.

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Group was not
exposed to any significant interest rate risk. The Group
currently does not have interest rate hedging policy. However,
the management will consider hedging significant interest rate

exposure should the need arise.

For the year ended 31 December 2018
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE-§ N\Ft-A=t-ALEE

26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(@)  Market risk (Continued)
(in)  Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price changes arising from

listed equity securities held for trading (see Note 19).

The Group's equity securities are listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong. The management would manage its exposure
arising from these investments by closely monitoring the
performance of the respective trading securities and market
conditions. The management would consider diversifying the

portfolio of these investments as they consider appropriate.

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based
on the exposure to equity price risks on the Group's equity
securities carried at fair value at the end of the reporting
period. If the prices of the equity securities had been
5% (2017: 5%) higher/lower, loss for the year ended 3l
December 2018 (2017: profit) would decrease/increase
(2017: increase/decrease) by approximately HK$I,126,000
(2017: HK$3,463,000) as a result of price changes in its equity

securities.

OCI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

@

Market risk (Continued)

(1) Equity price risk (Continued)
The sensitivity analysis indicates the instantaneous change in
the Group's profit/loss after tax (and retained earnings) and
other components of consolidated equity that would arise
assuming that the changes in the price of the equity securities
had occurred at the end of the reporting period and had been
applied to re-measure those financial instruments held by the
Group which expose the Group to equity price risk at the end
of the reporting period. It is also assumed that the fair values
of the Group's equity securities would change in accordance
with the historical correlation with the relevant stock market
index or the relevant risk variables, and that all other variables
remain constant. The analysis is performed on the same basis
for 2017.

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its
contractual obligations resulting in a financial loss to the Group.
The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to debt investments
at amortised cost and trade receivables. The Group's exposure to
credit risk arising from cash and cash equivalents and US Dollar
Bond Linked Notes is limited because the counterparties are financial
institutions with sound credit ratings, for which the Group considers

to have low credit risk.

e MR AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE-§ N\Ft-A=t-ALEE

26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b)  Credit risk (Continued)

(i) Debt investments at amortised cost

The Group focuses on decentralising investments for the
credit-type fixed income securities investments which are
mainly high return products. The Group pre-controls the
exposure of the credit risk by setting investment position limit,
classifying the sub-investment varieties, sub-credit rating limits
and concentration limits. Moreover, the Group continuously
tracks the bond issuer’s business conditions and credit rating
changes through monitoring, pre-warning, risk detecting, etc. At
the same time, the Group is highly prudent in the investment
of the asset-based securities products and strictly evaluates the
quality of the underlying asset pool and the effectiveness of

the credit enhancement.

The Group recognises loss allowance for debt investments at
amortised cost via ECL model. The measurement of the ECL is
based on the Probability of Default (PD), Loss Given Default
(LGD) and Exposure at Default (EAD). When measuring the
ECL, the Group classifies the assets into different stages based
on whether the credit risk of each debt asset has increased
significantly since the initial recognition. Accordingly, the Group
measures loss allowance on either a |2-month or the lifetime

base for those investments in different risk stages.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b)  Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

Debt investments at amortised cost (Continued)

In accordance with HKFRS 9, the Group started to recognise
provision for losses in respect of debt investments business
based on expected credit loss since 2018. For financial
instruments measured at expected credit loss, the Group
classifies each financial instrument into different risk stages
based on whether the credit risk of the relevant financial
instrument has increased significantly since its initial
recognition. A financial instrument is included in stage | if it
has low credit risk at the reporting date or its credit risk has
not increased significantly since its initial recognition; a financial
instrument is included in stage 2 if its credit risk has increased
significantly since its initial recognition; a financial instrument is
migrated to stage 3 if it has objective evidence of impairment.
The Group measures the expected credit loss based on
parameters such as PD, LGD and EAD.

e MR AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018

E-Z-\E+-A=+-0ALEE

26. BHEBREEREMIAZNYE

(&)

b) EERBE)

()

BB A K E B
RE(E)

REBEEMBHREEAE
%o AEER T —N\F
REOBHEEEERBER
BREBREEGHERER
o FREBEEBEHE
MNEMIAMS  ~5ER
BENSHERUR  HEE
RIANGEERBEREE
EnmEseRIASEA
TR EREE - ERS
AEMEERRREREE
ERREVERRRTER

M ABEEBIA
AE—BE: maNsER
NRHEERRBEELM

Jﬁfﬁirﬂlﬁaﬂ\%_ P&
B MERIAREENOR
HEE HeEBEE=R
B AKBEREBEORE
BOBRREORRSZH
AAEEHMEEER -

REEBRZRARDA
2018

A



A
GERBRERME

For the year ended 31 December 2018
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'\ Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL 26.

B¥EBEEREMIAZATE

INSTRUMENTS (Continued) (%)
(b)  Credit risk (Continued) b) FERRE)
(i) Debt investments at amortised cost (Continued) () HEHL LA E K
KE(E)
The following tables provide information about the Group's TREHEBAZER_Z
exposure to credit risk and ECLs for debt investments at —NE+ZA=+—RkZ
amortised cost as at 31 December 2018 and | January 2018: T-N\F-A-HEHNEZ
BHAAHEZ BEREMN
FERRLEHEEBREN
B
As at 3| December 2018 RZB-NF+ZA=1-—
H
Gross Net
carrying carrying
Risk stages amount  Loss allowance amount
P B PR BR BREE BRER fREFE
SP Note Stage 3
SPRE FI3RER 101,830 (53,400) 48,430
RD Note Stage |
RD &% F B 117,496 — 117,496
ZR Note Stage |
REE £ IBR 15,860 (39) 15,821
ZY Note Stage |
VAR F IR 78,330 (422) 77,908
GX Note Stage |
CXER £ IR 72,436 (390) 72,046
Receivable under Stage |
a loan facility
—HERRERTH F IR
FENGRIE 31,000 31) 30,969
416,952 (54,282) 362,670
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26.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL 26.

INSTRUMENTS (Continued) (%)
(b)  Credit risk (Continued) b) FERRE)
(i) Debt investments at amortised cost (Continued) () HEHL LA E K
KE(E)
As at | January 2018 R=Z-N\F—-H—H
Gross Net
Risk stages carrying amount  Loss allowance carrying amount
B B R BEEE BRERE SREFE
SP Note Stage |
SPRIE F IR 117,000 — 117,000
RD Note Stage |
RDE & IR 117,000 — 117,000
234,000 — 234,000

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B R R AR M AT

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE-T-\FT-A=1-BLFE

B¥EBEEREMIAZATE

Movement in the allowances for impairment for debt

investments at amortised cost is as follows:

I AR 2 A
HEREZEBIT

Loss allowance

BEEE

HK$’000

TER

At 31 December 2017 RZF—tF+-A=1—H —
Fffect arising from adoption of HKFRS 9% FRANE BB IR &5 2ERIZE 9 97

FREERNTE —

At | January 2018 RZZE—-N\F—A—H —

Impairment losses recognised during FANCHAREER
the year (Note 7(c)) GEXE) 54,282
At 31 December 2018 R-ZE-N\F+_A=+—H 54,282

& Upon the adoption of HKFRS 9, the Group has assessed
that the ECLs on debt investments at amortised cost were

immaterial as at | January 2018 (see Note 2(c)(i)).
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
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26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL 26, BIBEREERERIAZAFYE

INSTRUMENTS (Continued) (%)
(b)  Credit risk (Continued) b) FERRE)
(i) Debt investments at amortised cost (Continued) () HEHL LA E K

During the year ended 3| December 2018, the risk stage
of SP Note was transferred from stage | to stage 3 and the
SP Note in the opinion of the directors of the Company
is considered to be credit-impaired based on the facts and
circumstances as detailed in Note 14(a)(i). As at 31 December
2018, the directors of the Company reviewed and assessed
the SP Note for impairment using reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost or effort in
accordance with the requirement of HKFRS 9. The Group
recognised lifetime ECLs of HK$53,400,000 for SP Note in the
current reporting period after taking into consideration the

recoverability of collateral.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b)  Credit risk (Continued)

(i1

Trade receivables

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by
the individual characteristics of each customer rather than
the industry or country in which the customers operate and
therefore significant concentrations of credit risk primarily
arise when the Group has significant exposure to individual
customers. At the end of the reporting period, the Group has

no significant concentration of credit risk.

Individual credit evaluations are performed on all customers
requiring credit over a certain amount. These evaluations focus
on the customer’s past history of making payments when due
and current ability to pay, and take into account information
specific to the customer as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customer operates. Trade
receivables are due within 120 days from the date of billing.
Debtors with balances that are more than 3 months past due
are requested to settle all outstanding balances before any
further credit is granted. Normally, the Group does not obtain

collateral from customers.

e MR AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE-T-\FT-A=1-BLFE

26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL 26, BIBEREERERIAZAFYE

INSTRUMENTS (Continued) (%)
(b)  Credit risk (Continued) (b) EERRE)
(i) Trade receivables (Continued) (i) EREZES (&)

The Group measures loss allowances for trade receivables
at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which is calculated
using a provision matrix. As the Group's historical credit loss
experience does not indicate significantly different loss patterns
for different customer segments, the loss allowance based
on past due status is not further distinguished between the

Group's different customer bases.

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss experience
over the past two years. These rates are adjusted to reflect
differences between economic conditions during the period
over which the historic data has been collected, current
conditions and the Group's view of economic conditions over

the expected lives of the receivables.

The Group assessed that there is no significant loss allowance
recognised in accordance with HKFRS 9 as at 31 December
2018 and | January 2018.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL 26.
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b)  Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

Trade receivables (Continued)

Comparative information under HKAS 39

Prior to | January 2018, an impairment loss was recognised

only when there was objective evidence of impairment (see

Note 2(i)(i) — policy applicable before | January 2018). At 3|

December 2017, no trade receivables were determined to be

impaired. The aging analysis of trade debtors that were not

considered to be impaired was as follows:

e MR AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE-T-\FT-A=1-BLFE

HERREEREMIAEZATE
(%)
b) FEERRE)
(i) BEWRE G (E)
BEEESHENE R
HEER

RZE—-N\F—-A—HAl"
ERRENETEERLRE
FeRRREBR(RNE
i) —ERARZE—N\F—
A—BAMEE) RZF
—tF&+ZA=+—RB ¥
BESRERNRERETEAE
W WEKE AT HERN
B SRR ERMERR DT
T

2017
“E—+F
$'000
FBL

Neither past due nor impaired

Less than | month past due

A AR TR R A
BHOR A A

8,824
1,627

10,451

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired related to

a number of customers for whom there was no recent history

of default.

el AR 8 TR LR 2 R R TROR T R
TR RESCHNZETP AR -
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26.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

()

(©

Credit risk (Continued)
(i) Trade receivables (Continued)
Comparative information under HKAS 39 (Continued)

Receivables that were past due but not impaired related to
a number of independent customers that had a good track
record with the Group. Based on past experience, management
believed that no impairment allowance was necessary in
respect of these balances as there had been no significant
change in credit quality and the balances were still considered

fully recoverable.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity is managed on a daily basis by the treasury and finance
departments. They are responsible for ensuring that the Group has
adequate liquidity for all operations, ensuring that the funding mix is
appropriate so as to avoid maturity mismatches. The Group manages
liquidity risk by holding sufficient liquid assets of appropriate quality
to ensure that short-term funding requirements are covered within

prudent limits.

The following tables show the remaining contractual maturity at the
end of the reporting period of the Group's non-derivative financial
liabilities, which are based on contractual undiscounted cash flows
(including interest payments computed using contractual rates or, if
floating, based on rates current at the end of the reporting period)

and the earliest date on which the Group can be required to pay.
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26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL 26, BIBEREERERIAZAFYE

INSTRUMENTS (Continued) (%)
(c)  Liquidity risk (Continued) ) RBESEE(E)
Liguidity risk tables REEEE MK
For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE-ZT-N\F+ZA=1+—HL
£
Total Carrying
On demand undiscounted amount at
or within cash flows 31/1212018
| year KRR R=B-N\%F
BRERKS RERE  +t=A=1-H
—FR sz R E
HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TR TR TR
Financial liabilities tREE
Accruals and other payables et R R AN ERE 14,425 14,425 14,425
Obligations under BEBZTHER
repurchase agreements 81,297 81,297 78918
Borrowings fEm 356,570 356,570 352,657
452,292 452,292 446,000
For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE_Z—+F+-_A=+—HILFE
Total Carrying
On demand undiscounted amount at
or within cash flows 3171212017
| year KRR RZE—tF
BERE RERE  TZA=t-H
—FR BR ZEHE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THEL TET
Financial liabilities ERAR
Trade payables ERE SRE 3 3 3
Accruals and other payables Rt A R At BN R 5,680 5,680 5,680
Borrowings B 237,900 237,900 234,000
243,583 243,583 239,683
REEBRERERDH
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26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(d)  Fair value measurement

(i)

Financial assets measured at fair value

Fair value hierarchy

HKFRS 13 “Fair Value Measurement” categorises fair value
measurements into a three-level hierarchy. The level into
which a fair value measurement is classified is determined with
reference to the observability and significance of the inputs
used in the valuation technique as follows:

o Level | valuations: Fair value measured using only Level
I inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities at the measurement date

®  Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level
2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet
Level |, and not using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market data
are not available

®  Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using significant

unobservable inputs

The Group has a team headed by the financial controller
performing valuations for the financial instruments, including
listed equity securities, the TRS and US Dollar Bond Linked
Notes. The team reports directly to the chief financial officer
and the audit committee. A valuation report with analysis of
changes in fair value measurement is prepared by the team
at each interim and annual reporting date, and is reviewed
and approved by the chief financial officer. Discussion of the
valuation process and results with the chief financial officer and
the audit committee is held twice a year, to coincide with the
reporting dates.
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26.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL 26, BIEBEREERSMIAEZAYE
(%)
(d)  Fair value measurement (Continued) d) DREE)
Financial assets measured at fair value (Continued) () HURFEAEHNZHE
E(&)
Recurring fair value Fair value as at  Fair value Fair value  Valuation technique(s)
measurements 31.12.2018 as at 31.12.2017  hierarchy  and key input(s)
RZB-N\E& RIT-tF
+=ZA=+-B +=A=t+-H
EEMAVERNE Z2VE ZAYE RVERR HEAERIESH
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR
Assets:
BE:
[) Listed equity securities
held for trading 22518 82,940 Level | Current bid price in active market
) HEEE LMRAES 22518 82,940 F—8 REBMGLERMEAE
) US Dollar Bond Linked 163,674 — Level 2 Quoted from brokers/financial institutions
Notes
) ETESEHBERE 163,674 — F-H REER,/ HEENRE
I TRS 27955 — Level 2 Quoted from brokers/financial institutions
) 48R 27,955 — E-@ RELLE/ SREENRE

(i1

During the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, there
were no transfer between Level | and Level 2, or transfer into
or out of Level 3. The Group's policy is to recognise transfer

between levels of fair value hierarchy as at the end of the

reporting period in which they occur.

fair value of financial assets and liabilities carried at other than

fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group's assets and liabilities

carried at cost or amortised cost were not materially different

from their fair values as at 31 December 2018 and 2017.

(i)

BE_Z-\FR-T—t
Ft-A=1T—HILEE"
F-HRF-_QrBLES
B kBE-REARED
EE=H - XEEBERTIR
HREENREHRERD
FERANNE R 2 HHE

%o

KR FEUN T 25 R %
AEERRELFE

2N RN RN
FRNEREERAEERAE
EERAR-Z-NFR-Z
—tF+ZA=t-BNA
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27. COMMITMENTS 27. AEiE
(2)  Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December 2018 not provided for @ RZB-NF+ZA=t-BHEX
in the financial statements were as follows: XA ERARBRE 2 ERE
BT
2018 2017
—E-N\f§ —T—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TRT
Capital contribution in respect of AE-HEEMAR
limited partnership interests ARER
in a fund 100,000 100,000
Acquisition of convertible notes and Wi PR R R &
guaranteed notes BRERZEE — 156,000
Participation in a TRS agreement LRG0 R R — 29,000
100,000 285,000
(b)  Operating leases commitments (b) REBENEE
The Group as lessee AEEERBAHA
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments for AEERRERRAERIN S E
future minimum lease payments in respect of rented premises which RiEEREKERSFHIINT :
fall due as follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\F§ —T—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TERT
Within one year —ER 5,611 5,469
In the second to fifth year FERE — 5443
5611 10,912
Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group RERGRAREERREPRAEM
for its office premises. e S

OCI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
2018 Annual Report



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements lﬁ!
e B RS R R M R

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HEZZ-\FT-A=+-BLFE

COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 28. ’Aﬁ@ﬁiﬂﬁ%ﬂﬁ)ﬂ%
2018 2017
—B-N\E —EB—tF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
BEE FTERx FET
Non-current asset ERBEE
Plant and equipment Y S 1,494 2,423
Investments in subsidiaries RIFB AR ZIKE 30 I |
Interest in joint venture INCR-UNCIPL ] 1,415 1,573
Rental deposits Meke 1,968 1,968
4,878 5,965
Current assets RBEE
Other receivables H it e AR IR 5,435 12,722
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE U BT & A I FRB 581,019 408,298
Bank balances and cash RITHEH MRS 110,554 204,456
697,008 625476
Current liabilities nREBEE
Accruals and other payables FEET IR K EL A FE A+ AR 1B 3,701 5,748
Amounts due to subsidiaries RINIENGIE ¢ 21,922 8,095
Borrowings f&EE 352,657 234,000
378,280 247,843
Net current assets RBEERE 318,728 377,633
Net assets BEFE 323,606 383,598

Capital and reserves (see note below)  EZARf#fE (R T XHE)

Share capital R 10,598 10,598
Reserves &1 313,008 373,000
Total equity ERBH 323,606 383,598
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors R-BE-HhE_A-+/\BEEZeit
on 28 February 2019: R IR RETES
Feng Hai LiYi
b33 R
Director Director
EE EE
REEBRZRERD A
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28. COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 28. DEEBEZHBMRRKE)

(Continued)
Note: Bt et
Details of the changes in the Company's individual components of equity between ARARERETHSEEEREFORFR
the beginning and the end of the year are set out below: ZEBETIMT :
Share Share Retained
capital premium earnings Total
RA R R E IR REEF st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TER TER TER TER
Balance at 31 December 2016 and RZZE-—RE+ZA=1t—HK
| January 2017 —E—+E-f-B2&H 10,598 217,190 172918 400,706
Loss and total comprehensive expense  AF[EEE K
for the year PEXNEE — = (17,108) (17,108)
Balance at 31 December 2017 RZT—+F
TZAZ+—AZE&H 10,598 217,190 155,810 383,598
Balance at 3| December 2017 and RZE—tF+=A=+—8k
| January 2018 “E-N\E-A-B#H 10,598 217,190 155,810 383,598
Loss and total comprehensive expense  AFEEE X
for the year PEX AR — = (59,992) (59,992)
Balance at 31 December 2018 RZE-N\F
tZA=T—BZk&H 10,598 217,190 95,818 323,606
29. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 29. HEALRS
In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere in the BREeMBREAMBoIKENBE
consolidated financial statements, the Group had the following transactions AEIRGRERIN REBRARFE R
with its related parties during the year. HAEATETTIEARS :
a)  Transaction with key management personal a) HIZEBABETZRS
The remuneration of directors and other members of key EEREMIEEBABFANZH
management during the year was as follows: BT
2018 2017
—EB-N\F —EB—+tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
Fi7 FibTL
Short-term benefits R e A 4,823 3,140
Post employment benefits BEBIREA 6l 63
4,884 3,203
The remuneration of directors and key executives is determined by BEERTIEZTHABZEHMBAEM
the remuneration committee having regard to the performance of ZEGEZRMEARR RN HBEE
individuals and market trends. BTE o

OCI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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29. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 9. BEAIRS
b)  Balance and transaction with a related party b) BHAILRKREBBLIETZIRS
Name of related party Relationship
BEnER A%
CCB International Asset Management Limited A wholly-owned subsidiary of a major shareholder
RIREREEEREERAA of the Company

ARAEBRRZEEHBEAR

2018 2017
“E-N\F —E—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
T THEL
Transaction 5
Fund sub-advisory services expenses* B & EAARBER * 1,502 —
= The above transactions were conducted on mutually agreed terms in the ks FRRZTIR—REBKERT
ordinary course of business. RERGE 2 BFETT ©
2018 2017
ZE-N\E “EF R
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TR
Balance oS
Prepayments for fund sub-advisory BNEE D EBRRERE(MI8)
services (Note 18) 1,398 —
REEBRZRARDA
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30. SUBSIDIARIES

)\ Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

30.

The following list contains all subsidiaries of the Group at the end of year.

Place of

incorporation

or registration/

Particulars of

MEAR

TREINAFEFRASERENBEL

ET o

operation Issued and Proportion of
AL BL L paid up capital ownership
Name of subsidiary R, ERTR interest  Principal activities
MEARER EXE BRRAFRE HRRERZEIL FEXRK
OCI Administrative Services Limited Hong Kong HK$ 1,000 100%  Provision of
REBBRTHREAR A A BH 1,00078 7T management
services to group
companies
[BIESEIVNSIbr2ois
BEERS
Dragon Estate Holdings Limited BVI USS$| 100%  Investment holding
RBREIES = REZR
Excel Joiner Limited Hong Kong HK$ | 100%® Inactive
HEBRAQRA BE | BT aVET:
King Sincere Limited BVI US$| 100%@  Investment holding
HBARAT REBRUEE | €T RERR
Turbo China Development Limited Hong Kong HK$ 1,000 100%%  Investment holding
BEZFRBRAA] 0 1,000 7T AR
MMEBNEEZERAR O PRC HK$0 100%®  Inactive
e 0BT VT
Real Treasure Investment Limited Hong Kong HKS$ | 100%  Trading of Wine
EERBERLA BE | BT BEBEE
Real Treasure (Shen Zhen) Investment PRC HK$0 100%@ Inactive
Limited® 3 07&TT GT:

BEE(RYIDBEARAR®
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SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Place of
incorporation

or registration/

A
e MR AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE-T-\FT-A=1-BLFE

30. MBARE)

Particulars of

operation Issued and Proportion of
SR B L paid up capital ownership
Name of subsidiary R, ERITR interest  Principal activities
MEARRR EE S BRERAHE BARZEzZEOL FEEHR
OCI Capital (BVI) Limited BVI US$ | 100%  Investment holding
REEA(RBHARES)ERRR RBREZES | =TT REER
OCI Capital Limited Hong Kong HK$ 1,000 100%@  Investment holding
RREFERAF B 1,000/ 7T AR
OCl International Capital (BVI) Limited ~ BVI US$| 100%  Investment holding
REBEREN(RBERRES) RBRUBE = REZR
BRAF
OCl International Capital Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000 100%©  Investment holding
REBRERERATF e 1,000 % 7T RERR
OCI Holding (Cayman) Co Ltd Cayman Islands US$ | 100%®  Investment holding
HERS | =TT REER
OCI Asset Management (Cayman) Co Ltd Cayman Islands US$ | 100%@  Investment holding
HERS = REER
OClI Investment Fund SPC Cayman Islands US$1© 100%®  Investment holding
HERS = REZR
OCl-Israel Investment Management Cayman Islands US$| 519%  Inactive
Limited HERS | 7T NER
REEBRZRARDA
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SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Place of

incorporation

or registration/

30.

Particulars of

MERRE)

operation Issued and Proportion of
SR B L paid up capital ownership
Name of subsidiary R, ERITR interest  Principal activities
MEARRR EE S BRBRAFE BEREECZAEIL FEXK
OCl-Israel GP LP Cayman Islands USS | 519%®  Inactive
HERHS | €T VT
OCl-Israel Fund I LP Cayman Islands US$ | 519%® Inactive
HERS = aVET:
Market Expert Global Limited BVI USS| 100%  Investment holding
RBRUBE = REZR
OCI Asset Management Hong Kong HK$ 1,001,000 100%  Asset management
Company Limited B 1,001,000 7T BEER
REBEEEARAR
Title Success Limited BVI USS$| 100%  Investment holding
RBRUBE e REZR
OCl Investment (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong HK$ 1,000 100%%  Investment holding
RERE(ER)ERAR &R | 0007 RARER
RR(ER)EEERFHERAFO  PRC HK$5,000,000 100%@  Provision of financial
H 5,000,000 7T advisory service
TR RS K T AR A
Smart Measure Global Limited BVI US$I 100%  Investment holding
KEBRUEE e REERR
OClI International Finance Limited Hong Kong HK$ 1,000 100%@ Inactive
REARGBERAF BE 10003 7T TER

OCI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Place of
incorporation

or registration/

30.

Particulars of

R MWK

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HEZZ-\FT-A=+-BLFE

MERRE)

operation Issued and Proportion of

SR B L paid up capital ownership
Name of subsidiary R, ERITR interest  Principal activities
MEARRR EXBE BRBRAFE BEREECZAEIL FEXK
OClI International Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$ 1,000 100% Inactive
REERRAEB AT B | 00078 TT B
Orient Genno Management Co., Ltd. Cayman Islands US$10 60%®  Inactive

HERS Ew kR
OCI Blessing Management Co Ltd Cayman Islands US$100 100%@ Inactive

HERS 1005 7T aNz
OCI Management Limited Cayman Islands US$100 100%@  Inactive

HENE 1005 7T 5T
OCl Global SPC Cayman Islands US$1© 100%®  Inactive

EEL | X7 G

(@) Indirectly held through subsidiaries of the Company.

(b)  Registered as a Wholly Foreign Owned Enterprise under PRC Law.

(c)  Management shares

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end of the

year.

@ EBAARAMBLRMERE o
b) BEREEEIMRINEEERE -
(o EERH

LM ERARRNFRYBRTENER

FKE o
AL
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31

32.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES
The Group has initially applied HKFRS |5 and HKFRS 9 at | January 2018.
Under the transition methods chosen, comparative information is not

restated. Further details of the changes in accounting policies are disclosed

in Note 2(c).

In the current year, change in fair value of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (2017: unrealised gains on trading securities) are
reclassified from “Other gains and losses” to “Revenue” as the management
believes the current classification could provide better presentation to
the user of the financial information to evaluate the Group's operating
performance. Accordingly, certain comparative information related to

revenue and other gains and losses has been re-presented.

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENT'S WAS STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA has
issued a number of amendments, new standards and interpretations which
are not yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2018 and which
have not been adopted in these financial statements. These include the

following which may be relevant to the Group.

Effective for accounting

periods beginning on or after

HKFRS 16, Leases | January 2019

HK(IFRIC) 23, Uncertainty over | January 2019

income tax treatments

OCI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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32.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENT'S WAS STANDARDS AND 32.

INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 (Continued)
Effective for accounting

periods beginning on or after

Amendments to HKFRS 10 & To be determined
HKAS 28 (2011), Sale or Contribution
of Assets between an Investor and

its Associate or Joint Venture

Amendments to HKFRSs, | January 2019
Annual Improvements to

HKFRSs 2015 - 2017 Cycle

Amendments to HKAS 19, | January 2019
Employee Benefits

Amendments to HKAS 28, | January 2019
Long-term Interests in Associates and

Joint Ventures

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the impact
of these amendments, new standards and interpretations is expected
to be in the period of initial application. So far the Group has identified
some aspects of HKFRS 16 which may have a significant impact on
the consolidated financial statements. Further details of the expected
impacts are discussed below. While the assessment has been substantially
completed for HKFRS 16, the actual impact upon the initial adoption of
this standard may differ as the assessment completed to date is based on
the information currently available to the Group, and further impacts may
be identified before the standard is initially applied in the Group's interim
financial report for the six months ending 30 June 2019. The Group may
also change its accounting policy elections, including the transition options,

until the standard is initially applied in that financial report.

A
e MR AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE-T-\FT-A=1-BLFE
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32.

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENT'S WAS STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases

As disclosed in Note 2(h), currently the Group classifies leases into finance
leases and operating leases and accounts for the lease arrangements
differently, depending on the classification of the lease. The Group enters

into leases as the lessee.

HKFRS 16 is not expected to impact significantly on the way that lessors
account for their rights and obligations under a lease. However, once
HKFRS 16 is adopted, lessees will no longer distinguish between finance
leases and operating leases. Instead, subject to practical expedients,
lessees will account for all leases in a similar way to current finance
lease accounting, i.e. at the commencement date of the lease the lessee
will recognise and measure a lease liability at the present value of the
minimum future lease payments and will recognise a corresponding “right-
of-use” asset. After initial recognition of this asset and liability, the lessee
will recognise interest expense accrued on the outstanding balance of the
lease liability, and the depreciation of the right-of-use asset, instead of the
current policy of recognising rental expenses incurred under operating
leases on a systematic basis over the lease term. As a practical expedient,
the lessee can elect not to apply this accounting model to short-term
leases (i.e. where the lease term is 12 months or less) and to leases of
low-value assets, in which case the rental expenses would continue to be

recognised on a systematic basis over the lease terms.
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32.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENT'S WAS STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

HKFRS 16 will primarily affect the Group’s accounting as a lessee of leases
for properties, which are currently classified as operating leases. The
application of the new accounting model is expected to lead to an increase
in both assets and liabilities and to impact on the timing of the expense
recognition in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income over the period of the lease.

HKFRS 16 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January
2019. As allowed by HKFRS 16, the Group plans to use the practical
expedient to grandfather the previous assessment of which existing
arrangements are, or contain, leases. The Group will therefore apply the
new definition of a lease in HKFRS 16 only to contracts that are entered
into on or after the date of initial application. In addition, the Group plans
to elect the practical expedient for not applying the new accounting model

to short-term leases and leases of low-value assets.

The Group plans to elect to use the modified retrospective approach for
the adoption of HKFRS 16 and will recognise the cumulative effect of initial
application as an adjustment to the opening balance of equity at | January
2019 and will not restate the comparative information. As disclosed in
Note 27(b), at 31 December 2018 the Group's future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases amount to HK$5,6 11,000
for properties, all of which is payable within | year after the reporting date.
The Group will need to perform a more detailed analysis to determine the
amounts of right-of-use assets and lease liabilities arising from operating
leases on initial adoption of HKFRS 16, after taking into account the
applicability of the practical expedient and adjusting for any leases entered
into or terminated between now and the adoption of HKFRS 16 could
have a material impact on the Group's financial statements from 2019

onwards.
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3 Financial Summary

HREE
Year ended 3| December
BE+-A=t-HLEE
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
ZBE-N\FE T+t ZT-RF C"ET-hFf _T-OF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER THET THT THET THET
RESULTS £
Revenue Ya 124,614 113,427 32,224 60,009 495,560
(Loss) profit before tax A0 (B8 )& Al (60,413) 42,996 (449,062) 37,728 373,628
Income tax expense PrEH % (419) (412) (835) (4,359) (51,963)
(Loss) profit for the year AEE(BE)EF (60,832) 42,584 (449,897) 33,369 321,665
Attributable to: FEfh
Equity holders of the parent BRAEREFAA (60,792) 42,584 (449,897) 33,369 321,665
Non-controlling interests IR (40) — — — —
(60,832) 42,584 (449,897) 33,369 321,665
As at 3| December
R+=R=+-8
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
“E-N\FE ZE—+tF TR ZE-1F ZT-mF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEr FET THT TET THET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERER
Total assets BEE 805,412 633,497 446,345 930,923 911932
Total liabilities BaRE (478,551) (245,809) (47,764) (41,016) (89,350)
326,86 387,688 398,581 889,907 822,582
Equity attributable to equity AEHEERFAA
holders of the period FE{h R 327,040 387,827 398,581 889,907 822,582
Non-controlling interests el 3 (179) (139) — — —
326,861 387,688 398,581 889,907 822,582
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